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NOTICE
5th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTICE is hereby given that the FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of LUCKNOW METRO RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED will be held on 29th September 2018 at 5:30 PM at the Registered Office of the
Company at Board Room, Ground Floor, Administrative Building Vipin Khand, Gomti Nagar Near Dr.
Ambedhkar Samajik, Parivartan Sthal Lucknow 226010 to transacts the following business::

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended 3 1st
March, 2018, the reports of the Directors and Statutory Auditors together with the Comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“RESOLVED THAT consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to approve
and adopt the audited Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31st, 2018 along with Auditor’s
Report and Director’s Report”.

2. To fix remuneration of Auditors for the Financial Year 2018-19 and if considered fit, to pass with or
without modifications, the following resolution as an ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to fix the
remuneration, out of pocket expenses, statutory taxes and other ancillary expenses of Statutory Auditors
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2018-19"..

Notes:

1. The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the special
business as set out in the Notice is annexed.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in the
meeting instead of himself/ herself, and the proxy need not be a member of the company.

3. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the Company’s registered
office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for the AGM is
enclosed.

By Order of the Board of Directors

(Company Secretary)

Place: Lucknow
Date: 27/09/2018

Registered Office:
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited
Administrative Building, Vipin Khand, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow,Uttar Pradesh India-226010

—
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

It is my proud privilege to welcome you all to the 5th Annual General Meeting of
your Company. The Director’s Report and the Audited Accounts for the Financial
Year 2017-18, the Statutory Auditor’'s Report along with comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon, have already been circulated to
all of you and with your permission, | take them as read.

It indeed is my pleasure to inform that on 5th September, 2017, Lucknow Metro
created history by opening the ‘Priority Section’ of Lucknow Metro Phase-1Aproject
between Transport Nagar and Charbagh for commercial services in less than three
yearsperiod. It has earned the distinction of being the fastest ever Metro Rail Project undertaken in the Country.
It is a matter of pridefor Company. On 5th September, 2017, Priority Section ofLucknow Metro Phase-
1Aproject was opened to the public in the august presence of Shri Rajnath Singh, Honorable Home Minister,
Government of India, Shri Ram Naik, His Excellency - the Governor of Uttar Pradesh, Shri Yogi Aditynath,
Honorable Chief Minister, Uttar Pradesh, ShriHardeep Singh Puri, Honorable Union Minister for Housing and
Urban Affairs and many other dignitaries. The inaugural ceremony was well attended by the people from the
various cross sections of the society with great enthusiasm and alacrity. The entire city of Lucknow was in
festive mood in welcoming their own Metro in the capital city of Uttar Pradesh.

After successful commissioning of the first stretch of the project, the Company is whole heartedly working hard
to complete the entire North-South corridor of the Lucknow Metro Phase-1A project including the
underground andthe elevated sections. The Company achieved simultaneous breakthroughs of the two
tunnelson 28thApril, 2018 when TBMs namely ‘Gomti’ and ‘Ganga’ emerged out at the Hussain Ganj Metro
station construction site, thereby completing the entire tunneling work on the project. Civil construction of the
viaduct and the nine elevated stations are also progressing at afast pace. The Ballastless Track installation,
Traction works, Architectural Finishing, Electrical & Mechanical works and other System installation works are
also being undertaken in parallel to complete the project as per the stipulated target by 1st April, 2019.

The Company has always stressed on improving the processes and methods to enhance the speed of execution
of the project. It is my pleasure to inform you that the physical progress of project is 85% and financial progress
is 83% as on date.

You will also be happy to know that Government of Uttar Pradesh vide letter No. 38/8-7-8-18 Metro/2017
dated 11-1-2018 has approved the reconstitution of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (LMRC) - the
existing 50:50 jointly owned company of Gol and GoUP- as a Single SPV for implementation of Metro Rail
projects in various important cities of Uttar Pradesh and consequently rename it from Lucknow Metro Rail
Corporation Limited (LMRC) to Uttar Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Limited (UPMRC). The Detailed
Project Reports(DPR) for Kanpur, Agra and Meerut Metros are under process of approval by the Governments.

The tremendous emphasis by the Company on environmental and social aspects in delivering Lucknow Metro
project is really commendable. As you know, Company has received accreditation for ISO 14001: 2015 &
OHSAS 18001: 2007 in recognition of the organization’s integrated management system as per the
international standards. All the eight stations of ‘Priority Section’ are certified ''Platinum Rated'' buildings by

D e



Q LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

the Indian Green Building Council (IGBC). Company has undertaken extensive environmental campaign
during the World Environment Week wherein environmental awareness activities such as sapling plantation,
talks on environmental issues, quiz and slogan writing competition to take positive environmental steps ahead
in protecting nature and mother earth while implementing major infrastructure project like Lucknow Metro
were organized. Company has also installed a fully automatic waste composting machine to collect and
decompose the waste to produce good quality organic compost which is now being used for the extensive
plantation and greenery activities undertaken by the Company in landscaping works along the central median
below the Metro viaduct, at Metro stations and the Depot. The Company is further in process of getting
certification for remaining stations of the project.

During these years, the Company has achieved many national and international awards in recognition of its
commendable work in delivering the Lucknow Metro project. Recently, Lucknow Metro created history by
becoming the first ever Metro Rail Corporation from India to bag the International ‘Royal Society For The
Prevention Of Accidents’ (RoSPA) Award in Glasgow, United Kingdom, on 13th September, 2018. No other
Metro Rail Corporation from India has ever been honored with this prestigious award.

Last year, the Company was conferred with a special award for "Best Urban Mass Transit Project” during the
10th Urban Mobility India Conference & Exhibition and CODATU XVII Conference held at the Hyderabad by
Government of India on 6th November, 2017. The Company won the renowned Dun & Bradstreet Infra
Award, 2017 on 2nd November, 2017 in the Metro Rail category for completing and commissioning the 8.5
km “Priority Corridor” of the North —South Corridor (Phase 1A) project in a record time of less than three years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | express my sincere thanks for the goodwill and cooperation extended to
the Company by the external funding institution European Investment Bank (EIB), various departments of the
Government of India and Government of Uttar Pradesh in implementation of this prestigious project. | would
also like to put on record my profound appreciation for the employees of LMRC for their dedication and hard
work without which it would have not been possible to commence the revenue operation on the Priority
Section in less than three years’ time as well as making it possible to achieve the stiff targets within strict time
frame maintaining high standards of safety and quality

Thankingyou,

Sd/-

(Durga Shanker Mishra)

Chairman, LMRC

Secretary, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, GOI
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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

| take this privilege to welcome you all to the 5th year’'s AGM. Lucknow Metro will
give a long haul answer for the transportation needs of Lucknow, the Capital city of
Uttar Pradesh. Lucknow Metro will provide the ever predominant requirement for
reasonable and quality public transport system in the city.

On 5th September, 2017, the 8.5 km Priority Section of Lucknow Metro Phase-1A
project from Transport Nagar to Charbagh consisting of eight elevated Metro
stations was opened to the public in the august presence of Honorable Home
Minister, Government of India Shri Rajnath Singh, His Excellency the Governor of
Uttar Pradesh Shri Ram Naik, Honorable Chief Minister of Uttar Pradesh Shri Yogi Aditynath, Honorable Union
Minister for Housing and Urban Affairs Shri Hardeep Singh Puri and many other dignitaries. By commencing
revenue operation on Priority Section in less than three years period, Lucknow Metro has earned distinction of
being the fastest Metro project ever undertaken in the Country. It has been a landmark achievement and has set
new benchmark in Metro construction.

Works on the remaining stretches of 22.878 km North-South corridor are progressing at fast pace to complete it
ahead of stipulated target of 1st April, 2019. Out of this, civil works for the 3.85 km underground section
comprising three stations viz. Hussainganj, Sachivalaya and Hazratganj are almost complete along with all the
six drives of tunnel boring machine. Work for the CCS Airport underground Metro station is also progressing at
a fast pace. Along with it, works on balance elevated section with nine elevated stations are progressing well.
Amausi elevated Metro station is complete with Architectural finishing and Electrical & Mechanical works.

LMRC has also started Track, Over Head Electrification (OHE) and power supply works for the balanced
section along with other System works. Lucknow Metro is slated to fulfill its target of commissioning the whole
North-South corridor from CCS Airport to Munshipulia before 1st April, 2019 and complete Lucknow Metro
Phase-1A project within approved time frame.

To conserve energy and use renewable sources of energy, Lucknow Metro has taken many initiatives such
as regenerative braking in the trains which will result in saving 30-35% traction energy, use of 1% criteria for
underground stations in the air conditioning system, using Variable Voltage Variable Frequency (VVVF)
drive for all lifts and escalators, provision of LED lights at stations, use of energy efficient equipment
for Environmental Control System (ECS) and Tunnel Ventilation System (TVS) system for the underground
stations etc.

Currently, Lucknow Metro has planned 1.5- 2MW solar energy under the RESCO model from the roof mounted
photo voltaic cells on stabling and inspection sheds in Transport Nagar Car Maintenance Depot. Because of all
these novel measures, society will be able to recover the entire investment cost on the project in just 5 years,
Economic Rate of Return (EIRR) of the Project being 19.46%.

To create sustainable environment LMRC’s Metro stations and Depot have been designed and built as ‘Green’
buildings in accordance with the standards of the Indian Green Building Council (IGBC). Apart from this, on the
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occasion of the World Environment Day on 5th June, 2017, LMRC has been awarded International
Organization for Standardization (ISO) 14001:2004 & Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series
(OHSAS) 18001:2007 certifications in recognition of the organization’s compliances with international
standards.

LMRC’s “Centre of Excellence for Training” (CoET) situated at the Transport Nagar Car Maintenance Depot is
also one of its kind in Uttar Pradesh — imparting specialised training on Metro technology. The freshly recruited
staff of LMRC are being imparted rigorous training at this training centre. It will also be a great facility for initial
and refresher training of Metro staff for all upcoming Metros in Uttar Pradesh as well as other Metros in the
Country.

Lucknow Metro has ushered a revolution in bringing Mass Rapid Transit System (MRTS) in important cities of
Uttar Pradesh. It is now a role model for other Metros that shall be coming up in various cities of Uttar Pradesh.

I sincerely thank our external funding institution European Investment Bank (EIB), Board of Directors, various
departments of Government of India and Government of Uttar Pradesh as well as all the stakeholders for their
unstinted support to the LMRC in achieving our targets.

| thank and compliment every staff of LMRC, General Consultants and Contracting agencies who have made
these achievements possible by their continued hard work, dedication and commitment in timely completion
of first stage of this project of extreme public interest in a very strict time frame to meet the commitment to the
Government and people of Lucknow.

Atthe end, | would also like to thank the citizens of Lucknow for their overwhelming support to the project and
seek their continued whole hearted patronage in future.

| would like to assure all of you and the people of Lucknow that a very small but extremely hardworking and
professionally competent team of LMRC will leave no stone unturned in accomplishing tough targets ahead

and make the City proud.

Thanking You

Sd/-
(Kumar Keshav)
Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 5th Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Accounts, Auditors’ Report and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon for the
financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2018.

1. Financial Results and Performance

The financial position of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31stMarch, 2018

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For FY 2017-2018 For FY 2016-2017
Total Income 7487.35 1850.65
Less: Operating Expenses 5650.94 3155.04
Less: Depreciation 4430.84 303.48
Less: Financial Expenses 82.64 1.00
Less: Exceptional Items (216.54) (49.36)
Profit (Loss) Before Tax (2893.61) (1658.23)
Add/ (Less): Tax Expense 355.33 (239.22)
Net Profit (Loss) After Tax (2538.28) (1897.45)
Transfer to General Reserves - -
Profit Carried Forward to the Balance Sheet - -

Transfer to General Reserves:
The Board has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve.
Dividend for the Financial Year 2017-18

During the year under review i.e. FY 2017-18 company have losses, the Board of Directors do not
recommend any Dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company.

2. Status of the Lucknow Metro Rail Project

The Company is a Joint Venture of Government of India (Gol) & Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP) for
implementation of Lucknow Metro Rail Project as an Integrated Rapid Mass Public Transport System in
Lucknow. It is a 50:50 jointly owned Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) of Government of India (Gol) and
Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP) and incorporated under the Companies Act 1956.

—
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3. Project Status of Phase IA

The 8.5 km “Priority Corridor” of the North-South Corridor (Phase 1A) is already operational for public
services with effect from 5th September, 2017. The civil work of the remaining stretch of 14.378 km is
going atarapid pace to finish the job well ahead of the target.

Out of this, the civil work for the 3.67 km underground section comprising the Hussainganj, Sachivalaya
and Hazratganj route is almost complete. Work for the

Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport Underground Metro
station is also progressing at a fast pace.

Company has also started laying tracks and the work of
the Over Head Electrification (OHE) for providing
power supply to the Metro trains for the balanced
elevated corridor from KD Singh Babu Stadium to
Munshipulia. The Civil work for the Amausi Metro
station is complete with the finishing and the Electrical
& Mechanical works going at present.

Lucknow Metro is slated to commission the whole
North-South corridor (Phase 1A) from Chaudhary .
Charan Singh Airportto Munshipulia by April, 2019. Transport Nagar Metro Stationa

4. Company Creates History — Inaugurates Metro in less than three years by
commencement of Revenue Operation

On 5th September, 2017, Lucknow Metro created a history by inaugurating Metro for commercial services
in less than three years. It has earned the distinction of being the fastest ever Metro Rail Project execution in
the country. It is a matter of gratification for the Board of Directors of your company to report that the
Priority Section 1A of Phase |, from Transport Nagar to Charbagh with a section length of 8.5 kms and 8
stations, was inaugurated by the Honorable Home Minister Shri Rajnath Singh on 5th September 2017, in

Inauguration for Commercial Services of Lucknow Metro Train for Priority Corridor (Phase-1A) on 5th September, 2017

“
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the august presence of His Excellency, the Governor of Uttar Pradesh, the Honorable Chief Minister of
Uttar Pradesh, the Honorable Union Minister for Urban Housing and Urban Affairs, and many other
dignitaries. The inaugural ceremony was well attended by the people from the various cross sections of the
society with great enthusiasm and alacrity. The entire city of Lucknow was in a festive mood in welcoming
their Lucknow Metro; the first Metro Rail Project in the State.

The 8.5 km “Priority Corridor” of the North — South Metro Corridor (Phase 1A) between Transport Nagar &
Charbagh consisting of eight elevated Metro stations. It’s been a landmark achievement in the history of
Metro Rail Project execution in the country which has set a new benchmark in Metro construction in India.

Lucknow Metro is the first Metro in the country which has tied up with Radio City 91.1 FM and launched its
very own FM Radio. It is now providing specialized content, public announcements, jingles and
melodious music at all Metro stations for the commuters of Lucknow Metro. In order to provide a push to
government’s ‘Digital India’ campaign and an extended
benefit for the Metro commuters, Lucknow Metro

started providing free Wi-Fi facility to its ‘Go Smart’

card users at all its operational Metro stations. Your

Company has also taken up various initiatives to make

its station facilities for differently able person.

The Priority Section —1A section was opened to the
general public on 6thSeptember 2017. A robust system
of receiving public enquiries and feedback has been
established from the first day of operations. A
Passenger Helpline was also started and mechanism of
recording written feedback has also been put in place
at stations. Public has shown considerable enthusiasm
in sharing their feedback about the system. An efficient
mechanism for addressing public complaints has also
been put in place. The helpline is increasingly
becoming the one-point contact for the people of

Lucknow with LMRCL. Your Company also believes in Shri DurgaShanker Mishra, Secretary, (MoHUA), Gol
ial & icinclusi dhasi lved delivering speech during the Metro Diwas Celebration on
SOCla economic inciusion an as involved. 5th September, 2018

5. Status of Underground Metro
Stations Work

Starting the underground civil work on 1st
August, 2016 from the Sachivalaya Metro
Station site, LMRC has completed the civil
work for the 3.67 underground Metro stretch
comprising the Hussainganj, Sachivaalaya
and Hazratganj Metro stations in less than
two years though it requires different kind
of construction work for various Metro
lines and stations. The total length of the
5.8m dia tunnel from Sachivalaya ; /4 /i
Underground Metro station to Hazratganj Work of Rigid Overhead Conductor System (ROCS) Inside Metro Tunnel
underground Metro stationis811m. Between Sachivalaya and Hazratganj.

_11_
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The Company has achieved two tunnel breakthroughs — one after the other — on 7th & 8th May, 2018 when
TBMs namely ‘Gomti’ and ‘Ganga’ emerged out at Hazratganj Metro construction site after breaking the
wall. With the completion of this drive, Lucknow Metro has successfully completed tunneling work
between Hazratganj which constitutes about 75% of the total scope of tunneling which has been planned
to be carried out between Charbagh to Hazratganj.

6. Rolling Stock

The rolling stock for Lucknow
Metro Rail Corporation consisting
of 80 cars for 20 trains and Train
Control & Signalling System for
Lucknow Metro Phase-1A has been
supplied by a Consortium of
ALSTOM Transport India Ltd,
Bangalore & ALSTOM Transport
SA, France. The trains were
supplied within a very tight
schedule of 64 weeks in one of the
shortest period known for trains
supply after placing an order. The
Company has the credit of

completing the signalling trials and
RDSO conducted Oscillation The LMRC Team with Managing Director, during the unloading of 20th

trials within the shortest known Rolling Stock (Metro Train)
period in India to ensure fastest
commissioning of a metro project within three years of start of construction.

These state of the art trains designed in France are manufactured in India by ALSTOM Transport India Ltd
in their plant near Chennai while Train Control & Signalling System will be supplied by ALSTOM
Transport SA, France.

MRTS proposed in Lucknow is characterized by short inter-station distance of about one km between the
stations, having design speed of 90 kmph & schedule speed of 32 to 35km per hour including dwell
time/stoppage of 30 seconds per station and design headway of 100 second.

LMRC trains are energy efficient, reliable and better comfort to passengers in terms of riding quality, lower-
noise level and environment friendly. The body shell of cars made of stainless steel are lightweight. The
highly energy efficient Trains are with regenerative braking to feed theenergy back to overhead electrical
energy system during braking. All systems in the train are monitored & selectively controlled by a
microprocessor based Train Control & Management System (TCMS).

7. Lucknow Metro Starts Construction Work of Receiving Sub Station (RSS) At Mahila
Polytechnic, Munshipulia

Lucknow Metro started the construction work of state-of-the-art 220kV/33kV/25kV Receiving Sub Station
(RSS) cum Auxiliary main Sub Station cum Traction Sub Station at the Mahila Polytechnic, Munshipulia on
8th December, 2017. This sub-station will feed power to the entire 22.878 km long North - South Corridor
(Phase 1A) from the Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport to Munshipulia. This RSS is designed to feed 25kV
traction power and 33kV auxiliary power to the entire Metro corridor of Phase 1A of the Lucknow Metro
Rail Project

—
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8. Signalling, Train Control, Lifts & Escalators

The state of art signalling system based on “Communication based Train Control” (CBTC) with Continuous
Automatic Train Control System (CATS) has been supplied. The main features of Train Control & Signalling
system for Lucknow MRTS are Automatic Train Protection (ATP) with Cab Signalling with Track to train
communication through Coded Audio Frequency Track Circuits, Automatic Train Operation System (ATO),
Automatic Train Supervision System (ATS) with Automatic Route Setting and Automatic Train Regulation.

The trains run in between stations automatically with minimum intervention of Train driver with the provision
of Automatic Train operation system which also ensures that the train achieves timely, accurate and smooth
station stops or stopping ahead of a restrictive point. The Automatic Train Supervision system ensure
automatic management of train movement by Automatic Route setting and Automatic Train regulation by
supervising the train movement continuously and optimizing the train movements in case of abnormalities.

The work for Telecommunication System has been awarded to M/s L & T. The design for the entire corridor
has been finalized. For Priority Section all major materials and Signalling & Telecommunication
equipments are installed.

The work for Escalators for Phase-1A i.e. North south corridor has been awarded to consortium of
Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual Industry Group Co. Ltd., China & Stone India Limited, India. The work for
Lifts for Phase-1A i.e. North south corridor has been awarded to M/s Johnson Lift Pvt. Ltd. All the Escalators
& Lifts of priority section were commissioned before ROD of the section and at present these are in public
use. Delivery of Lifts and Escalators for balance section is in progress.

9. Automatic Fare Collection System

System (AFC) under an
innovative implementation
model. In this business model, a
consortium led by HDFC Bank
bears the capital and
maintenance cost of the
implementation of the AFC
system for 12 years. HDFC Bank
will also issue co-branded smart
cards of EVM standards, which
can be used as tickets for
Lucknow Metro and assorted
value cards at other Points of Sale
(PoS). The smart card was
officially launched during the
inaugural ceremony of Lucknow
Metro. AFC equipment, both on
site and on cloud has been
installed and commissioned for
the first 8 stations from Transport Nagar to Charbagh. AFC system has been working satisfactorily since the
opening of the section for revenue operation. Some of the salient features of the AFC system are:

Automatic Fare Collection (AFC) System at Metro station

e Useof QR coded tickets for transit.

e EVMstandard Contactless Smart Card for transit operation.

—
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Your Company is also in process of implementing an open-loop mobility card for ticketing solution, which
will be valid across various modes of urban public transport that will enable customers to purchase tickets
for transit as well as to effect other non-transit payments.

Your Company has developed an App for Lucknow Metro. This will provide a digital environment driven
by transportation systems where passengers can avail customized value-added services

10. Alternate Revenue Initiatives

With a view to shore up its bottom line, your Company is exploring ways to leverage the indirect
beneficiaries and other sources for alternate incomes. The avenues for non-fare box revenue has been
identified and explored and includes the following:

Advertisements

Commercial Development & Rentals
Property Development

Leasing of Optic Fiber Cables
Leasing of tower spaces

Parking

Company is getting revenue from advertisement, Commercial Development & Rental parking and leasing
of tower spaces.

11

Various efforts are being initiated by your company to further improve the
transportation infrastructure in the city. In terms of its project sanction conditions, your
Company has also been mandated to pursue the integration of various modes of
transport and support for Lucknow City. To realize this vision, your Company has
initiated several steps and conceived projects well beyond the construction of the
Metro Rail. For this company has hired the services of E rickshaw as last mile
connectivity selection of preferred partner / operator of first and last mile connectivity
to and from metro stations, for this company has given the contract to M/s Kinetic
Green Energy and Power Solutions Ltd to provide a better connectivity with various
metro stations.

Connectivity Initiatives

Visit of Government Delegation of Indian Ambassadors/High Commissioners during their visit to Lucknow Metro Depot

—
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12. Execution of Metro Projects in various cities of Uttar Pradesh

The GoUP vide letter No. 38/8-7-8-18 Metro/2017 dated 11-1-2018 has approved the reconstitution of
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (LMRC) the existing 50:50 jointly owned company of Gol and
GoUP as a Single SPV and recommend to change the name of the company as Uttar Pradesh Metro Rail
Corporation Limited (UPMRC) for implementation of various Metro Rail projects in various important
cities of State of Uttar Pradesh.

The detailed project report (DPR) of Kanpur, Agra and Meerut Metros are in under process for approval of
Government of India.

13. Workshop cum Maintenance Depot

The Company Workshop cum Maintenance
Depot of the North-South Metro corridor
(Phase TA) is constructed at 32nd Battalion,
P.A.C. campus, Transport Nagar Lucknow in
approximately 52 acres of land. The Depot
have world class modern state-of-the-art
facilities at Workshop Cum Inspection Bay
Lines, Stabling Yards, Automatic Train Wash
Plant, Depot Control Centre, Receiving Sub-
Station (RSS), Training Centre (Centre for
Excellence for Training) and other facilities.
This Depot is going to be Pioneering Depot
of LMRC and is first of its kind in Uttar
Pradesh.

Managing Director, Delivering Motivational Speech at CoET, Transport
Nagar Metro Depot

—
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14. Centre of Excellence for Training (CoET) at the Transport Nagar Metro Depot

The LMRC’s Centre of Excellence for Training (CoET)has started to function from a new specialized
building from 29th March, 2017. This building has been constructed inside the premises of the Transport
Nagar Metro Depot and has been equipped with state-of-the-art Metro training facilities to train fresh
recruits to LMRC. The center has capacity to cater the training needs of all upcoming metros in Uttar
Pradesh. The main facilities include CBT Class rooms, Desktops Simulators, Motion Simulators and state of
art library. CoET has seven state of art classrooms capable of imparting training to 300 plus trainees.

To improve soft-skills for excellent client service CoET conduct regular courses on communication and soft
skill with reputed institutions like Amity Business School, Luckow; Regional English Language Office US
Embassy and other reputed free-lance trainers.

It will be a role model for all other upcoming Metros in other important cities of the State like Kanpur,
Varanasi, Meerut, Agra, Allahabad and Gorakhpur.

15. LMRC Installs Automatic Waste Composting Machine at Depot; Takes a Step Ahead
Towards Maintaining a Cleaner & Greener UP

It is yet another step ahead taken by LMRC
towards maintaining a cleaner and greener
Uttar Pradesh. This machine will decompose
the waste and will produce good quality
organic compost which can be used in the
Depot for the vegetation, plants and greenery
for their optimal growth.

This fully automatic waste composting machine
will be fed with the Depot canteen kitchen
waste, depot garden waste and tobacco
products collected from commuters while
frisking them at Metro stations. In turn, the
machine will give good quality of organic
compost after eight days of decomposition Automatic Waste Composting Machine at Depot
cycle.
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16. OHE Mast Erection Between Transport Nagar and Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport
Metro Stretch)
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) has started the work for installing 25 KV overhead traction
between the Transport Nagar and the Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport Metro station stretch on 5th August,

2017. For this, Over Head Electrification (OHE) masts are being erected successively on the elevated
viaduct between this stretches.

The OHE mast erection is being done simultaneously with the installation of U-Girders in the section. It is
being done to expedite the process and complete it early.

Installation of conductor rail of Rigid Overhead Catanery System (ROCS) has also been started in the
underground tunnels simultaneously.
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17. Safety

LMRC is fully prepared with highest safety and security norms and for this the company has undertaken
various safety awareness campaigns for its staff, commuters, general public and contractors’” employees
working with us. Project, safety training has been made mandatory for all contractors” workers and site
staff. Competence Assessment based training has been organized on key trades like Lifting Engineers, Scaff
olders, Drivers & Operators, Pick and Carry Crane Operators etc.

All stations of the Priority section have installed the CCTVs, detectors, scanners, metal detectors etc. to
monitor Metro Stations for 24 Hours. All the Metro Stations of the Priority Section are earthquake resistant
and have been designed to sustain seismic force.

Priority section’s 8 stations and train depot has been certified as per ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001,
Lucknow Metro is in process of getting certification for the remaining section of the project phase 1A.The
Company is also under process to certified for ISO 9001, ISO 14001and OHSAS 18001 for operations.

> Celebration of National Safety Day (4th March, 2018):

On 4th March every year Company
observes a National Safety Day for the entire
Lucknow Metro Rail Project and to create
more awareness among staff, engineers, and
agencies staff and workers observed for the
entire week and organized Training
Program on Heavy Lifting and material
handling to LMRC engineers and agencies’
staff, Quiz and slogan competition,
Behavior Based Safety Program and Awards
and Prize distribution to Best Safe
Contractor award, Housekeeping awards,
Safe Erection Awards

Plge Cmny on National Safety Week
> Celebration of World Environment Day (5th June, 2018):

World Environment Day is the biggest annual event for positive environmental action and takes place
every 5 June. World Environment Day is a day for everyone, everywhere activities were performed as
part of the celebration includes Sapling Plantation in Transport Nagar Train Depot, LMRC,
Environment Awareness Training imparted to LMRC Employees by Programme Director, Centre for
Environment Education with Quiz competition among the LMRC employees were conducted to raise
awareness about environmental issues, Slogan and Poster making competition was conducted to
encourage participation in conservation of environment and Award and Certificates were awarded to
winner of various competition.

> Solar Initiative Milestones:

LMRC has installed T MWp capacity of solar panels on the roof of its Workshop Cum Inspection Bay and
rooftop of Stabling line shed at the Transport Nagar Metro Depot which is producing electricity for
usage in the Depot, Metro Stations and at other Metro utilities with effect from 14th March, 2018. This
solar project has been commissioned by LMRC underthe RESCO model without investing any public money.

Solar Panels of 10 KW capacity has also been installed at the roof of Transport Nagar Receiving Sub Station
(RSS) atthe Transport Nagar Metro Depot for meeting out the operational power requirements of the RSS.
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Solar panel at the Roof of Metro’s Registered Office

Solar panels of 12 KW capacity have also
been installed at the roof of the Lucknow
Metro’s Administrative Building at Vipin
Khand, Gomti Nagar.These are also
operational and the office is already saving
a substantial amount on the electricity bill
on account of this.

Apart from these solar initiatives, Lucknow
Metro has taken several energy
conservation measures such as use of
regenerative braking in the trains which is
resulting in saving of 30 to 35 per cent
traction energy thereby resulting in
reduction in emission of Green House Gases
(GHQ), use of 1% criteria for underground stations in the air-conditioning system for the stations, using
Variable Voltage Variable Frequency (VVVF) drive for all lifts and escalators, provision of LED lights at
stations, use of energy efficient equipment for Environment Control System (ECS) and Tunnel
Ventilation System (TVS) system for the underground section etc.
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18. Awards & Accolades for Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

» On 5th June, 2017,Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) was
awarded with the International Organization for Standardization
(ISO) 14001: 2004 & the Occupational Health & Safety
Assessment Series (OHSAS) 18001: 2007 certificates in
recognition of the organization’s integrated management system

> On 2nd November, 2017, Company won the renowned Dun &
Bradstreet Infra Award, 2017 in the Metro Rail category for
completing and commissioning the 8.5 km “Priority Corridor” of
the North —South Corridor (Phase 1A) project in a record time of
less than three years.

> On 6th November, 2017, Company was conferred with a special Best Employee Award
award for its commendable initiative in the category of "Best
Urban Mass Transit" for the ‘Lucknow Metro Rail Project Phase 1A
(North — South Corridor)” in10th Urban Mobility India Conference &
Exhibition and CODATU XVII Conference held at the Hyderabad
International Convention Centre (HICC), Hyderabad (Telangana).

> On TstFebruary, 2018 Lucknow Metro was awarded for adopting
‘Green Initiatives’ at the ‘Smart City Summit’ at Gurugram
(Haryana) for implementing a green mode of urban transport in
the capital city of Uttar Pradesh.

> On 18th February, 2018, Lucknow Metro was also awarded with
the renowned ET Now CSR Leadership Award, 2018 under the
“Smart Transport Initiative” for undertaking and implementing
Lucknow Metro — one of the smartest transport initiatives of the
Government.

> On 23rd February, 2018, Company won the
‘Technology Sabha Award, 2018’ in the
Wireless Category for linking Wi-Fi services
with its ‘GoSmart’ Card. by the Indian Express
Group during the 23rd edition of the
Technology Award at Indore, Madhya Pradesh.
Lucknow Metro’s underground project
executed by M/s TATA-Gulermak JV is awarded
with the highly acclaimed “RoSPA Silver Award”
on 5th July, 2018 for the health and safety
performance during the period of January 01,
2017 to December 31, 2017 by the Royal
Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA)
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19. Indian Green Building Council (IGBC) Certifies LMRC a Green Metro Rail System;
Awards Platinum Certification to All Its Eight Stations

The Indian Green Building Council (IGBC) — one of the apex body in India to rate and certify a system as a
‘Green’ system — has certified LMRC a “Green Metro Rail System”, thereby, awarding platinum certificate
to all its eight Metro stations on the ‘Priority Corridor’ from Transport Nagar to Charbagh on31st August, 2017.

Platinum certificates and plaques for 8 stations of the priority corridor. This is highest green rating for any
civil structure or building which has been awarded to LMRC. It is yet another major milestone that has
been achieved by LMRC. It is worth mentioning here that Lucknow Metro has been certified a ‘Green Metro
Rail” much before the start of its commercial services.

With this LMRC becomes the 1st government entity in Lucknow region and 1st one in Transport sector in
U.P.to attain Indian green buildings council’s Platinum certificate.

20. Share Capital

Your Company has received Rs. 639.00 Crore towards
equity during the year from the Government of India and
Government of Uttar Pradesh. The total paid up Share
Capital as on 31st March 2018 is Rs. 1581.65 Crore. As
per the financing pattern approved from Government of
India, Rs. 3502 crores are to be arranged through Foreign
Funding Agency. EIB (European Investment Bank) has
agreed to Finance EURO 450 Million. The Finance
Contract for Tranche A of EURO 200 Million was signed
on 30.03.2016 and Finance Contract for Tranche B of
EURO 250 Million was signed on 31st March, 2017. Gol
disbursed Rs. 981 Cr. to LMRCinFY 2017-2018. Yoga Training for employees

21. Human Resource

The Management of LMRCL always feels that motivated, contented and satisfied workforce is the key for
the successful achievement in its organizational goals. Keeping this objective in view, the Company is
giving paramount importance for human resource development and realization of its potential. The
employer-employee relationship continues to be cordial throughout the year and LMRCL was able to meet
the targets. The Company’s employment practices are aligned to attract and retain talent.

As on 31st March 2018, the employee strength of the Company was 454 (321in Project and 133 in
Operations & Maintenance). In view of the approaching deadline for completion of construction activities
for North South Corridor and the subsequent revenue operations, the intake of manpower and their
competency building is in progress. LMRC has been imparting regular trainings and organize various
programmes, workshops, etc. for its employee’s regular development.

The guidelines issued by the Gol & GoUP from time to time with regard to reservation for
SCs/STs/PH/OBCs/ PWD/Women/ESM in recruitment are being followed.

22. Corporate Social Responsibility

LMRC CSR policy is aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its focus on education and
skill development, health & Wellness and environmental sustainability including bio diversity, energy and
water conservation. Also embedded in this objective is support to the marginalized cross section of the
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society by providing opportunities to improve their quality of life. The projects undertaken will be within
the broad frame work of schedule VIl of the Company Act 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of Shri Nitin
Ramesh Gokarn, Principal Secretary, Housing & Urban Planning Department, Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi,
Director (Finance), Shri Mahendra Kumar (Director RS & S)

During the year under review Company does not have any CSR liability on account of the losses in previous
three financial years. Accordingly, company has not undertaken any CSR activity during the current year.

23. Prevention of sexual harassment at workplace

Lucknow Metro is committed towards for providing a safe working environment to its female employees. In
this regard, a lecture on gender sensitization has been included in the induction training curriculum to
inculcate the culture of righteous behavioramong new recruits.

The Company has a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. The Company has
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in line with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 consisting of the following members to look
into the cases pertaining to sexual harassment of women and to facilitate a safe working environment free
from sexual harassment.

Composition of the Internal Complaints Committee:

® Ms. Pushpa Bellani - Presiding Officer

e Ms. Deepti Agarwal - External Member
(Practicing Company Secretary)

e ShriS.A.Raza - Member

e Ms. Manju Lata - Member

one case of sexual harassment reported during the year under review and till this date the case has been
reported and disposed off.

24. Training

During the year under review O&M employees have been imparted various training matched to their
position, group and department, at Training Institute. Training Institute also conducts various Management
Development Programme and Training Programme on Signalling, Train Control System, Fare Collection
System and Ballast less Track for O &M staff. The Training Institute has been imparting customized training
programmes in the field of Construction, Operations, Maintenance and Customer Care.

Training of Employees at Amity University
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25. Right to Information

The Company has implemented the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005. Total 91 RTI
applications and appeals were processed during the year.

26. Vigilance

The Vigilance Department in the Company is headed by the Chief Vigilance Officer, who reports to
Managing Director, Lucknow Metro. The Vigilance Unit follows the Central Vigilance Commission
guidelines, extant internal guidelines concerning the business and affairs of the Company. Prevention
rather than punitive action is the sole thrust in the preventive checks. Outcome of the checks is carefully
drafted into system improvement circulars for plugging the loopholes.

27. Fixed Deposit

The Company has neither invited any deposits from Public under Section 2(31), 73 and 74 of the
Companies Act, 2013 nor accepted or received any deposits from the public.

28. Particulars of Employees

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are not applicable.

29. Board of Directors

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited comprises
of 13 Directors, of whom 5 Directors are nominees of the Government of India, 5 Directors are nominees
of the Government of Uttar Pradesh and 3 are Functional Directors. The Secretary, Ministry of Housing &
Urban Affairs, Government of India is the Chairman while the Managing Director is a nominee of the
Government of Uttar Pradesh. A detailed note on the Board of Directors is provided under the section
‘Corporate Governance Report’.

30. Number of Meetings of the Board

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times, on the 22™
May, 2017, 1" September, 2017, 6" January, 2018, 9" February, 2018

31. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted various committees of board in commensurate with the size and nature of the
operations of your Company and legal provisions. These are the Audit Committee & the Investment
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination Remuneration Committee, Sexual
Harassment Committee. Each of these sub-Committees has clearly spelt out Terms of Reference which is
duly approved by the Board. These committees meet according to the requirements of your company
from time to time. The details of the committees of the Board are provided under the section ‘Corporate
Governance Report’.

32. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
In compliance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

e in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Indian Accounting Standards had been
followed along with proper explanations for material departures;

¢ the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

—



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profitand loss of the Company for that period;

e the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

¢ the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going-concern basis;

e the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

33. Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has no Independent Directors on its Board presently, as the Government Company is
exempted from appointment of Independent Directors in the Board of the Company.

34. Extract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013 isavailable on the website of the Company, link of which is given as under:

http://Imrcl.com/resource/downloads/

35. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments
Duringthe year under Report, the Company has not :-
a. givenany loanto any person or other body corporate;

b. given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any other body corporate or
person; and

c. Acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, as
prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

36. Related Party Transactions

Duringthe year under report, the Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013.

37. Material changes and commitments
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company,
that have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this Report.
a) Waste Management:

LMRC considers today’s waste as tomorrow’s raw material. The aim is to minimize waste generation
and to recycle the waste. The following measures have been adopted to identify and recycle waste:

a. 100% waste segregation is ensured at sites.
b. The waste paper is being recycled into useful office stationery through an outsourced agency.
c. Trainingand awareness on minimization of waste generation at source itself.

b) Water Management:

Lucknow Metro is very much concerned with water conservation in construction and operation &
maintenance activities. Concerted efforts are being made to reduce water consumption. The following
initiatives have been taken:
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a. Rain water harvesting structures have been installed at stations, depots, residential colonies, along
viaduct, etc.

b. Reuse of Effluent Treatment Plant/Sewage Treatment Plant treated water.
Using sewage water and Reverse Osmosis reject relaying of pipe work and use of low flow plumbing

d. Use of efficient dual flush toilets and use of lower capacity flushing tank for toilet, encouraging
waterless urinals

e. Encouraging mopping for station cleaning instead of washing

c) Conservation of Energy:

Lucknow Metro is taking several energy conservation measures, such as, the use of regenerative braking in
the trains which will result in saving of 30 to 35 per cent traction energy, thereby resulting in reduction in
emission of Green House Gases (GHG), using Variable Voltage Variable Frequency (VVVF) drive for all
lifts and escalators, provision of LED lights at stations, use of energy efficient equipment for Environmental
Control System (ECS) and Tunnel Ventilation System (TVS) for the underground station etc.

Currently, TMWpcapacity roof mounted photo voltaic cells installed on train stabling shed and
inspection line sheds has been commissioned by Lucknow Metro under the RESCO model. Because of
all these novel measures, society will be able to recover the entire investment cost of the project in
5 years, its Economic Internal Rate of Return (EIRR) of the Project being 19.46%.

d) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
During the year there were no foreign exchange earnings. The details of the Foreign Outgo as under

AMT. in INR
S.No. | Particulars 2017-18 (in lakhs) 2016-17 (in lakhs)
1 Contracts payments 22190 16618
2 Professional and Consultancy Fees 3468 1535
3 Tour, travel and others 15 32
4 Capital Goods 27100 Nil

Erection of 60 Meter Special Steel Span near Nishatganj over the main line Railway operational track
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Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Details of new Directors appointed and Directors ceased/retired during the year given below:

Appointment during the year Cessation/Retired during the year
S. |Name of the | Designation Date of S. |Nameofthe |Designation |Date of
No. | Director Appointment| No.| Director cessation
Appointed Ceased
1. |Dr. Anup Additional Chief [27/03/2018 | 1. [ShriRama Principal 12/04/2017
Chandra Secretary, Raman Secretary, Ind.
Pandey Infrastructure Dev. GoUP
and Industrial
Department,
GoUP
2. |ShriManoj | Additional 24/08/2017 | 2. | Shri Bhuvanesh| Commissioner, |12/04/2017
Kumar Secretary, Kumar Lucknow
D& CMoHUA
3. |[ShriNitin Principal Secretary,| 27/03/2018 | 3. | Shri Mukul Additional 16/03/2018
Ramesh Housing and Singhal Chief
Gokarn Urban Planning Secretary,
Department, GoUP Housing and
Urban
Planning
Department,
GoUP
4. |ShriVinay | Managing 27/03/2018 | 4. [ Shri Alok Sinha | Additional 16/03/2018
Kumar Singh | Director, Chief Secretary,
National Capital Infrastructure
Region Transport and Industrial
Corporation Department,
GoUP
5. [ ShriK.K Director 16/03/2018
Saberwal (Finance),
DMRC
6. | ShriK.K Executive 30/01/2018
Aggarwal Director (PIng),
Railways
7. | Shri Daljeet |Director 31/10/2017
Singh (W&1), LMRC
8. [ShriMukesh  |Finance 28/02/2018
Mittal Secretary,
GoUP
9. | ShriRajiv Secretary 21/06/2017
Gauba MoHUA, Gol
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38. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows:
1. Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director
2. Shri Mahendra Kumar, Whole Time Director (Rolling Stock & Systems)
3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, Whole Time Director (Finance) and CFO
4. ShriSanjay Mishra, Whole Time Director (Works & Infrastructure)
5. Smt. Pushpa Bellani, Company Secretary

Remuneration and other details of the Key Managerial Personnel for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2018 are mentioned in the extract of the Annual Return

Note of Appreciation

The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered and the expert advice
provided by Directors whose tenure ceased during the year. These Directors are Shri Rajiv Gauba, Shri
Mukul Singhal, Shri Alok Sinha, Shri K K Saberwal, K K Aggarwal, Shri Rama Raman, Shri Bhuvanesh
Kumar, Shri Mukesh Mittal.

39. Significant and Material orders:

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or any courts or tribunals impacting the
going-concern status of the Company and affecting its operations.

40. Risk Management Policy:

Your Company is committed to identify potential risks before they occur so that the risk management
activities may be planned and invoked as and when needed across the life of the project and to mitigate its
adverse impacts on achieving the larger objectives for this your Company has identified the following
specific areas for Risk Management:

1. toensurethatall the currentand future material risk exposures of the Company are identified, assessed,
quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed on time;

2. toensurethathigh priority risks are aggressively managed and eliminated;

3. toensurethatall risks are cost-effectively managed throughout the project;

4. to promote information sharing at all levels of the management to make informed decisions on issues
critical to the success of the project;

5. toensure compliance with the appropriate regulations, wherever applicable.
6. Your Company has adopted the following measures to achieve and improve the specific objectives:

e Conducting quarterly internal audit by independent auditors; their observations are reviewed by the
Audit Committee and corrective actions taken wherever found appropriate.

e Physical verification of assets at regular intervals by a team constituted for the purpose and by the
internal auditors.

41. Internal Financial Control

The Board has adopted robust policies and procedures to ensure the orderly and efficient conduct of the
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Company'’s business by safeguarding its assets, preventing and detecting errors and frauds, ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation and submission of
reliable financial disclosures.

42. Corporate Governance

Your Company adheres to impeccable Corporate Governance standards and pursues transparency,
integrity and accountability in all its activities. A separate section entitled ‘Corporate Governance Report’
has been annexed to this report.

43. Auditors

a) Statutory Auditor

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 M/s D S Shukla & Co, Chartered Accountants were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(C&AG) who shall continue in office till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. Report of the
Statutory Auditors forming a part here of has been annexed suitably.

b) Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s Dileep Dixit &Co., Practicing
Company Secretaries, was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the year 2017-18.
The report from the secretarial auditor and the explanations or comments to every qualification made by
the Company Secretary in practice in his Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report.

¢) Internal Auditor

M/s. S N Kapoor &Associates, Chartered Accountants, Lucknow, were appointed as the Internal Auditors of
the Company to conduct Internal Audit and their report is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.

44. Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors places on record their appreciation for the advice, guidance and support given by
the various Ministries, Departments and Agencies of Govt. of India. and Govt. of Uttar Pradesh.

The Board of Directors expresses sincere thanks to European Investment Bank for providing loan to this project.

The Board also acknowledges and extends sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
Secretarial Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors, various national and international
contractors, consultants, technical experts and suppliers for their continued support and co-operation.

The Board of Directors wish to place on record appreciation for the hard work and commitment put in by
the Company’s employees at all levels due to which project targets are being achieved and train operations
are going to be start. The Board also look forward to their services with zeal and dedication in the years
ahead to enable the Company to scale greater heights.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Kumar Keshav Ajai Kant Rastogi
Date: 23.07.2018 Managing Director Director Finance
DIN-02908695 DIN-07228424
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance policy of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (LMRCL) is evolved from the
philosophy of adherence to impeccable Corporate Governance practices by ensuring transparency, accountability
and standards of fair dealing and ethics for attaining its corporate objective of providing a safe, reliable, efficient,
viable and customer-friendly Metro system for the city of Lucknow. LMRCL pursues the highest standards of ethics
and maintains core values of integrity and trust in the entire arena in which it operates.

In the performance of its functions, LMRCL is guided by the CVC guidelines, the Articles of Association
(AoA) of the Company, the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, applicable accounting standards,
regulations prescribed by authorities like the C&AG, provisions of the Right to Information Act 2005 and
Rules made there under. In addition, all the applicable statutes governing the functioning of the
organization in respect of safety, health, environment, welfare of the employees and those engaged through
contractors, provision for fair compensation, rehabilitation and resettlement of project affected persons etc.
are appropriately complied with.

1. Board of Directors

1. Composition of the Board of Directors

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited
comprises of 13 Directors, of whom 5 Directors are nominees of the Government of India, 5
Directors are nominees of the Government of Uttar Pradesh and 3 are Functional Directors. The
Secretary, Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs, Government of India is the Chairman while the
Managing Director, is anominee of the Government of Uttar Pradesh.

The Composition of the Board ason 31.03.2018 is as follows:

Name Designation

Shri Durga Shanker Mishra Chairman, Secretary, Ministry of Housing &Urban Affairs
(MoHUA)

Shri Kumar Keshav Managing Director, LMRC

Shri Manoj Kumar Nominee Director, GOI
Additional Secretary (D&C), MoHUA

Smt. Jhanja Tripathy Nominee Director, GOI

Joint Secretary & FA,MoHUA

Shri Vinay Kumar Singh Nominee Director, GOI
Managing Director, National Capital Region Transport
Corporation Limited

Dr. Anup Chandra Pandey Nominee Director, GoUP
Additional Chief Secretary, Infrastructure and Industrial
Department, GoUP

Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn Nominee Director, GoUP
Principal Secretary, Housing and Urban Planning Department, GoUP
Shri Anil Garg Nominee Director, GoUP

Commissioner, Lucknow
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Shri Mahendra Kumar Whole-time Director
Director (RS&S), LMRC

Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi Whole-time Director
Director (Finance), LMRC

During the period under report, the following Directors were inducted based on nomination
received from Government of India and Government of Uttar Pradesh are:

1. ShriManoj Kumar

2. Dr. Anup ChandraPandey
3. ShriNitin Ramesh Gokarn
4. ShriVinay Kumar Singh

2. Note of Appreciation

The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered and the expert advice
provided by following Directors whose tenure ceased during the year under review;

Name of the Director Ceased | Designation Date of cessation
Shri Rama Raman Principal Secretary, Ind. Dev. GoUP 12/04/2017
Shri Bhuvanesh Kumar Commissioner, Lucknow 12/04/2017
Shri Mukul Singhal Additional Chief Secretary, Housing and 16/03/2018
Urban Planning Department, GoUP
Shri Alok Sinha Additional Chief Secretary, Infrastructure 16/03/2018
and Industrial Department, GoUP
Shri K.K Saberwal Director (Finance), DMRC 16/03/2018
Shri K.K Aggarwal Executive Director (PIng), Railways 30/01/2018
Shri Daljeet Singh Director (W& ), LMRC 31/10/2017
Shri Mukesh Mittal Finance Secretary, GoUP 28/02/2018
ShriRajiv Gauba Secretary, MoHUA, Gol 21/06/2017

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises professionals with proven administrative and
execution capabilities, committed to the objective of the company, who collectively direct the affairs
of the Company.

3. Board Procedure

Board Meetings are conducted regularly for critical evaluation and review of the performance of the
Company and for ensuring effective implementation of management decisions. The Company has
streamlined a procedure for holding the Board and its Committee Meetings, as explained below: -

Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board/Committee Meetings:

The meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of
the Board. To address specific urgent needs, meetings are also called at short notice. The Board also

—
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passes Resolutions by Circulation, but only for such matters, which are of utmost urgency and which
are permissible in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

The agenda papers are prepared by the Heads of Departments concerned and submitted to the
Managing Director. Duly approved detailed agenda notes, management reports and other
explanatory statements, backed by comprehensive background information, are circulated in
advance amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the
meetings.

In special and exceptional circum stances, additional or supplementary item(s), not on the agenda are
taken up for discussion with the permission of the Chair. The Board is also informed of major
events/items of approvals taken whenever necessary. The Managing Director at the Board Meetings
keeps the Board apprised of the overall performance of the Company. Board are view of the status of
actions taken on the directives of the Board in earlier meetings also forms a part of the agenda.

The members of the Board have complete access to all information of the Company.
Also, the Board meetings are conducted in line with the Secretarial Standards-1.
Briefing by the Managing Director:

At the beginning of each meeting of the Board, the Managing Director briefs the Board members
about the key developments including the status of the project and other important
achievements/developments relating to the Company in various areas.

Recording Minutes of proceedings at the Board meeting:

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board meeting are recorded and are entered in the Minutes Book.
The minutes of the Board Meetings are submitted for confirmation at its next meeting after these are
signed by the Chairman. The minutes of the meetings of the Sub-committees of the Board are placed
before the Board for its in formation.

Compliance:

The Heads of Departments, while preparing agenda notes ensure adherence to all the applicable
statutory requirements including the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the Articles of
Association and the CVC guidelines.

The employees of the Company pursue the duties and responsibilities entrusted to them. They
always maintain high moral standards and values in contributing to wards corporate functioning, and
the appropriate and timely guidance from the management, helps them to discharge their duties
effectively.

4. Meeting of share holders

The Fourth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company was held on 1st September
2017 atregistered office of the company at Lucknow

5. Board Meetings

During the year FY 2017-2018, Four Board meetings were convened and held. The attendance of
each of the previous Directors and current Directors of the Company at the Board meetings held

—
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duringtheirtenure is as given below:

SI.No | Name No. of Meetings No. of Board
heldin2017-18 during the meetings
tenure of their attended
Directorship
1. Shri Durga Shanker Mishra 4 4
2. Shri Manoj Kumar 3 2
3. Smt. Jhanja Tripathy 4 3
4 Shri K. K. Aggarwal 3 2
5 Shri K. K. Saberwal 4 4
6 Shri Mukul Singhal 3 3
7 Shri Alok Sinha 3 1
8 Shri Mukesh Mittal 4 2
9. Shri Anil Garg 4 1
10 Shri Kumar Keshav 4 4
11 Shri Mahendra Kumar 4 4
12 Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi 4 4
13 Shri Daljeet Singh 2 2
14 Shri RamaRaman 0 0
15 Shri Bhuvanesh Kumar 0 0

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Five Committees, commensurate with the size and nature of operation of
the Company. These are Audit Committee & Investment Committee, Sexual Harassment Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination remuneration Committee. Each of these
committees has clearly spelt out Terms of Reference duly approved by the Board. These Committees
meet according to the requirements of the Company from time to time.

a. Audit Committee:
The composition of the Audit Committee of the Company as on date is:

SNo. | Name of the Director Designation Date of appointment at
Member of the Committee

1 Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn | Nominee Director, GoUP 27.03.2018
Principal Secretary, Housing
and Urban Planning
Department, GoUP

2 Shri Ajay Kumar Shukla Member, Secretary, 02.05.2018
Finance Department,
Government of Uttar Pradesh

—
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3 Smt. Jhanja Tripathy Member, Joint Secretary & 24.08.2017
FA, MoUD
4 Shri Mahendra Kumar Member, 24.08.2017
Director (RS&S) LMRC Director (RS &S), LMRC

On 24.8.2017 the Board of Directors has reconstituted the Audit Committee by replacing Shri
Sada kant with Shri Mukul Singhal. On account of appointment of Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn in
place of Shri Mukul Singhal on 27.3.2018, he has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit
Committee. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, D(F) has been appointed in place of Shri Mahendra Kumar,
Director (RS&S) LMRC. On account of superannuation of Shri Mukesh Mittal on 28.2.2018 Shri
Ajay Kumar Shukla has been appointed as Nominee Director of the Company on 23.5.2018
accordingly he is also appointed as member of the Audit Committee.

The Committee met four times during the year under review.

Meeting No. Date of Meeting
10th 20.04.2017
11th 18.05.2017
12th 28.08.2017
13th 06.02.2018

General Manager (Finance), Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors of the Company were
also invited to attend the meetings of the committee. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are as approved by the Board in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act
2013 and rule made thereunder

SNo Name of the Member Meetings held in 2017-18 Meetings

of the Audit Committee during the tenure of their Attended
Membership

1. Shri Sada Kant 2 2

2. Shri Mukesh Mittal 4 3

3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi 2 2

4, Smt. Jhanja Tripathy, 2 0

5. Shri Mahendra Kumar, 2 2
Director (RS&S), LMRC

6. Shri Mukul Singhal 2 2

b. Investment Committee:
The composition of the Investment Committee of the Company is as follows as on date.

SNo Name of the Member Designation
1. Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director Chairman

2. Shri Mahendra Kumar, Director (RS&S) Member

3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, Director (Finance) Member

—
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The Investment Committee met three times during the year.

SNo Name of the Member Meeting heldin 2017-18 Meeting
during the tenure of their Attended
Membership
1. Shri Kumar Keshav 7 7
2. Shri Mahendra Kumar 7 7
3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi 7 7

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company was formed on 9-2-2018 and
composition of the committee as on date as mentioned below:

SNo Name of the Member Designation

1 Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn Principal Secretary, Housing & Urban Planning
Department and Nominee Director, GoUP

2 Shri Mahendra Kumar Director (Rolling Stock & System), LMRC

3 Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi Director (Finance), LMRC

During the year under review the CSR committee meeting has not been held.

d. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company as on date is:

S.No. | Name of the Director Designation

1 Shri Mukul Singhal Additional Chief Secretary, Housing & Urban
Planning Department, GoUP

2 *Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn Principal Secretary, Housing & Urban Planning
Department, GoUP

3 Shri Kumar Keshav Managing Director, LMRC

4 Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi Director (Finance), LMRC

*On account of appointment of Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn in place of Shri Mukul Singhal on
27.3.2018, he has been appointed as Chairman of the NRC committee on 06.06.2018

During the year NRC committee met only once on 06.02.2018 and all the member of the
committee attended the meeting.

2. Disclosures
a) There have been no materially significant related party transactions i.e., transactions of the Company
of a material nature with its promoters, the directors or the management, subsidiaries or relatives etc.

—
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That may have potential conflict of interest with the interest of the Company at large.

b) There were no cases of any statutory non-compliances by the Company or any instances of penalties
imposed or structures against the Company by any Statutory Authority.

c) There were no items of expenditure debited in the books of accounts, which were not for the purpose
of the business of the Company.

3. Company’s Website

The Company’s website is www.Imrcl.com All major information pertaining to the Company, including
the project, contracts, job recruitment processes etc are given on the website to disseminate timely
information about all procurement of goods and services. The website also provides information on all
important events, activities and progress of the Metro Rail project and other significant developments.

Address for correspondence:
Registered Office:

Administrative Building,
Vipin Khand, Gomti Nagar,
Lucknow-226010
Ph-0522-2304011

Email. csimrcl@gmail.com
Website: www.Imrcl.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Kumar Keshav Ajai Kant Rastogi
Managing Director Director Finance
Place: : DIN-02908695 DIN-07228424
ace: New Delhi

Date: 23.07.2018
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Annexure-I

Di|eep Dixit & Co. Email ID : cs.dilipdixit@gmail.com
Company Secretaries Contact Nos. : +91 8354980010

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

CIN: U60300UP2013SGC060836

Reg. Office: Administrative Building Vipin Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Near Dr. Ambedhkar Samajik,
Parivartan Sthal Lucknow -226010 Uttar Pradesh
E-mail id: csimrcl@gmail.com

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the
company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31st Day of March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st Day of March,
2018 accordingto the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not applicable
to the Company during Audit Period)

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not applicable to the
Company during Audit Period)

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

—
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(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’); (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (Not
applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable as the Company has not made any public offer of securities
during the period under review);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/Securities And Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (effective 28th October 2014) — (Not applicable as the
Company has not granted any options during the financial year under review);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
— (Not applicable as the securities issued by Company were not listed during the period under
review);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- (Not Applicable as the
Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year
under review);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not applicable as the Company is not a listed entity) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998- (Not
applicable as the Company has not bought back/propose to buyback any of its securities during
the financial year under review);

(vi)  OtherMiscellaneous and General laws to the extent as may be applicable specifically to the company).
| further report that the following are the other laws specifically applicable to the Company;
1. The Metro Railway (Construction of Works) Act, 1978;
2. Metro (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002
3. Metro Railway Amendment Act, 2009
We further report that the applicable financial laws, such as Direct and Indirect Tax Laws have not been

reviewed under my audit in its entirety as same falls under review of the statutory audit and by other designated
professionals.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

—



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

Para wise Report on specific observations / audit qualification, reservation or adverse remarks in respect of the
applicable laws are provided in the “Annexure A” attached with this report (forming integral part of report).

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and as per the orders issued by the
concerned regulatory body and government in this regard.

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance in most of the meetings, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

For M/s. Dileep Dixit & Co.

Sd/-
Dileep Kumar Dixit

Place: Lucknow FCS No. 6244
Date: 20/07/2018 C P No. 6770
Annexure A
1. Observation of intervention of more than 120 (one hundred and twenty) days between two consecutive

Board meetings more particularly between 29th and 30th meeting of the Board conducted during the
audit period pursuant to the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The Company has not approved the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy for the company neither
discloses contents of such Policy in its report nor has place it on the company's website.

For M/s. Dileep Dixit & Co.

Sd/-
Dileep Kumar Dixit
Place: Lucknow FCS No. 6244
Date: 20/07/2018 C P No. 6770

—
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Dileep Dixit & Co. Email ID : cs.dilipdixit@gmail.com
Company Secretaries Contact Nos. : +91 8354980010

To,

The Members,

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

CIN: U60300UP2013SGC060836

Reg. Office: Administrative Building Vipin Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Near DR Ambedhkar Samajik,
Parivartan Sthal Lucknow -226010 Uttar Pradesh
E-mail id: csimrcl@gmail.com

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company so far it is not concerned with our audit related matters.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s. Dileep Dixit & Co.

Sd/-
Dileep Kumar Dixit
Place: Lucknow FCS No. 6244
Date: 20/07/2018 C P No. 6770

—
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Comment on Draft Secretarial Audit Report of Secretarial Auditor of the Company
for Fy 2017-18

Annexure

Comment

Reply

1.

Observation of intervention of more than 120
(one hundred and twenty) days between two
consecutive Board meetings more particularly
between 29th and 30th meeting of the Board
conducted during the audit period pursuant to
the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies
Act, 2013

29th Board meeting was held on 1.9.2017 &
30th Board meeting was held on 6-1-2018.
There was delay of 6 days on account of the
calendar year ending, and due to pre occupied
& unavoidable reasons, the members were not
available for the meeting and hence the
meeting could not be conducted within the
stipulated days.

The Company has not approved the Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy for the company
neither discloses contents of such Policy in its
report nor has place it on the company's
website

The Board has constituted the CSR Committee
in the 31st Board meeting held on 09.2.2018.
The CSR Committee in the meeting held on
13.7.2018 approved the CSR policy of the
Company and recommend to the Board for
approval. After obtaining approval of the Board
the same will be placed on official website of
the Company.

(Company Secretary)
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Annexure | to the Directors’ Report Annexurel

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended 31st March, 2018
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Company
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U60300UP2013SGC60836

2. | Registration Date 25th November, 2013

3. | Name of the Company Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of the Company Government Company

5. | Address of the Registered Administrative Building, Vipin Khand
office & contact details Gomti Nagar,

Parivartan Sthal, Lucknow-226010
Phone: 05222304010,

Fax:

Email: csimrcl@gmail.com
Website: www.Imrcl.com

6. | Whetherlisted company Not Listed

7. | Name, Address & contact details of the NA
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. Name and Description of Main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. Products/ Services Product/ Service Company
1. Mass Rapid Transit Services 99642108 100%

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. | Name and address of the CIN/GLN | Holding/Subsidiar/ % of Application
No. | Company Associate share held section
1. Not Applicable

—
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)
a) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of shares held at the No. of shares held at the %Change
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year during
[As on 31-March, 2017] [As on 31-March, 2018] the year
Demat | Physical Total % of [Demat| Physical Total | % of
Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

(@) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - i -

b) Central Govt. -121260000(21260000(22.55% -165160000 [ 65160000 (41.20%

¢) State Govt(s) -173005000(73005000(77.45% -193005000 [ 93005000 [58.80%

d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

e) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - N -

f) Any other - - - - - - - - }

Total 94265000 94265000 100% 158165000{158165000[ 100%
shareholding of
Promoter (A)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions - - - - - - - i -

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - N -

b) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - i .

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - i -

d) State Govt(s). - - - - - - - -

e) Venture - - - - - - - i -
Capital Funds

f) Insurance - - - - - - R i i}
Companies

g) Flls - - - - - - 4 -

h) Foreign - - - - - - _ i -
Venture Capital
Funds

“
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i) Others (specify) - - - - - - R - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - - -

2. Non-Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian - - - - - - - ; -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual - - - - - - - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

Individual - - - - - - - i, R
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

=

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - ;

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas - - - - - - - - -
Corporate Bodies

Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - - -

Clearing Members - - - - - - - - _

Trusts - - - - - - - _

Foreign Bodies - - - - - - - - -
-DR

Sub-total - - - - - - - i R
(B)(2):-

Total Public - - - - - - - i R
Shareholding (B)
=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held - - - - - - - - .
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+0C)

—

94265000(94265000 | 100% 158165000( 158165000 [100%
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Sr. | Shareholder's Shareholding at beginning Shareholding at the end % Change in
No. | Name of the year of the year shareho-
Iding during
the year
No. of | % oftotal | % of Shares No. of | % of total| % of Shares
Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares Shares Pledged/
of the [ encumbered of the| encumbered
company | to total shares company | tototalshares
1. |Central Govt. |21260000| 22.55% -1 65160000| 41.20% 18.65%
increased
2. |UP Govt. 73005000| 77.45% -1 93005000| 58.80% 18.65%
decreased
Total 94265000 100% -1158165000 100% -
¢) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):
NSl. Narfne bShijlrel.loldl?fhat the Date Shareholding at the ) C:n;:.latl\(/ie .
o. o eginning of the year it f e ve Shareholding during
Shareholder (i.e. 01/04/2017) the year
I\|I]o. of 0/(;1 of tota:‘_l No. of %h of totafl No. of 0/(;1 of tota:‘_l
shares | shares o shares shares o shares shares o
the the the
company company company
1 | Govt.of U.P [ 73005000 77.45% 22.05.2017 | 20000000 18.65% | 93005000 58.80%
Rightlssue Increased
2. | Govt.of India | 21260000| 22.55%| 22.05.2017 | 43900000 18.65% | 65160000 41.20%
RightIssue Increased
TOTAL 94265000 100% 63900000

d) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GD Rsand AD Rs) :

Sr.
No.

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of % of total
shares shares of
the company

Atthe beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/

transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

Atthe end of the year

Not Applicable

—
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e) SHAREHOLDING of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. | Shareholding of each Directors and each Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No.| key Managerial Personnel beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year - - - -
V) INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secured Loans | Unsecured Loans | Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount -|  14,64,32,00,000 -1 14,64,32,00,000

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - 33,49,148 - 33,49,148

Total (i +ii + iii) -|  14,64,65,49,148 -|  14,64,65,49,148

Change in Indebtedness during - - - -
the financial year

* Addition -| 2,60,78,77,03,619 -| 2,60,78,77,03,619

* Reduction - - - -

Net Change - - - -

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount -

2,75,40,50,00,000 -

2,75,40,50,00,000

ii) Interest due but not paid- - 2,24,03,688 - 2,24,03,688
iii) Interest accrued but not due - 68,49,079 - 68,49,079
Total (i +ii +iii) -| 2,75,43,42,52,767 -| 2,75,43,42,52,767

—
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager (Amt in Rs.) Total
No.| Remuneration Amount
Managing WD (F)| WD(W&)... WD (R&S)
Director
1. | Grosssalary
(a) Salary as per 26,46,933.00 |27,50,492.00 (26,39,787.00 | 24,83,005.00 |1,05,20,217.00

provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of 4,21,792.00 | 9,23,443.00] 4,96,424.00| 3,81,312.00] 22,22,971.00
perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary - - - - -
under section 17(3) Income
-tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option - - - -
Sweat Equity - - - - -

4. | Commission-as % of - - - - -
profit-others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify

Total (A) Rs. 30,68,725.00 [36,73,935.00 [31,36,211.00 | 28,64,317.00 [1,27,43,188.00
Ceiling as perthe Act

B. Remuneration to other directors

Sr. | Particulars of Name of Directors Total
No.| Remuneration Amount
1. | Independent Directors - - - - -

Fee forattending board - - - - -
committee meetings

Commission - - - - _

Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (1) - - - - -
2 Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending - - - - -
board committee meetings

Commission - - - - -

Others, please specify - - - - -
Retainer ship fee

Total (2) - - - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) - - - - .

Total Managerial - - - - -
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as
perthe Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No.| Remuneration
(&) Total
1. | Grosssalary
(a) Salary as per 9,34,875.00 - - 9,34,875.00

provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 1,72,661.00 - - 1,72,661.00
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary - - - -
under section 17(3)
Income Tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option - - - -

Sweat Equity - - - -

4., Commission - - - -

-as % of profit - - - -

others, specify... - - - -

5. | Others, please specify - - - -
Total 11,07,536.00 - - | 11,07,536.00

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ if any
Act Punishment/ COURT] (give Details)

Compounding
fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

—
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED LUCKNOW
FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18

Note No. 29 Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies

A. Company Information
1. Reporting Entity

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (referred to as “the Company”) is domiciled and
incorporated in India (CIN: U60300UP2013SGC060836) with 50:50% equity participation of the
Government of India (GOI) and the Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP). The registered office of
the company is located at Administrative Bhawan, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh. It was
formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) on 25th November 2013 to execute Mass Rapid Transit
System (MRTS) in Lucknow city by providing Metro Rail. Government of India (Gol) - MoUD gave
its approval for the implementation of Lucknow Metro Rail Project Phase -1A vide communique no.
K-14011/27/2013-MRTS-IV dated 25th January 2016. The Project covers a total length of 22.878 km
with 21 Stations at completion cost of INR 692800 Lakh (including escalation cost of 7.5% per year
based on May, 2013 price level and IDC of INR 4800 Lakh). Priority sector corridor of Phase 1A —
Transport Nagar to Charbagh (8.5 Km) commenced commercial operations from 5thSeptember
2017. Balance about 14.378 kms are in the process of completion. During the year 2017-18, other
operations include some rental income from property and space alongside Priority Sector corridor.

2. Basis of Preparation - Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind. AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the Guidance
Notes / Announcements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAl) are also
considered wherever applicable, the same are adopted consistently by the company. The Company
has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented. These are the
Company’s first Ind AS financial statements and Ind AS 101; First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards has been applied.

For all the periods up to and including 31st March 2017, the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, which
includes, Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively
considered to as ‘Previous GAAP’). The Company has followed the provisions of Ind AS 101 in
preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as of the date of transition, viz., 1stApril, 2016. Some of
the Company’s Ind AS Accounting Policies used in the opening Balance Sheet differed from its
Indian GAAP Accounting Policies applied as at 31stMarch, 2016 and accordingly the adjustments
were made to restate the opening balances as per Ind AS as per the provisions of Ind AS 101. The
resulting adjustments, arising from events and transactions before the date of transition to Ind
AS, were recognized directly through retained earnings as at 1stApril, 2016 as required by Ind AS
101. These changes are reflected in the Statement of changes in Equity prepared as a part of
Financial Statements.
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3. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for:

i Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments)

ii. Defined benefits plans and plan assets. The methods used to measure fair values are discussed
further in notes to financial statements.

4. Going Concern Assumption

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as it is considered by the
board that the company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and meet
its liabilities as they fall due for payment.

5. Use of Estimates and Management Judgment

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind. ASs that also requires
estimates and assumptions to be made by the management which affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and disclosures of contingent liabilities / Assets on the date of financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates. The estimates are reviewed periodically and revisions to the
accounting estimate are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised and future period is
affected. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the
results are crystallized.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as under:

. Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of asset base of the
company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining the
estimate of an assets expected useful life, the expected residual value at the end of its life and
depreciation method. The useful lives and residual values of company’s assets are
determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end along with depreciation method. The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may
impact their life, such as changes in technology.

. Provisions: Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognized for future operating losses. Provisions are determined based on management
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

. Contingent liabilities/Assets: Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible
obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of
resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities
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/assets are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/independent experts, wherever
required. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate.

. Post-Employment benefit plans: Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of
actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions
concerning future developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increases and the
inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations
are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a
material impact on the resulting calculations.

. Impairment test of PPE: The recoverable amount of PPE is determined based on judgment of
assumptions of technical experts, wherever required. Any changes in these assumptions may
have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in
impairment. As the Company commenced commercial operations for priority sector corridor
on 05/09/2017 and the work for Phase 1A is in progress, management is of the view that there
is no impairment of PPE during FY 2017-18.

. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be
recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable
income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, a significant
judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

The carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period in respect of the above is referred in
respective notes.

B. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees - INR (%), which is the Company’s
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange
rates in INR (%) on the transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency
transactions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss or Capital Work in Progress to
whichever the same may relate to.

2. Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

2.1 Property, Plant &Equipment including intangible assets are shown at their acquisition cost /
historical cost. Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs and other
directly attributable costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period
till such assets are ready to be put to use. Fixed Assets are eliminated from financial
statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use.

2.2 Assets & Systems common to more than one section of the project are capitalized on the
basis of technical estimates/ assessments.

2.3 Allthe costs directly attributable to bring the asset to intended use have been included in the
cost of assets in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 16.
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2.4 Contracts are capitalized on completion on the basis of statement of account received from
executing agencies and in its absence on the basis of technical assessment of the work
executed.

2.5  Capitalization of the assets for new section to be opened for public carriage of passengers is
done after ensuring its completeness in all respect as per Standard operating procedures as
defined in the company, administrative formalities and compliance of requirements
stipulated by Commissioner of Metro Railway Safety imperative for the opening of such
section for public use.

2.6 In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be
effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the
year of final settlement.

2.7  Payments made towards permissions for construction of Station Entry and Exit from various
landowning agencies is capitalized as intangible asset and amortized over the useful life of
the asset.

2.8  Expenditure on major inspection, overhauls and replacing part of an item of property, plant
and equipment shall be capitalized, if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied in it will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably.

2.9  Gain and losses on disposal of an item of Property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item, and are
recognized net within miscellaneous/ other income and loss in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

3. Land

3.1 Amount received for buying land for the company as part of interest-free Subordinate Loan
for Land sanctioned to the Company, is treated as interest-free subordinate loan for land.

3.2 Payments made provisionally/ liability provided towards cost or compensation related to the
land including lease-hold land in possession, are treated as cost of the land or Lease-hold
land. Payment made provisionally / liability provided towards land acquired on temporary
basis has been amortized over the possession period of the land.

3.3 The pieces of land purchased by LMRC for which possession has been obtained pending
registration have been accounted for on the basis of payment made for them.

3.4 LMRC has received few pieces of land free of cost from Government of Uttar Pradesh. These
have been capitalized as freehold land at a token amount of INR 1/~ per piece of land. As these
parcels of land were received prior to implementation of Ind AS, the same have been continued
atnominal value of INR 1/-in accordance with the exemptions permitted in Ind AS 101.

3.5 Land received in exchange of assets is recognized at the Fair value of the land received.
Difference between fair value of land received and cost of asset given is recognized as
applicable govt. grant. These grants are accounted under the head of Deferred Income and
the same are amortized as per the provisions of Ind AS 20.

3.6 Compensation, replacement etc. relating to the cost of rehabilitation of Project Affected
Persons (PAPs) is booked to CWIP and on completion is added to the cost of related assets.
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3.7 Land received from Government at free of cost ownership of which vests with LMRC is
recognized at fair value of the land received which is calculated on the basis of circle rates of
that area effective on the date of receipt of such land.

4. Capital Work-in-Progress

4.1 Cost of capital assets which are under construction and not ready for intended use, include
other direct and indirect expenditure directly attributable to the project/ asset.

4.2  Administrative, indirect and general overheads (net of income) directly attributable to the
projects are allocated in the ratio of assets capitalized.

4.3 Amounts pertaining to construction period such as Price Variation, Final Penalty (other than
interest received from temporary deployment of funds received by way of equity, interest free
subordinate-debt and grant), etc. have been adjusted against the expenditure during
construction.

4.4  Claims including price variation are accounted for on approval and acceptance. Liquidated
Damages are accounted for on settlement of final bill.

5 Allocation of Interest during Construction

Interest During Construction (IDC) in respect of qualifying assets commissioned during the year, is
allocated in the ratio which the value of commissioned assets bear to the qualifying CWIP as at the
end of the month of commissioning. In other cases, IDC is allocated based on the date of
capitalisation of the last section.

6 Depreciation/Amortization

6.1  Depreciation on Property, Plant &Equipment has been provided following the Straight-Line
Method on the basis of useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013 except in respect of following assets/components of assets, where useful life is
determined based on technical assessment by the company:

S.No. | Asset Useful life (Inyears)
A. Rolling Stock 30
Al Components of Rolling Stock- Power supplies, Auxiliaries, 18

Brakes, Air-conditioning system, Interriors, On board
controls, Announcement and CCTV system

B Escalators 30
B1 Components of Escalators- Handrail 7
B2 Components of Escalators-Step and Chain Roller,

Relay, Timers and Control Gear
B3 Components of Escalators- Remaining Components 15
C Elevators 30
C1 Components of Elevators-Traction Machine /Motor, 20

Governor, Anti Creep Device

C2 Components of Elevators-Safety Gear Rope, Hoisting Chain/Rope 8
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C3 Components of Elevators-Contactors,Relays 10

C4 Components of Elevators-Remaining Components 30

D Components of AFC
D1 CSC(Contactless Smart Card) 7
D2 CST(Contactless Smart Token)

D3 Reamining Components 10

E Mobile Handset 3

Parameters considered for identification of components of assets:

i Assets having value of INR 10 Lakhs & above and components of value more than 10 % in
relation to the main asset have only been considered for componentization.

ii. The maximum life of component has been restricted to the life of principal asset.

iii.  Significant components of assets having same useful life have been clubbed together
irrespective of the percentage in relation to principal asset. Remaining components or
insignificant items have combined together with the principal asset.

iv. Land, Track Work (Permanent Way) and Intangible Assets are not componentised as
identification of separate components is not possible.

V. Vehicles. Temporary Structures, Survey/ Safety Equipment, IT System, Office equipment,
Furniture and Fixture and related assets have not been componentized as their value in
relation to the total assets of the company is quite insignificant.

6.2  Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets costing INR 5000/-or less have been
depreciated/amortized fully in the year of purchase considering the materially aspect.

6.3  The residual value of 5% of the original cost of the asset has been considered and deducted
for charging depreciation as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

6.4  Depreciation has been provided on pro-rata basis from the day on which assets were ready
for use. Depreciation on addition to / deduction from an existing assets which forms integral
part of main assets is charged over the remaining useful life of that assets.

6.5 Major overhaul and inspection costs, which have been capitalized, are depreciated over the
period until the next scheduled outage or actual major inspection/ overhaul, whichever is
earlier.

6.6  Considering the future economic benefits from software, they have been capitalized as
Intangible Assets and amortized over a period of 5 years on Straight Line Method.

6.7 Expenditure on the items, ownership of which is not with the Company is charged off to
revenue in the year of incurrence of such expenditure.

7 Foreign Currency

7.1 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
atthe date of transaction.
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7.2 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated in functional currency at
closing exchange rates as at the reporting date.

7.3 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
profit or loss/ CWIP as the case may be in the year in which it arises.

7.4  Theloan from European Investment Bank (EIB) has been received as Pass through assistance
(PTA) from Government of India (Gol) in INR.The Pass Through Assistance (PTA ) provided
by Government of India is based on the finance contract signed between EIB and
Government of India(Gol) for Euro 450 Million (equivalent to INR 350200 Lakh) as the
borrower. The loan is secured by sovereign guarantee by the Gol. The loan shall be disbursed
in through tranches as per budgetary provisions of Government of India. Gol gave the loan
from their Plan Budget of Ministry of Urban Development (MoUD) in INR. Any forex
fluctuation on repayment will be recognized on transaction basis on advice from Gol.During
the year, the company has received an amount of INR 98100 Lakh as Pass through Assistance
from Gol. The company has provided for interest of INR 259 Lakh Lakh during the year.

8. Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated impaired, when carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impaired loss is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there is a
change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

9. Revenue Recognition

9.1  Revenue from tickets/tokens are recognized on the date of its purchase and in case of smart
cards on the basis of money value of the actual usage.

9.2 Income from sale of scrap is accounted on realization basis.

9.3 The interest income on Flexi Deposits and TDRs / FDRs has been recognized on time
proportion basis, taking into account the amount invested, rates applicable and interest
accrued as per the interest certificates issued by the banks. The interest earned on FDRs has
been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

9.4  Rental Income in case of property and space let out has been recognized on the basis of terms
and conditions of the contract agreement with licensee/lessee/concessionaire, etc.

9.5 Revenue accrued from advertisement for the space utilized is accounted for on accrual basis
based on the contract terms.

10. Inventories
Inventories including loose tools and spares are valued at the lower of cost, or, net realizable value.

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and cash in hand. The company considers all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of less than one year but en-cashable at short
notice, to be cash equivalents.
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12. Retirement Benefits

12.1 The Contribution to the provident fund and pension scheme for the period is recognized as
expense and is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. Company obligations towards post
retirement benefits are actuarially determined and provided for.

12.2 The company has set up a Gratuity Trust Fund with LIC of India and gratuity liability to
employees is provided for on basis of actuarial valuation.

12.3 Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of assets ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognized immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

13. Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for bases on acceptance of claims.

14. Prior Period expenses and Income

Income/Expenditure relating to prior period, which does not exceed INR 100,000, are treated as
income/expenditure of current year.

15. Grantsin Aid

15.1 Grants from the Government/Non-Government or other authorities towards Capital
Expenditure for creation of assets are initially shown as ‘Deferred Revenue’. These are
subsequently recognized as income each year over the life of the relevant assets in proportion
to depreciation on those assets.

15.2 Grants from the Government/Non-Government or other authorities towards revenue has
been recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss under the head ‘other income’.

15.3  Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross
atfairamounts and released to the income statement over the expected useful life and pattern
of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

15.4 TheFinancial Assistance received from Government of Uttar Pradesh for State Taxes has been
adjusted/ deducted from Capital work in Progress (CWIP).
16. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost incurred on the funds borrowed specially for the project and identified therewith is
capitalized up to the time of commissioning of the project or part thereof and thereafter charged to
revenue to the extent assets are under commercial operation.

17. Subordinate Debt

Interest free subordinate debts received from Gol & GoUP are repayable after the repayment of all
Non-Government Debts (i.e. Senior Debts). These debts have been recognized as long-term
borrowings. The subordinate debts are interest free. As per Government Order, Company is
required to make repayment of subordinate debt only after repayment of entire Senior Term Debt
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availed for the project. In view of the uncertainty of repayment period, the company has not
considered necessary for fair valuation of Government subordinate debt.

18. Taxation

18.1 Income Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

18.2 Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax credits
(MAT Credit entitlement) or deductible temporary difference will be utilized against future
taxable income. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

18.3 Income tax expense, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) or equity, in which cases it is recognized in OCl or equity.

19. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based
on management best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are not
discounted to present value. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted
to reflect the current management estimate. Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in
the financial statement.

20. Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

21. Financial Instruments

Recognition, Initial Measurement and De-Recognition

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are recognized when company becomes party to the
contractual provision of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transaction costs, except for those financial assets which are classified at Fair Value Through Profit &
Loss (FVTPL) at inception.

Financial assets are De-Recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A
financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following
categories upon initial recognition:
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»  Financial assets atamortized cost using effective interest method (EIR)
»  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

»  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All the financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each
reporting date. There are no Financial Assets, which are designated at FVTPL in the company.

Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried
subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All derivative financial
instruments are accounted for FVTPL. There are no financial liabilities, which are designated at
FVTPL in the company.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) is calculated as follows:

e Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities, which are, interest bearing at market rates: EIR in these
cases are equivalent to instrument’s interest rate.

. For other financial assets or financial liabilities: SBI-MCLR/Base rate at beginning of financial
year for highest available period.
30. Notes to Financial Statements
1.  Contingent Liabilities: (in Lakhs)

Rin Lakhs)
S.No. | Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.18 31.03.17 | 01.04.16
1. Crossing Charges demanded by 124 5122 5122
Northern Railway
2. Penalty Charges claimed by BSNL 21 21 21
3. Traffic block charges demanded by NIL 109 0.00

Northern Railway

4, Land acquisition related court case by NIL 463 463
Anil Kumar Gupta

5. Land acquisition related court case by NIL 338 338
Arjun Kumar Gupta

6. Land acquisition related court case by NIL 1065 1065
Pawan Kumar Chawla

7. Land acquisition related court case by 4 4 4
Dinesh Kumar Pathak
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8. Additional compensation for Land @ 100% of 2554 2554 NIL
circle rate and annual 25.54 concession fees for
30yrs. being demanded by U.P. State Road
Transport Corporation, Lucknow for the Land
transferred to LMRC for Metro Rail Project

9. Additional compensation for Land @ 100% of 108 108 NIL
circle rate being 1.08 demanded by U.P.

Cooperative Union Limited, Lucknow forthe Land
transferred to LMRC for Metro Rail project

10. In relation to the rent of land for Casting Yard of 2440 2440 NIL
Lucknow Airport 24.40 (Letter No. 6050-52
Dt. 22-05-2017 Airport Authority of India)

11. Letter of Credit(s) in USD 2960 22 NIL
12. Letter of Credit(s) in EURO 2231 57 NIL
13. M/s Delhi Metro Rail Corporation on a/c of 9 NIL NIL

Revision of DPR for E-W Corridor of Lucknow
Metro Rail Project

14. North Railway Lucknow claimed charges for 14 NIL NIL
temporary use of railway land during construction
period

15. North Eastern Railway Lucknow on a/c of charges 895 NIL NIL

for permission to cross railway land and charges
for Temporary use of Railway Land during
Construction Period

16. Additional compensation for Land @ 100% of 285 NIL NIL
circle rate being 2.85 Cr. demanded by U.P.
Cooperative Bank Limited, Lucknow for the Land

transferred to LMRC for Hazratganj Ramp

17. Consumer forum court case 5 NIL NIL

Explanatory Note: The claims for additional differential liability towards GST have been submitted by
the contractors/vendors. The claim has been recommended for further examination and verification by
the management which is being done by external experts and necessary adjustments shall be carried out
only ifthe claim is justifiable as per the terms of contract.

Contingent Assets: There are no contingent assets as on date with the company.

2.  Commitments: Estimated amounts of contracts including foreign currency contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided foris 169725 Lakh . As on March 31st, 2018.
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3.  Payment to the Statutory Auditors: -

® in Lakh)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Audit Fees 2.00 1.80
Tax Audit Fees 0.80 NA
Reimbursement:
-Goods and Service Tax/ Service Tax 0.504 0.27
Total 3.304 2.07

4.  The Company has accounted for State reimbursable taxes which has been adjusted in the carrying
amount of PPE including CWIP to the tune of INR 11053 Lakh on the basis of details provided by the
Contractors. Further the company has received reimbursable taxes from GoUP to the tune of INR 9900
Lakhtill 31.03.2018.

5. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31°" March 2018

R in Lakh)

Sr. No. | Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

1. Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount NIL NIL
b) Interest due thereon NIL NIL

2. Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small NIL NIL
and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006, along with
the amount paid to the supplier beyond the appointed day;

3. Amount of interest due and payable for the Period of delay NIL NIL
in making payment(which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year)but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act,2006

4, Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid NIL NIL

5. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises,

for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and medium Enterprises
Development Act,2006

5—8
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Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards

6. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-1: Presentation of financial Statements:

Capital Management.

The Primary Objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The
company monitors capital using Debt: Equity ratio, which is Long Term debt divided by total owner’s
capital, The Debt equity ratio are as follow:

® in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017 As at March 31,2016
(a) Total Debt 2,75,405.00 1,46,432.00 21,332.00
(b) Total Capital 1,89,792.00 1,30,665.00 66,765.00
Debt: Equity 1.451 1.12 0.3195
Ratio (a/b)

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and share
application money pending allotment. Debt includes long term loans and borrowings.

7.  Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-17 “Leases”

a. The Company has taken on lease/rent premises for employees. These Lease arrangements are
usually renewable on mutually agreed terms, during the year the company has paid lease rent
amounting to INR 206.87 Lakh(P.Y Rs. 184.23Lakh) and included under the head of Expenditure
Lease rent for Staff Accommodations

® in Lakhs)
Operating Lease Not Later Later than one year Beyond five years
than one Year and up to five years
Current Year (2017-18) NIL 227.28 84..34
Previous Year (2016-17) NIL 260.21 87.33

b. The company has leased out its various assets to parties on operating lease basis. Future minimum
lease rent receivable under non-cancellable operating lease are given as under:

 in Lakhs)
Operating Lease Not Later Later than one year Beyond five years
than one Year and up to five years
Current Year (2017-18) 0.09 259.31 2605.93
Previous Year (2016-17) NIL NIL 18.76

c. The project office of the company is located in the premises of Lucknow Development Authority
(LDA) situated at 1st Floor, Janpath Market, Hazratganj, Lucknow. The issue regarding the rent of
the aforesaid premises is still under consideration by LDA. Under these circumstances, no rent has
been charged and will be accounted for as and when the issue is finalized by them.

d. Company has taken land on temporary lease / rent for implementation of the Project and during this
Accounting period, INR 113.92 lacs has been paid towards lease / rent.

—
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8.  Disclosurein respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19” Employee Benefits”
8.1 General description of various defined employee’s benefits schemes are as under:

a) Provident Fund:

The company’s Provident Fund is managed by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The
company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate. The liability is
recognized on accrual basis.

b) Gratuity:

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered continues
service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity @ 15 days salary (15/26* last drawn basic
pay plus dearness pay plus dearness allowance) for each completed year of service on
superannuation, resignation, termination and disablement or on death. A policy has been
formed for this purpose.

This scheme is being managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for which the
company has taken a Master Policy.

The scheme is funded by the company. The disclosure of information as required under Ind AS-
19 have been made in accordance with the actuarial valuation and liability is recognized on the
basis of Actuarial valuation.

As per Actuarial valuation company’s best estimated for FY 2017-2018 towards the Gratuity
Fund Contribution is INR 210.20 Lakh However, the company is making contribution to the
fund as per the demand made by life Insurance Corporation of India.

Regarding the LMRC employees excluding those on deputation, the Company has procured
gratuity plan through LIC wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen
days’ salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination
of service or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous
service. The fund is managed by LIC. The total liability recognized on the basis of contribution
payable to the Insureramounting to INR 188.92 lakh during FY 2017-18, details given as below:

Particulars Amount R in Lakhs)

Current Service Cost—FY17-18 185.16

LIC Premium 3.77

Total 188.93
c¢) Pension:

Employee’s National Pension Scheme is managed by Stockholding Corporation of India. This
scheme is optional and company’s obligation is limited to pay 2.5% of Basic pay of the enrolled
employee.

The contribution to the scheme for the period is grouped under Employee Cost on accrual basis.
In respect of deputationist employees, pension contribution is calculated as per lending
organization/Govt. of the India Rules and is accounted for on accrual basis.

d) Leave:

The company provides for earned leave benefits (included compensated absence) and half-pay
leave to the employees of the company, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20 days

—
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respectively. Only the leave in the encashable leave account is encashable once in a calendar
year while is service and a maximum of 300 days (including non-encashable portion and half
pay leaves without commutation) on superannuation.

The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

In respect of deputationist employees, Leave salary contribution is payable to their parent
departments @ 11% of pay drawn (Basic pay including Dearness Pay & Special Pay) and is
accounted for on accrual basis.

In relation to LMRC employees excluding those on deputation, the actuarial valuation of leave
encashment was carried out by an Actuary and appropriate provisions have been made in books
of accounts and financial statements accordingly as following: -

The results of the calculations of Leave Encashment are as under:

Net Defined Benefit obligation ® in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave (Non-
Funded) (Funded)

(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation C.Y. 265.98 624.26
P.Y. 48.38 181.71

Fairvalue of the plan assets C.Y. 286.01 -
P.Y. 94.93 -

Surplus or (deficit) in the plan CY. 20.03 -624.26
P.Y. 46.54 -181.71

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities CY. 76.63 139.91
P.Y. -2.53 139.91

Total Net Defined Benefit obligation CY. 210.19 442.56
P.Y. 34.09 181.71

Movement in Plan Assets R in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Non-Funded)

(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Fairvalue of assets at beginning of year C.Y. 94.93 -
P.Y. - -

Adjustment to opening fair value of plan assets C.Y. -1.63 -
P.Y. - -

Interestincome (+) C.Y. 6.17 -
P.Y. - -

—
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Return on planassets, excludingamountsof interest (+/-) | C.Y. 1.23 -
P.Y. - -
Change in asset ceiling, excluding amounts C.Y. - -
included in interest expense (+/-)
P.Y. - -
FX rate gains (+) and losses (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Contributions by the employer (+) C.Y. 185.32 -
P.Y. 94.93 -
Contributions by plan participants (+) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Benefits paid (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Business combinations (+) and disposals (-) CY. - -
P.Y. - -
Settlements (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Fairvalue of assets at end of year C.Y. 286.01 -
P.Y. 94.93 -
Movement in Defined Benefit Obligations ® in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Non-Funded)
(in Lakh) (in Lakh)
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year C.Y. 48.38 181.71
P.Y. 14.29 30.26
Currentservice cost (+) CY. 136.59 290.84
P.Y. 3.55 290.84
Interest cost (+) C.Y. 3.15 11.81
P.Y. 1.07 2.28
Gain () /'Ioss (+) from change in demographic C.Y. 60.87 129.83
assumptions
P.Y. 11.82 26.38
Gain (-)/loss (+) from change in financial CY. 108.41 177.31
assumptions
P.Y. 15.92 36.56

—
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Experience adjustment (+/-) C.Y. -91.41 -167.23
P.Y. -30.27 -13.57

FX rate gains (-) and losses (+) CY. - -
P.Y. - -

Contributions by plan participants (+) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Benefits paid (-) C.y. - -
P.Y. - -

Business combinations (+) and disposals (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Settlements (-) C.y. - -
P.Y. - -

Defined benefit obligation at end of year C.Y. 265.98 624.26
P.Y. 48.38 181.71

Benefit expense recognised in profit or loss @ in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Non-Funded)

(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Current service cost (+) CY. 136.59 290.84
P.Y. 35.55 99.80

Interest cost (+) C.. 3.15 11.81
P.Y. 1.07 2.28

Interestincome (+) CY. 6.17 -
P.Y. - -

Net interest on net defined benefit liability CY. -3.03 11.81
P.Y. 1.07 20.28

Past service cost (+) CY. - -
P.Y. - -

Settlement gains (+) or losses (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Total expense recognised in profit or loss C.Y. 133.56 302.65
P.Y. 36.62 102.08
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income @ in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) | Leave (Non-Funded)
(in Lakh) (in Lakh)
Total Amount recognised in Other C.Y. 76.63 139.91
Comprehensive Income
P.Y. - 49.36

Category of investment in Plan assets

Category of investment % of fair value of plan assets

Total Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

100%

Actuarial Assumptions

 in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave (Non - Funded)
Method used C.Y. | Projected Unit Credit Method | Projected Unit Credit Method
P.Y. | Projected Unit Credit Method | Projected Unit Credit Method
Discount Rate C.Y. 7.50% p.a. 7.50% p.a.
P.Y. 6.50% p.a. 6.50% p.a.
Salary escalation rate | C.Y. 10% p.a. 10% p.a.
P.Y. 5% p.a. 5% p.a.
Employee Attrition/ | C.Y. 0% p.a. 0% p.a.
withdrawal rate
P.Y. 3% p.a. 3% p.a.
Mortality C.. 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult
P.Y. 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult

1. Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity Analysis and Expected Benefit Payments:

 in Lakhs)

Assumption Changein Financial Year Ending Financial Year Ending
Assumption | 31st March 2018 (in Lakh) | 31st March 2018 (in Lakh)

Discount Rate 0.50% (78.97) (34.61)
-0.50% 91.93 40.41

Salary Growth Rate 1.00% 191.82 77.50
-1.00% (145.16) (62.86)

Price Inflation Rate 1.00% - -
-1.00% - -

Medical Inflation Rate 1.00% - -
-1.00% - -

Mortality Rate + 3 years (2.99) (1.26)
-3 years 2.20 0.92
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2. Expected Benefit Payments

Sr.No. Year of Payment Leave Encashment Gratuity
1 31-Mar-19 0.64 0.26
2 31-Mar-20 0.74 0.29
3 31-Mar-21 0.68 6.01
4 31-Mar-22 0.79 0.31
5 31-Mar-23 0.84 4.51
6 31-Mar-2024 to 31-Mar-2028 5.15 9.43

9 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 21) “The Effects of changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”:

a. The amount of exchange differences (net) credited to the statement of Profit & Loss is INR
0.0128735 Lakhs (PYINR 0.33,14678 Lakhs).

b. Adjustment in PPE/ CWIP includes INR 824 Lakh (PY INR 93 Lakh) on account of exchange
differences due to translation of Monetary Items

10 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”
(@ KeyManagement Persons:
1. ShriKumar Keshav, Managing Director
Shri Daljeet Singh, Whole Time Director (Works & Infrastructure) (upto 31/10/2017)

Shri Mahendra Kumar, Whole Time Director (Rolling Stock & Systems)
Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, Whole Time Director (Finance)

ok W

Smt. Pushpa Bellani, Company Secretary

(b) Disclosure of transactions of the company with related parties (Key Management Persons):

Particulars 2017-18 (in Lakh) 2016-17 R in Lakhs)
Salaries & Allowances 123.16 114.55
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds, 18.11 15.64
Gratuity & Group Insurance

Other Benefits 16.32 27.56
Total (included in Employees Cost) 157.58 157.75

In addition to the above remuneration,

i. the whole time Directors have been allowed to use the Company owned car (including for private
journeys) subject to recovery as perthe Company’s rules.

ii.  No othertransaction with any other related parties was carried out duringthe FY 2017-18.
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11 DISCLOSUREIN RESPECT OF Indian ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind. AS)- 33: EARNING PER SHARE:

1. Basicearnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period should be adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Particulars 2017-18 R in Lakhs) 2016-17 R in Lakhs)
Profit after taxation, prior period adjustments (2538.29) (1897.45)
& tax Adjustments for the earlier years as per

Statement of Profit & Loss (INR in Lakhs)

Weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding:

Basic 997.45 743.94
Diluted 1586.62 861.11
Basic Earnings Per Share (INR) (Face value (2.54) (2.55)
of INR 100/- per share

Diluted Earnings Per Share (INR) (Face (1.60) (2.20)
value of INR 100/- per share)

12  Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets”: % in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening balance | Additions/Transfers | Utilization during Closing

asat01.04.17 During the Year the Year balance as

at31.03.2018

Retirement 231.31 514.39 48.72 696.97
Benefits

Expenses 4245.60 1147.80 4134.19 1259.20

Total 4476.90 662.18 4182.92 1956.17

Particulars Openingbalance | Additions/Transfers | Utilization during Closing

asat01.04.16 During the Year the Year balance as

at31.03.2017

Retirement Nil 231.31 Nil 231.31
Benefits

Expenses Nil 4245.60 Nil 4245.60

Total Nil 4476.90 Nil 4476.90
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13  Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-101:” First-time adoption of Indian

Accounting Standards ”:
Notes to first time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company's first Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2018.

The accounting policies set out in Note 29 have been applied in preparation of financial statements for
the year ended 31st March, 2018, the comparative information presented in these financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and in the preparation of opening Ind AS balance sheet as at 1st
April, 2016 (the Company's date of transition).

For transition to Ind AS the company has availed the following Mandatory / Optional exemptions as per
INDAS101:

a) Deemed Cost for Property, Plant & Equipment: The Company has availed exemption under para
D7AA of appendix D to IND AS 101, which permits a first time adopter to continue with the
carrying values for its PPE as at date of transition to IND ASs measured as per previous GAAP.

b) Classification & Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities at initial
recognition: The financial assets and liabilities have been classified on the basis of facts existing as
atthe date of transition to IND AS. In addition, the exemption under para B8C and para D20 permits
prospective application of requirements of IND AS 109 to transactions entered into on or after date
of transition.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in following tables and notes.

Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS:

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income for prior periods. The
following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS:

LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Reconcilliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS for impact on Balance Sheet

R in Lakhs)
Particulars Note| AsatMarch |Adjustments As per As at | Adjustments | As at April
No. | 31,2017 as March 31, | March,31 1,2016
per IGAAP 2017 2016 as (Ind AS)
(Audited) (Ind AS) | perl GAAP
(Audited)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plantand 1 9,682.51 9,682.51 6,448.66 6,448.66
Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 | 1,84,972.46 1,84,972.46 | 65,540.29 65,540.29
(c) Intangible assets 3 3,723.09 - 3,723.09 3,768.85 3,768.85
(d) Intangible Assets Under 4 293.82 - 293.82 - -
Development
(e) Financial Assets 5
(i) Loans 3,748.22( (3,748.22) - 2.68 (2.68) -
(ii) Others - 156.31 156.31 2.68 2.68
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(f)  Other non-current Assets 6 - 3,591.92 3,591.92 -
Current Assets
(@ Inventories 7 - - - -
(b) Financial Assets
() Cash &CashEquivalents| 8 | 1,00,718.45 1,00,718.45 | 36,303.65 36,303.65
(i) Loans 37,918.80| (37,918.80) - | 25,584.87 [(25,584.87) -
(ii) Others 9 - 230.18 230.18 176.51 176.51
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 - -
(d) Other Current Assets 11 253.33| 37,688.61| 37,941.94 197.35]25,408.36( 25,605.71
Total Assets 3,41,310.68 -13,41,310.68 [1,37,846.35 -11,37,846.35
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity Share Capital 12| 94,265.00 -l 94,265.00 |38,005.00 38,005.00
(b) OtherEquity 13| 84,750.87 84,750.87 172,554.54 72,554.54
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 |1,46,432.00 -11,46,432.00 [21,332.00 21,332.00
(ii) OtherFinancial 15 - 293.88 293.88 79.16 79.16
Liabilities
(b) Othernon Current 293.88| (293.88) -
Liabilities
(c) Provisions 16 117.97 - 117.97 12.53 12.53
Deferred Tax Liabilities 17 355.33 355.33 116.10 116.10
Current liabilities
(@ Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 18 6,763.98| (105.96) 6,658.02 | 4,531.29 (59.30)| 4,471.99
(ii) OtherFinancial 19 -| 3,044.43 3,044.43 640.68 640.68
Liabilities
(iii) Other current liabilities| 20 3,972.721(2,938.47) 1,034.24 | 1,277.15| (660.54) 616.62
(b) Provisions 21 4,358.94 - 4,358.94 17.73 17.73
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,41,310.68 -13,41,310.68 |1,37,846.35 -11,37,846.35
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Reconcilliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS for impact on Statement of Profit and Loss

R in Lakhs)
Particulars Note| Year Ended | Adjustment Year Ended
No. March 31, March 31, 2017
2017 IGAAP (Ind As)
Income
i) | Revenue From Operations 22 - 0.43 0.43
ii) | Other Income 23 1,850.66 (0.43) 1,850.22
iii)| Prior Period Income 2.48 (2.48)
1,853.14 (2.48) 1,850.65
Total Income
Expenses
i) | Operating Expenses 24 - 62.73 62.73
ii) | Employees' Benefit Expenses 25 1,844.91 (42.70) 1,802.21
iii)| Finance Cost 26 1.00 1.00
iv) | Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27 303.48 303.48
v) | Other Expenses 28 1,359.51 (69.41) 1,290.10
vi) | Prior Period Expenses 50.24 (50.24) -
Total expenses 3,559.13 (99.62) 3,459.52
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (1,706.00) 97.14 (1,608.87)
Tax expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax 17 (239.22) (239.22)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,945.22) 97.14 (1,848.09)
Other Comprehensive Income
i) | Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined - (49.36)
benefit plans
ii) | ltems that will be reclassified
to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the (49.36) (49.36)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (1,945.22) 47.77 (1,897.45)
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14  Disclosures in respect of IND 107- “Financial Instruments: Disclosure”
14.1 Financial Instruments
(i) Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying values of financial instruments by categories are as follows: ® in Lakhs)

Particulars As on 31st March, 2018 As on 31st March, 2017 As on 01 April, 2016

Amortized FVT PL FV OCI |Amortized |FVT PL |FV OCI | Amortized FVT PL | FV OCI
cost (in Lakh) | (in Lakh) | (in Lakh)|Cost (in Lakh)| (in Lakh) | (in Lakh) | cost (in Lakh) | (in Lakh)| (in Lakh)

Financial Assets:

Loans - - - - - - - - -

Other Financial 650.38 - - 386.49 - - 179.19 - -
Assets (Refer
Note-5 & 9

Trade - - - - - - - - -
Receivables

Cash & Cash 119127.86 - - 1 100718.45 - - 36303.65 - -
Equivalents
(Refer Note -8)

TOTAL - - - - - -

Financial Liabilities:

Borrowings 275405.00 - - | 146432.00 - - 21332.00 - -
(Refer Note -14)
Other Financial 7504.30 [7500.82* - 3338.31 - - 720.02 - -

Liabilities (Refer
Note - 15 & 19)

Trade Payable 18768.13 - - 6658.02 - - 4471.99 - -
(Refer Note-19)

TOTAL - - - - - -

* The other financial comprises of Security deposits from contractors and customers.
(ii) Fair Value Hierarchy:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are
categorized into three levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the
observability of significant inputs to the measurement as follows:

Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments that the
entity can access atthe measurement date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of relevant observable market input and
minimise use of unobservable inputs.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on the observables market inputs, the
instrument is categorised in level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

—
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(iii) Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at amortized cost for which Fair Value are disclosed:

 in Lakhs)

Particulars Level As on 31st March, 2018 Ason 31st March,2017 | AsonO01stApril, 2016
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value | Carrying | FairValue
value Value Value

Financial Assets:

Loans (Refer Level 2 - - - - - -

Note-3&10

Other Financial Assets Level 2 650.38 650.38 386.49 386.49 179.19 179.19

(Refer Note-5 & 9

Total

Financial Liabilities:

Other Financial Level 2 7504.3 7500.82 3338.31 3338.31 720.02 720.02

Liabilities (Refer Note-

15&19)

(iv)  Valuation techniques and process used to determine fair values
a) The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities with the maturities less than 12 months are

considered to be representative of their fair value.
b) Fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost is determined by

discounting of cash flows using a discount rate which is defined as per Accounting Policy
No.20.

14.2 Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The company’s
financial asset and liabilities by category are summarized above. The main types of risks are market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Risk Management focus on actively securing the
Company’s short to medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to volatile financial
markets. The most significant financial risks to which the company is exposed are described below:

A)  Market Risk

The Company has foreign exchange risk as Market Risk. The Company does not have any interest
rate risk since the loans to the company are at either NIL rate of interest or at fixed rate of interest as
per disbursement notice of each tranche of loan received from EIB. Also company does not have
price risk since company is not having derivative financial asset.

The exchange fluctuation risk is due to import of Property Plant and Equipment from outside India.
The company does not have any hedging instrument to cover the foreign exchange risk.

B) CreditRisk

Credit Risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial
loss. The company exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by granting
advances to the employees, receivables from customers, security deposits etc. The maximum
exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from carrying amount of following types
of financial assets.

“
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- Cash and Cash equivalents
- Tradereceivables
- Otherfinancial assets measured at amortized cost.

The company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counter parties, identifies
either individually at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and the
other counter parties are obtained and used.

a) Credit risk Management
Cash and cash equivalent

Creditrisk related to cash and cash equivalent is managed by placing funds in schedule commercial
banks which are subject to the regulatory oversight of the Reserve Bank of India, and these banking
relationships are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are measured at amortized cost and there is no impairment.
b) Expected credit losses

Company provides expected credit losses based on the following:

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are impaired when recover ability is considered doubtful based on the recovery
analysis performed by the company for individual trade receivables. The company considers that
all the above financial assets that are not impaired and past due for each reporting dates under
review are of good credit quality.

Other financial assets measured at amortized loss

Credit risk related to employee loans are considered negligible since loan is secured against the
property for which loan is granted to the employees. Credit risk related to these other financial
assets is managed by monitoring the recover ability of such amounts continuously, while at the
same time internal control system in place ensure that the amounts are within the defined limits.

There are no impairment provisions as at each reporting date against these financial assets. We
consider all the above financial asset as at the reporting dates to be of good credit quality.

O) Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of monthly and yearly projections. The Company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, revenue generated from operations,
Longterm loan from EIB, Interest free subordinate debt, share capital and grant.

We manage our liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inflows and by monitoring cash
and cash equivalents, Net cash requirements are compared to available cash in order to determine
any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirement consists of mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable, employee
dues, retention and deposits arising during the normal course of business as of each reporting date.
We maintain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet our short term liquidity
requirements.

We assess long term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage them through internal
accruals. Our non-current liabilities include EIB loan, Interest free subordinate debt, retention &
deposits and liabilities for Employee benefit.

—
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The company’s principle business is running & maintenance of Metro Rail Facility in Lucknow.

The Company operates within India and does not have operations in economic environments with

different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered operating in single geographical segment.

Information about major customers

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the company’s revenue for both years ended on 31-03-
2018 and yearended on 31-03-2017.

16. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE 11l OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

R in Lakhs)
S.No. | Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
1 Value of imports calculated on CIF Basis
a. Raw Materials Nil Nil
b. Stores and Spares Nil Nil
C. Capital Goods 27100.00 Nil
2 Expenditure in Foreign Currency on
a. Professional & Consultancy Fees 3468.00 1535.00
b. Tours and Travels 15.00 32.00
C. Contracts 22190.00 16618.00
3 Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
4 Value of Components, Spare parts and store consumed
Imported Nil Nil
b. Indigenous Nil Nil

17.  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ rearranged/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to make
them comparable to the current year’s presentation.

As per our report of even date annexed

For D.S. Shukla & Co.

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

FRN - 000773C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(Shreeharsh Shukla) (Kumar Keshav) (Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Partner Managing Director Director Finance
Membership No: 408990 DIN: 02908695 DIN: 07228424

Sd/-
(Pushpa Bellani)
Company Secretary

—

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.07.2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
auditopinion onthe Ind ASfinancial statements.

“
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of
the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its profit/loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

1) Note No.1 to the Ind AS financial statement, regarding non execution of tittle deed of Land in favor of the
company.

2)  Note No. 14 and 29-B, Para No.17 to the Ind AS financial statement, regarding recognition of Interest free
subordinate Government loan at historical value presented as financial liability has not been measured
in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, due to uncertainty in period of repayment of the
subordinate debt.

3) Note No. 29-BPara No.7.4, to the Ind AS financial statement, European Investment Bank (EIB) loan
outstanding * 98100 lakhs & interest accrued of * 259 lakhs, Government of India arranged Pass Through
Assistance (PTA) of these loan disbursements for execution of the metro rail project in Lucknow (U.P) .
Exchange rate fluctuations gain/loss has not been provided in the Ind AS financial statements as required
by Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, and shall be provided on transaction
basis on advice of Gol.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2016 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the
previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31st March 2017
and 31st March 2016 dated 22/05/2017.and 26/09/2016,.respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement based on the directions
issued and matters specified by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books

—
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act

Since, the company is a Government Company, section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
regarding obtaining written representations from the directors of the Company, is not applicable to
the company in terms of notification no. GSR-463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

4. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

5.  With respectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements which would impact its financial position in its Notes No. 30 (1) to Ind AS
Financial Statement.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses, if any.

There is no amount which is, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. : 000773C)

Sd/-

Shreeharsh Shukla
Place : New Delhi Partner
Date : 23/07/2018 Membership number : 408990
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referredtoinparagraph1under’ReportonOtherLegalandRegulatoryRequirements’in the Independents
Auditor’s Report of even date)

i In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
notice don such verification.

c. Asperthe information and explanation given to us, title deeds of immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company except for the cases as disclosed in Note No. 1 to the Ind AS Financial
Statement.

ii.  The Company is engaged in the business of Metro Rail Infrastructure and Maintenance and does not have
any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under Clause3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given loan or made
Investment or given guarantee and security for the persons specified under provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence not commented upon.

v.  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at
March31,2018 and therefore, the provisions of the clause3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vi.  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of Cost Records under section 148(1) of the
Act for any of the services rendered by the company hence not commented upon.

vii.  Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing un disputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March31,2018 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c. Accordingto the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute.

“
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viil.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to any financial institution and government during the year.

As per explanation provided to us, the company raised monies by way of further offer of shares to the
existing shareholders or term Loans and the amount were used for the purpose for which they were
raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As per notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the Government Companies. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company and hence, reporting under Clause3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence, reporting under Clause3 (xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence provisions of Section192 of the Companies Act,2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

For D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. : 0007730C)

Sd/-
Shreeharsh Shukla
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 23/07/2018 Membership number : 408990
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

[Referred to in paragraph 2, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date]

According to the information and explanations given to us we report as under:

1. Whether the Company has clear title/ lease deeds for freehold and leasehold
respectively? If not please state the area of freehold and leasehold land which title/
lease deeds are not available?

As informed and explanation provided to us during the course of our audit the title deeds of immovable

properties are held in name of the company except for freehold land admeasuring to 19,830 Square
meters, further the information is disclosed in Note No. 1 to the Ind AS Financial Statement.

2.  Whether there are any cases of waiver/ write off of debts/ loans/interest etc., if yes the
reasons there for and the amount involved?

We generally observed no cases of waiver/ write off of debts/loans/interest, etc. during the year under
audit.

3.  Whether proper record is maintained for inventories lying with third parties and assets
received as gift/grant (s) from the Government or other authorities?
As confirmed to us no inventory is lying with the third party further the company has received land from
PAC and Sampoornand Karagar Prachikshan Sanathan at below market value which has been fair valued

and Government Grant recognized of 19035 Lakhs no other asset is received as gift/grant from the
Government or other authorities during the year.

4. Whether the system in vogue for identification of project to be taken up under Public
Partnership is in line with the guidelines/ policies of the Government? Comment on
deviation if any?

As per information and explanation provided to us, during the year under audit, the company has
selected HDFC Bank as Merchant Acquirer Bank for Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC), Fare

Collection system, agreement for six years and provision of Allied Banking Applications under PPP
model, no deviation in compliances of Government guidelines/ policies was reported.

5. Whether system for monitoring the execution of works vis-a- vis the milestones
stipulated in the agreement is in existence and the impact of cost escalation, if any,
revenues/ losses from contracts, etc., have been properly accounted for in the books.

The system for monitoring the execution of works vis-a-visthe milestones stipulated in the agreement is
appropriate. The Technical Executives of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (LMRC) along with

—
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General Consultants(GC) engaged by LMRC examines the claims and works in accordance with the
milestones stipulated in the agreement and continuously monitor it. Any revenues/losses from contracts,
etc. have been properly recorded in the books.

Whether funds received/ receivable for specific schemes from central/ State agencies
were properly accounted for /utilized? List the cases of deviations.

Funds received by the company are as per the Finance Model in approved DPR which have been
properly accounted for/utilized.

Whether the bank guarantees have been revalidated in time?
Bank guarantees have been validated in time.

Comment on the confirmation of balances of trade receivables, trade payables, term
deposits, bank accounts and cash obtained.

The company has received balance confirmations for its banks balances and term deposit which are
reconciled with books of accounts for any difference, further non confirmation of most of the balances of
trade payable and the consequent effect on the book balances and the actual balance over the
profitability/loss to the company is subject to reconciliation if any, the company has no trade receivables
for which confirmation need be obtained.

ForD.S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No0.:000773C)

Sd/-
Shreeharsh Shukla
Place : New Delhi Partner
Date:23/07/2018 Membership number : 408990
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditor’s Report

[Referred to in paragraph 4, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation
Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

—
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(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2)  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the
Management and directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForD.S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.000773C)

Sd/-
(Shreeharsh Shukla)

Place : New Delhi Partner
Date:23.07.2018 Membership No. -408990
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, VIPIN KHAND, GOMTI NAGAR, LUCKNOW
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31st MARCH, 2018

R in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note As at As at As at
No. March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 1,2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(@  Property, Plantand Equipment 1 2,02,612.25 9,682.51 6,448.66
(b)  Capital work-in-progress 2 2,07,386.48 1,84,972.46 65,540.29
(c) Intangible assets 3 3,569.89 3,723.09 3,768.85
(d)  Intangible Assets Under Development 4 565.45 293.82 -
(e)  Financial Assets
(i) Loans - - -
(ii) Others 5 185.97 156.31 2.68
(f) Other non-current Assets 6 - 3,591.92 -
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 8.23 - -
(b)  Financial Assets
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 8 1,19,127.86 1,00,718.45 36,303.65
(ii) Others 9 464.41 230.18 176.51
(c)  Current Tax Assets 10 2.72 - -
(d)  OtherCurrent Assets 11 21,296.52 37,941.94 25,605.71
Total Assets 5,55,219.78 3,41,310.68 1,37,846.35
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@ Equity Share Capital 12 1,58,165.00 94,265.00 38,005.00
(b)  OtherEquity 13 91,464.17 84,750.87 72,554.54
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(@)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 2,75,405.00 1,46,432.00 21,332.00
(ii) OtherFinancial Liabilities 15 541.48 293.88 79.16
(b)  Othernon Current Liabilities -
(0) Provisions 16 623.62 117.97 12.53
Deferred Tax Liabilities 17 - 355.33 116.10
Current liabilities
(@)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 18 18,768.13 6,658.02 4,471.99
(ii) OtherFinancial Liabilities 19 6,959.34 3,044.43 640.68
(b)  Othercurrent liabilities 20 1,950.94 1,034.24 616.62
(c) Provisions 21 1,342.10 4,358.94 17.73
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,55,219.78 3,41,310.68 1,37,846.35
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial
Statements 29 & 30
Audit Report of even date attached
For : D. S. Shukla & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 000773C
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Shreeharsh Shukla) (Kumar Keshav) (Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Partner Managing Director Director Finance
Membership No: 408990 DIN: 02908695 DIN: 07228424
Sd/-
Place: New Delhi (Pushpa Bellani)
Date: 23.07.2018 Company Secretary
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, VIPIN KHAND, GOMTI NAGAR, LUCKNOW

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018
( in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ending 31.03.20138 Ending 31.03.2017
Income
(i)  Revenue from Operations 22 555.40 0.43
(i)  OtherIncomes 23 6,931.95 1,850.22
Total Income 7,487.35 1,850.65
EXpenSES —————— —————————————
(i)  Operating Expenses 24 1,616.72 62.73
(i) Employees' Benefit Expenses 25 2,778.27 1,802.21
(iii) Finance Cost 26 82.64 1.00
(iv) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27 4,430.84 303.48
(v) OtherExpenses 28 1,255.95 1,290.10
Total expenses 10,164.42 3,459.52
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (2,677.07) (1,608.87)
Exceptional ltems
Profit Before Tax (2,677.07) (1,608.87)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax 17 355.33 (239.22)

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (2,321.74) (1,848.09)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations _—
Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations after tax - -

| Profit for the year (2,321.74) (1,848.09)
Other Comprehensive Income -
(i)  Itemthat will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (216.54) (49.36)
(i) Itemthat will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the years (216.54) (49.36)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2,538.28) (1,897.45)
Earnings per equity share: _
(1) Basic (Rs.) (2.54) (2.55)
Earnings per equity share:
(2) Diluted (Rs.) (1.60) (2.20)

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements| 29 & 30

Audit Report of even date attached

For D. S. Shukla & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 000773C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(Shreeharsh Shukla) (Kumar Keshav) (Ajai Kant Rastogi)

Partner Managing Director Director Finance

Membership No: 408990 DIN: 02908695 DIN: 07228424
Sd/-

Place: New Delhi (Pushpa Bellani)

Date: 23.07.2018 Company Secretary

—



LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

REGISTERED OFFICE: ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, VIPIN KHAND, GOMTI NAGAR, LUCKNOW

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

( in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As on 31st March, 2018 Ason 31st March, 2017
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/Loss after Tax (2,538.28) (1,897.45)
Adjustment for :-
Depreciation 4,430.85 303.48
Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) (355.33) 239.22
Grant Allocated from LDA (418.37) (8.81)
Interest Received From FDRs (6,449.83) (1,777.47)
Prior Period Non Cash Income - -
Gain on Disposal of Mobile Handsets (0.01) 0.171)
Interest & Finance Charges 82.65 1.00
Deffered Government Grant (4,436.88) (4,463.12)
Income Tax Refund 8.85 27.12
Fair Value Adjustment (3.47) -
SOCIE (163.86) (48.48)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (9,843.68) (7,624.62)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 20,237.35 (15,928.16)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Assets (2.72) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (263.90) (207.30)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (8.23) -
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (2,511.18) 4,446.65
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 916.68 417.63
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 12,110.11 2,186.04
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 4,162.51 2,618.47
Net Cash flow from operating activities 24,796.94 (14,091.29)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Mobile Handsets Disposed 0.77 0.95
Fixed Assets Purchased (1,97,207.32) (3,390.97)
Intangible Assets (0.82) (100.72)
Capital Work in Progress (22,414.02) (1,19,432.17)
Intangible Assets under Development (271.63) (293.82)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Capital and share Application Money
Grants Received during the year

Loans raised during the year

Loans repaid during the year

Interest & Finance Charges

Interest Received From FDRs

Fair Value Adjustment

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

(2,19,893.02)

59,127.00
19,034.84
1,28,973.00
(82.65)
6,449.83
3.47

2,13,505.49

(1,23,216.73)

63,900.00
10,946.35
1,25,100.00
(1.00)
1,777.47

2,01,722.82

—
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO

RAIL CORPORATION
D. NetChanges in cash and Cash equivalents (A + B + C) 18,409.42 64,414.81
E. Cashand Cash Equivalents (Op. Balance) 1,00,718.46 36,303.65
F.  Cashand Cash Equivalents (Cl. Balance) 1,19,127.88 1,00,718.46

()
(i)
(i)

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash and Cash Equivalents include :
Cash on hand and balances with bank
Short Term Investments

15,090.83
1,04,037.05

1,19,127.88

62,421.29
38,297.17

1,00,718.46

For : D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Membership No : 408990

Sd/-

(Shreeharsh Shukla)

Partner

Membership No: 408990

Place:

New Delhi

Date: 23.07.2018

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

(Kumar Keshav)
Managing Director
DIN: 02908695

Sd/-
(Pushpa Bellani)
Company Secretary

Sd/-

(Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Director Finance
DIN: 07228424
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION
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Note - 15 Other Financial Liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

( in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 AsatMarch 31,2017 Asat April 1,2016
Long Term
Performance Cuarantee Received 541.48 293.88 79.16
Total 541.48 293.88 79.16
Note 16 - Provisions
® in Lakhs)
Particulars AsatMarch 31,2018 AsatMarch 31,2017 Asat April 1,2016
Long Term
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 623.62 117.97 12.53
Total 623.62 117.97 12.53
Note 17 - Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets
R in Lakhs)
Particulars Ason 31st March 2018 Ason31stMarch2017 | Ason 1st April 2016
i)  Deferred Tax Assets - - -
a)  Unabsorbed Depriciation as per Income Tax 93.78 37.11
b)  Provision foremployee benefitschemes & others 62.32 -
Sub Total (i) 156.10 116.10
ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities
a)  Depriciation/ Amortisation 355.67 215.67
b)  Preliminary Expenses W/ Off - 39.66 39.66
Sub Total (ii)
Add/ Less: Opening Balance 355.33 116.10 (102.12)
Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (Net) (355.33) 355.33 116.10

Deferred Tax asset has not been recognised as there is no virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Note 18 - Trade Payables

 in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 AsatMarch 31,2017 Asat April 1,2016
Total outstanding dues of micro and small scale - - -
Industrial Undertaking(s). (Due over 30 days % Nil/-)
Total outstanding dues of Medium scale Industrial - - -
Undertaking(s). (Due over 30 days % Nil/-)
TA Payable 0.58 0.79 -
Sundry Creditors for CWIP and Capital Goods 18,318.96 6,500.57 3,678.15
Professional & Other services Payable 20.33 73.21 715.14
Advances from Customers 87.60 - -
Others 340.66 83.45 78.70
Total 18,768.13 6,658.02 4,471.99

—
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Note 19 - Other Financial Liabilities

LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017 Asat April 1,2016
Short term
Deposit/Retention Money From Contractors & Others 6,959.34 3,044.43 640.68
Total 6,959.34 3,044.43 640.68

Note 20 - Other Current Liabilities

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017 Asat April 1,2016
Current
Duties & Taxes Payable 1,020.93 928.29 557.31
Payable foremployees 146.04 105.95 59.31
Advance for Recruitment 541.34 - -
Interest on EIB Loan 224.04 - -
Security Deposits from Customers 18.59 - -
Total 1,950.94 1,034.24 616.62

Note 21 - Provisions

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 Asat March 31,2017 Asat April 1,2016
Short Term
FOREMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 0.64 63.74 17.73
Others* 1,341.46 4,295.20 -
Total 1,342.10 4,358.94 17.73

*QOthers include CWIP Expenses Payable, Employee Reimbursement Expenses Payable, Equipment Hiring & Maintenance Exp
Payable, Interest Accrued But Not Due (EIB Loan), Provision for Custom Duty Reimbursement, Provision for Gratuity Contribution,

Provision for Pension Contribution etc.

Note 22 - Revenue from Operations

R in Lakhs)

Particulars Fortheyearending | Forthe year ending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Fare Box Revenue 435.45 -
Non Fare Box Revenue 119.95 0.43
Total 555.40 0.43

“




Note 23 - Other Incomes

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

 in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearending | Forthe year ending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Other Income:-
Miscellaneous Income 34.98 63.95
Interest Income :-
Term Deposits/FDR 5,765.80 1,169.21
Flexi Deposits 396.03 556.94
Intereston E Net A/c 288.00 51.31
Deferred Revenue Grant 418.37 8.81
Fair Value Adjustment 28.77 -
Total 6,931.95 1,850.22
Note 24 - Operating Expenses
® in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearending | Forthe yearending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Security Expenses 666.13 8.39
Electricity Expenses 660.82 47.27
Equipment Running & Maintenance Expenses 15.13 7.07
Housekeeping Expenses 164.05 -
Depot Running & Maintenance Expenses 21.30 -
Station Running & Maintenance Expenses 70.62 -
Stores and Consumables 5.18 -
Insurance expenses 13.49 -
Total 1,616.72 62.73
Note 25 - Employees' Benefit Expenses
 in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ending For the year ending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Salaries allowances & other benefits 1,510.77 999.57
Contribution to Provident Fund & Pension Scheme 287.38 250.32
Lease Rent for Staff Accomodation 206.87 184.86
Medical Expenses 22.71 26.57
Vehicle Hire Charges 276.12 123.59
Staff Uniform Expenses 25.90 55.54
Leave Encashment Expenses 314.96 109.76
Contribution Towards Gratuity 133.56 52.00
Total 2,778.27 1,802.21

“
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Note 26 - Finance Cost

LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

® in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearending | Forthe year ending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Bank Charges 1.25 1.00
Intereston EIB Loan 81.39 -
Total 82.64 1.00
Note 27 - Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Fortheyearending | Forthe year ending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Depreciation / Amortization for the year
a)  Tangible Assets 4,276.82 156.35
b) Intangible Assets 154.02 147.13
Total 4,430.84 303.48

Note 28 - Other Expenses

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Fortheyearending | Forthe year ending
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Printing & Stationery Expenses 115.98 63.70
Telephone, Internet & Communication Expenses 88.36 55.75
Books,Periodicals,Newspapers & Magazines Expenses 0.71 2.02
Auditors Remuneration 3.79 2.07
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 123.18 114.04
Office Running & Maintenance Expenses 95.08 56.52
Postage & Courier Expenses 0.81 1.86
Miscellaneous Expenses 50.93 2.73
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 130.36 139.37
Training & Recruitment Expenses 11.16 186.47
Hospitality & Refreshment Expenses 74.10 88.52
Outsourcing & Job Work Expenses 142.52 103.81
Statutory Expenses 0.05 0.88
Seminar, Ceremony, Conference Expenses 233.55 146.39
Commission & Brokerage 0.14 1.59
Licence, Legal & Other Expenses 9.11 6.20
Professional & other services 107.19 278.77
Rent, Rates & Taxes 43.63 39.41
Fair Value Adjustments 25.29 -
Effect of Forex Fluctuations 0.01 -
Total 1,255.95 1,290.10
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VR ol@TaRiel iR orar fa|mT Indian Audit & Accounts Department
HTATTI HETORATHR Office of the Accountant General

(@nfdfe Td o erRaTIe), S (Economic & Revenue Sector Audit), U.P.,
“anfec Yo" SAT—35-V-1, ﬁuﬂ%{ WU, "Audit Bhawan" TC-35-V-1,Vibhuti Khand,
T TR, G T$H—226010 Gomti Nagar, Lucknow - 226010

I&T - 3.1 /A @1/ LMRC /2017—18 /1062 fedi®: 27 Riawx, 2018

dar o,
yq+g fAQere,
G Al ¥d dRURIHA fafids
yemafae waq, fafte gvs, Mad TR,
oGS — 226 010

Heled,

Tdcdg U ISR 2013 @Y ORT 143(6)(b) B T a@+1e Al ¥ HRURYH fafics &
31 A/, 2018 Pl FHW dY & @Rl W YR & I9® U4 ARTIE@IUNIETd Bl SIb— IR &l
SIfAFRIA, 2013 BT GRT 143(6)(b) & [FE=Hl & ARV H HHIAI DI YD HMAI 9686 & FHET UK DY
2 ST BT T 3B & | FUAT I AT 98 & FHeT 37 SIhI— TRl & IRgd fhd S &) aredfda
Al & e |

The Report has been prepared on the basis of information furnished and made
available by the auditee. The Office of the Accountant General (Economic and Revenue
Sector Audit), Uttar Pradesh, disclaims any responsibility for any misinformation and/or
non-information on the part of auditee.

EARRIEEEIRIERI KT

AETF— TR |
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LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE ACCOUNTS OF LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION
LIMITED FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018.

The preparation of financial statements of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited. Lucknow for the
year ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory
Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) or 139(7) of
the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under Section 143 of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
23 July 2018.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a Supplementary Audit
of financial statements of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited, Lucknow for the year ended
31 March 2018 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily
to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of
the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under
Section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my attention and, which in my view, are necessary
forenabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report:

A. Comments on Financial Position :
Balance Sheet

Liabilities
1. Other Current Liabilities: ¥19.51 crore (Note-20)

Northern Railway (NR) vide its letter dated 28 February 2018 demanded crossing charges of
% 34.30 crore from the Company for permission to cross Railway land at four locations. Out of
that, the Company had deposited ¥ 33.06 crore to NR during 2015-16. The remaining pending
balance of ¥ 1.24 crore has been shown as Contingent Liability. Since, the Company is bound to
pay this amount to NR and the same has also been acknowledged by the Management in its
records, showing the same as contingent liability in books of accounts is not appropriate. This
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has resulted in understatement of current liability as well as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) by
% 1.24 crore each.

2. Provisions: T 13.42 crore (Note-21)

As per Ins AS 37 (para 10), "a provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount" whereas "a
contingent liability is (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity; or (b) a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because: (i) it is not probable that an outflow or resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (ii) the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient realibility".

The Company is carrying out the construction activities on the railway land between Daliganj-
Baadshahnagar Railway stations in Lucknow. The company has to pay charges for permission to
cross railway land along with temporary use of railway lands for nine months in view of Railway
Board's Policy in this regard. The Company has made an estimate of ¥ 8.95 crore towards the
same and forwarded (November 2017) it to the concerned Railway Authorities. The Company
has shown this amount as Contingent liability in its books of accounts.

Since, the Company is bound to pay these charges to Railway in view of Railway Board's policy
and given the fact that the Company has paid these charges in another case of crossing railway
lands during 2015-16, in terms of above provisions of Ind AS 37, a provision for the same is
required to be made in the books of accounts instead of treating the same as Contingent Liability.
Non-provision of the same has resulted in understatement of Short term provisions as well as
Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) by % 8.95 crore each.

3. the above includes ¥ 1.09 crores withheld as retention money from contractors (M/s
Aquafrisch SL ¥ 18.06 lakh. M/s Autolift Gmbh ¥ 60.04 lakh, M/s Lukas Hydraulic Gmbh
% 13.53 lakh. M/s Windhoff ¥ 17.82 lakh). Since, this is in nature of amount retained (in the
form of security etc.) from the bills of the contractors while making payments, hence the same
should have been shown under the head 'Other Financial liabilities (Note-19)' instead of
under 'Provision'.

This has resulted in overstatement of Provisions and understatement of other financial
liabilities (Note-19) by % 1.09 crore each.

4. Other Current Assets: T 212.97 crore

The above includes (a) ¥ 8.20 crore incurred by the Company on behalf of Agra Metro, Allahabad
Metro, Gorakhpur Metro, Kanpur Metro, Meerut Metro and Varanasi Metro which would be
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recovered by LMRC from these entities on their incorporation; and (b) ¥ 11.54 crore receivable
from the State Government on account of State Taxes.

Since, both of these amounts are recoverable in cash or in form of another financial asset from
another entity, hence, the same should have been shown under Other Financial Assets (Note-
9) instead of Other Current Assets (Note-11) as required under Ind AS-32.

This has resulted in overstatement of Other Current Assets and understatement of Other
Financial Assets by 19.74 crore (¥ 8.20 crore + T 11.54 crore) each.

(B) Comments on Cash Flow Statement

5. In the Cash Flow Statement, the Company has shown ¥ 64.50 crore as interest received from FDRs
under the head 'Cash flow from Financing Activities' which should have been instead shown
under the head ]Cash flow from Investing Activities' as required under Ins AS-7. This has resulted
in overstatement of Cash flow from Financing Activities and understatement of Cash flow from
Investing Activities to that extent.

(C)  Comments on Cash Flow Statement
6. Earnings per equity share: (1) Basic - (2.54), (2) Diluted - (1.60)

The Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share have been mentioned as ¥ (2.54) and ¥ (1.60) per
equity share on the face of Statement of Profit and Loss and in Note-30 'Notes to Financial
Statements read with SI. No. 10 'Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 33 Earnings Per Share". The
Company has calculated the same incorrectly. The correct Basic and Diluted earnings per equity
shareare¥ (1.70) and ¥ (1.59) respectively.

Thus the Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share are wrongly mentioned in the Financial

Statements.
For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India
Place : Lucknow (Raj Kumar)
Date: 27 September 2018 Principal Director
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Management Replies in reference to CAG report under Section 143(6)(b)
of the Companies Act 2013 vide letter no.
E S-1/Company Accounts/LMRC/2017-18/1062 dated 27-9-2018

Sr.

No.

CAG Comments

LMRC Replies/Compliances

(A) Comments on Financial
Position:

Balance Sheet

Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities:
19.51Cr. (Note-20)

INR

Northern Railway (NR) vide its
letter dated 28 February 2018
demanded crossing charges of INR
34.30 Cr. from the Company for
permission to cross Railway land at
04 locations. Out of that, the
Company had deposited INR 33.06
Cr. to NR during 2015-16. The
remaining pending balance INR
1.24 Cr. Since, the Company is
bound to pay thisamountto NR and
the same has also been accorded by
Management in records, showing it
contingent liability in books of
accounts is not appropriate. This
has resulted in understatement of
current liability as well as Capital
Work in Progress (CWIP) by INR

1.24 Cr. each.

Reference may be drawn on the definition of
Contingent Liabilities as mentioned in Ind. AS 37.

A contingent liability is:
(@)

a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the entity; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but
is not recognized because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured

with sufficient reliability.

LMRC is of the view that these obligations are more
covered under the definition of the contingent liabilities
as the substance reflects Contingent nature, the facts are
not sure at this stage. The same are reflected as well.

Northern Railway after considering the LMRC's request
to charge LMRC for permission to cross Railway Land at
different locations, for the land to be utilised by LMRC
for operational purposes (not for Commercial use) at the
rates as published in the D. M’s list of land rates,
reduced the charges for crossing Railway Land to INR
34.30 Cr. including GST charges. LMRC had paid INR
33.06 Cr. to NR for permission to cross Railway land
during 2015-16 when service tax @ 15% was
applicable. In the Meantime, GST came into force
w.e.f. 01-07-2017 so the difference of amount of INR
1.24 Cr. pertains to GST which as per LMRC was not
payable to railways since payment was made in 2015-
16 itself. Management in LMRC is of the view that the
matter be reviewed. The matter is still under
consideration. The charges demanded by NR have so
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far not been accepted by LMRC. Hence, the amount of
INR 1.24 Cr. demanded by Northern Railway, was
shown as contingent liability and not as current liability
as on 31.03.2018 pending final decision. As and when
the issue is finalized the same shall be taken to
confirmed liability.

Provisions: T 13.42 crore (Note-21)

As per Ind AS 37 (Para 10). “a
provision is a liability of uncertain
timing oramount”

Whereas “ a contingent liability is
(a) a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly with the control
of the entity: or (b) a present
obligation that arises from the past
events but is not recognized
because: (i) it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation: or (ii) the
amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company is carrying out the
construction activities on the
railway land between Daliganj-
Baadshahnagar Railways station in
Lucknow. The company has to pay
charges for permission to cross
railways land long with temporary
use of railway lands for nine months
in view of Railway Board’s Policy in
the regard. The Company has made
an estimate of INR 8.95 crore
towards the same and forwarded
(November 2017) it to the
concerned Railway Authorities.
The Company has shown this

The following issues merit attention with regards to
classifying Crossing charges demanded by Northern
Railways as contingent liability:

The matter of granting permission by North Eastern
Railway to LMRC is under process by them. It is
understood that the case has been sent from the office of
Divisional Railway Manager, North Eastern Railway, to
the office of Principal Chief Engineer, North Eastern
Railway, Gorakhpur. But no approval/the advice for
making payment to North Eastern Railway has yet been
received by LMRC.

The request for granting permission to cross North
Eastern Railway Land of area 1128.54 sq. m and the
request for granting approval for temporary use of
North Eastern Railway Land of area 287.35 sq. m. was
submitted by LMRC on 07-11-2017.

Metro Rail Project being a time bound project with
objective to provide mass transport facility to the
common public, the work at the proposed site has been
started in terms of Ministry of Urban Development,
Gol, Office Memorandum No. K-14011/50/2014-
MRTS-IIl dated 27th January 2015. Relevant Para 3.1
relating to use of land is reproduced as below:

- “Once a Metro Rail Project has been approved by the
Cabinet, all Ministries/Departments may accord
operating rights on the relevant land (sought by the
Metro Rail Company as per the Detailed Project Report)
immediately, even during consultations between the
concerned ministries pending the actual transfer of the
land, so that work of the project does not suffer and
people are not put to inconvenience”.

The amount to be paid by LMRC to North Eastern
Railway has not yet been advised by North Eastern
Railway. The likely charges payable to North Eastern
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amount as Contingent liability in its
books of accounts.

Since, the Company is bound to pay
these charges to Railway in view of
Railway Board’s Policy and given
the fact that the Company has paid
these charges in another case of
crossing railway lands during 2015-
16. In terms of above provisions of
Ind AS 37, a provision for the same
is required to be made in the books
of accounts instead of treating the
same as Contingent Liability. Non-
provision of the same has resulted
in understatement of short term
provision as well as Capital Work in
Progress (CWIP) by INR 8.95 crore
each.

Railway for the permission to cross North Eastern
Railway Land was estimated in LMRC office and
amount of INR 8.95 Cr. was shown as contingent
liability as on 31.03.2018 in the Books of LMRC.

Under the above mentioned circumstances the issue
relating to liability on this account is yet to be confirmed
pending final decision. As the demand is not yet
confirmed. It does not seem to qualify for provision in
Balance Sheet and hence included in Contingent
liability.

The above includes INR1.09 Cr.
withheld as retention money from
contractors (M/s Aquafrisch SL INR
18.06 lakh, M/s Autolift Gmbhl NR
60.04, M/s Lukas Hydraulic Gmbh
INR13.53 lakh, M/s Windhoff INR
17.82 lakh). Since, this is a nature of
retention deducted from the bills of
the contractors while making
payment; hence it should have
been shown under the head ‘Other
Financial liabilities (note-19)’
instead of showing under
‘Provision’.

This has resulted in overstatement
of Provisions and understatement of
other financial liabilities (note-19)
by INR1.09 Cr. each.

Inadvertently the amount has been included in
provisions instead of other financial liability however
both the heads are part of current liability. It is assured
that compliance of the same will be made in the current
year.

Other Current Assets—INR212.97 Cr.
The above includes (a) INR 8.20 Cr.
incurred by the Company on behalf
of Agra Metro, Allahabad Metro,
Gorakhpur Metro, Kanpur Metro,
Meerut Metro, Varanasi Metro

The same has been inadvertently included under other
current assets however both the heads are part of
current assets It is assured that compliance of the same
will be made in the current year.
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which would be recovered by
LMRC from these entities on their
incorporation and (b) INR 11.54 Cr.
receivable from State Govt. for State
Taxes.

Since, both of these amounts are
recoverable in cash or another
financial asset from another entity,
hence, it should have been shown
under Other Financial Assets (Note-
9) instead of Other Current Assets
(Note-11) as required by Ind AS 32.

This has resulted in overstatement
of other Current Assets and
understatement of Other Financial
Assets by INR8.20 Cr. (Other
Advances) &INR 1,1.54 Cr.
(Receivable from State Govt. for
State Taxes) each.

Comments on Cash Flow Statement

In the Cash Flow Statement, the
Company has shown INR 64.50 Cr.
as interest received from FDRs in
the head ‘Cash flow from Financing
Activities” which should have been
shown under the head ‘Cash flow
from Investing Activities.” As
required by Ind. AS 7. This has
resulted in overstatement of Cash
flow from Financing Activities and
understatement of Cash flow from
Investing Activities to that extent.

The same is noted by the company and it is appreciable
that interest on FDR has been suitably disclosed at
relevant places of Financial Statement for transparency
and to enable the user to draw conclusion over the
interest earned by the company from bank deposits,
further we assure that suitable classification shall be
made in ensuing Financial year.

(C) Other Comments

Earning per equity share: (1) Basic-
(2.54), (2) Diluted-(1.60)

The Basic and Diluted earnings per
equity share have been mention at
INR (2.54) and INR (1.60) per
equity share on the face of
statement of Profit and Loss and in

The same is a typographic error while feeding the
formula for weighted Average Number of Share where
in 63900000 was typed as 6390000 inadvertently in
final copy.

It is assured that compliance of the same will be made in
the current year.
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Note-30” Note to Financial
Statement read with SI. No.10
‘Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 33
Earnings per Share””. The Company
has calculated the same incorrectly.
The correct Basic and Diluted
earnings per equity share are INR
(1.70) and INR (1.59) respectively.
Thus the Basic and Diluted earnings
per equity share are wrongly
mentioned in the Financial
Statements.
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yde fAe9red &1 @<l

fra SravaRet,
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i@ Ud AeTeraTaNietd ol fewfort afed wu @ 54t arffe Rard wgd e g ed sIar 2 |

1. fa<hg aRemy sk srifasares

31 919, 2018 BT G A< a9 & forv o=t &I fa<ira Rerfa

faazor fa<r af 2017—2018  |fa<r adf 2016—2017

H T 7487.35 1850.65
TCIV: YaTel & 5650.94 3155.04
HCTY: eIBT 4430.84 303.48
e faxia &g 82.64 1.00
TTY: YIS A (216.54) (49.36)
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PR UTATd fadt o (8119) (2538.28) (1897.45)
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IHAT A AT T | IRT @19, ITER AT oS AL, 9T &I el gl Yol URATSTT &I W@HTd B &
foTq ScaTel S| # o |

SIUTE TR 3R ARANT & 1 STR—CMRTT Wl BIRSR (ol 19) & 8.5 foHl & "UIIfiddl dRISR” H 316
Telldes Hel I & | I8 < | HST Nol RIS e & sfaerd # v UfaeiRie Sudfer W&l & m=
qRd ¥ AT AT § v =71 Hifa <enfud fear g |

TGS HGT < D VT TRl HgT 7 Roraet ear Rt 91.1 THUHA & A1 36 xR YT UHUH AT 371-H
a1 21 3@ I8 IS HEl @ IR & forg aft Agr
FIFEI R @ A, Adeie gad, e ok
R AT SUA BT RET B WHR b e
T <9 & foTU, oRegee, Al 7 30w ) Yo Rd Hel
I TR AU T FE BISURD! DI W d5—HTS
JAagT B YR Bl | UDBI BUA T U I
JlAemd g Hed AR & AJdhel a9 & forg T
3FIdH B BT & |

YIRS WS—1T W 3H ST & forv 6 RideR, 2017
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YUl & dR H 319 hISdd AT B H Sl
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TP I ST XET © | AT SOl AT 3R el

TG § Y fagarT Prell § SR Her Y&l § |

5. HfEa 4gl RIAEl & Sl @l
Rerfa

1 31T, 2016 X AfIATAT HET I ATSC
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FORMST gl wIFEl dfed 367 fHA.
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HUT 1 7 3R 8 HS, 2018 DI — U & d1& Y — QI T SUAIRRAT BRI Bl S1d AT 3R T qHDb QT
TS IR AT BTH IRT B & d1a BRIl el [FHT0T oIl | dTeR (Fdhedl | 39 WA & YRT 814 & 12,
TGS HGT H BRI & d1d SN BT B Aherdrgad YT B fodT 2 foRTH IRanT ¥ goRais & a9
fFQ ST aTel got el BRI &l T 75% W7 AfRa 2 |

6. Udd Tid

RIS HET el HIANL Bl 20 1 B
317 80 PIaT 3R RIS, HET Bof 1U B
forg <=1 fimroT 3iR Ry=ifei T gommedt @
gl veRetH grede gReam for ok o iy SRl

o . |: qum?ﬁ . fﬁf :r.l. o e e i
gRT @1 T8 8 | ¢A1 @ 3myff 3ifeR fay .
S & 978 ¢ 3MYfl & forw 64 wE K .- R ——
B AT A B Ay F Y T | i : R R
GRRFd ¥ & forg IRd # Fe B :

SIS Sy o TR Ryvfef T wierer oiR B N N .
RSN FaTferd et uieror TR DU, S FIeT B W T A
IR FRA BT 1RG B DI YT ¢ |

Hid H fESTs @1 T8 A MAhdd $5 IRA H Ueked giaule e fol. gRT I8 & Folald 37U+ wiic
T @1 St € STafes ¢ M=o 3R RE=fel<T yorretl @ JMyfd Teke i SiuIe THY, Wi gRT &1 S |

FIE @ 94 I T [ AL @ SfoR—F g3, U e 30 s & 3e¥d §HF 3R 100 ds &
fSSITeT oed |fed 00 B HALTH. BT fSTms T &R 32 ¥ 35 fBALTH. & FeiRa T F@=s H ywfaq

THIREIUT P12 |

TAUHARHAT BT ¢+ AT I[UIE, HH TR KR AR GATIRT FJheldl & Fael § FHofl derd, [aeaa=ia 3R
izt & forg dEar gaumew s € | dral 3 e KA W 3l iR god aod @ 7 | S1ferd St
FeH ¢l DI gAoeUTa Sfh T, 9T & IR 3faves [Igd Hofl GUITell Sl Holl I19d AT & | 7 Bl
| JoTIferdl &1 R SR e ik uR FRIF0T Ua ATShIvIRER SETiRd g7 FRI=vr ok geaes
goTTell (TCMS) g1RT foaT ST 2 |

7. @S dgl gRT Afgar uidicsfqe, gefigferar # RAifaT wewe (RSS) &1 fFior
R ARHA
TGS Al 71 8 faHaR, 2017 & Al Ulclicdi~d, Jeiyferar Rerd MgdHdd 220%d1 /33l / 25l
RAMIT Fere e (RSS) AE AfaSTeR] H HIRCH AE SR AR e B [FHI0T Y% 6T | I8 a—weeM
=1, =R RE TIRUIE & HeNgferan O@ X 22.878 b Al ofd STR—aIE0T RISR (Wol 17) &I fagfd &l myfed
BT | T8 ARYATH oG-S, AT Yol URIATT & B 17 & TR AT HNISR Bl 25%d] S aRI UTdR 3R 33ddT
SITFASTERY UTaR @t MLt e & fory R favar T 2 |

8. Tymaferw, 29 fg=or, foue 3R tewded
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PIss IMfSAT WIFT ¢hb Afbe, WATferd ¢ TaTa YolTell (ATO), Xaarferd e i iR waarferd ¢+
A[CIe AfEd ETferd 9 ThdeTor Jumel! (ATS) @ AH | ¢ 9 ¢F 9dR died dd REfelT & arer
XqATfeTd ¢ GRedT (ATP),

o WAl @ 19 I@Erford ¢ FETed & YU & A1 ¢F diad & gAdq a@d & 991 wWEifeld wd |
Terd! & Sl I8 A Gl oxar & & o+ Trgdg, T8 3R M e A W R v a1 yfaeferd fdg 4
3R % | TATferd ¢ TRIdereT Yorlell fARAaR &4 | ¢F Aol &l TIJervT dvd Y ¥aarerd we AT iR
TETferd ¢ R 3R SR ReIfcral # ¢ Fared &l $¢dd a9 8U o AdTel &l Wealiord g

AT el 2 |

TRHAR YTl &1 HT HAH Terde] ol a7 137 2 | R HieR & forg f$aime= o1 sifers & far o gar 2 |
TrIHT WS UR T4 YR AR HIR RFfeiiT ToI REUR SuehRoT wIfud f6g 7y & |

Bl 17 I STR—GTNIT BRISR & YEbelcd BT BT ATINT RATST gceladald sesl 0 &. fof, T4 ik
T sfear fafiics, YRd & HAICTH BT AT AT & | Y 17 I IR Sl RISR & oy fofwe] &1 R
Hesd Sit~ae foraes UT. fo1. &1 f&am am 2 | wraifiadr @s & 94 gibaled 3R foldd T @ JIR:AET ¥ gl
Bl ATl B T T8 1 3R a0 H ATaui~dh STAN H 8 | ] Ws & oy Teheled iR folel &I mgft &1
BT TIT R L |

9. adrferd fH=TAT HUBYT YoITe

qulell (AFC) U fA-d Bl dfed &
I | 35 oo Afsd #, Taewd! 9% &
IJ@ # Uh AT 12 991 & forg Ty
YUl & BT B Yoil 3iR [ERETE AN
BT I8 BT © | TaSIUHAT db SAIYH ATDI
P PI-giss W dre AT IR BT, e
(PoS) ®R fAf3a d&] wred & AR TR YN
T ST FhdT B | TIE TS BT @S Al &
SqdIe HARIE & GRM AMTSHRS dR W
Y BT T o | IRAUIE TR W ARG Tcp | ——
gl 8 WM @ U ST 3R Feliss Tl IR
& TUHA SUGROT i 3R e fhy Ty F |
W BT oG TATd- & fIT Wi & 9 | 1 TTHT YUITell Halgordd adid I BRI R I8 & | TUHHT
JUTTeA &1 43 fIRIvaTg §9 oK &

o IET B foly TR BIes fedwe &1 T

o I YT B foTU SATUH Hd HAUBHRed WIC Bl

3MI@T HU fEHIST TR & folw U 3Muv—o A &1 &I A &3 @l ufthar # 2, S o
At aRaew & fafi=1 AregHl § 7=y 8 SR YTl o1 A & oy fedhe @lier & @ 8 3=

TR—ATAT YA B # T FerH G 79T |

JMUPHT U 7 TGS AT & fo¢ U VT faafid fhar € | o8 uRRags wormel g1 anferd U fefied Argla
Juerel SR o TRl &1 fafire Heg aftfa Jard gt g |aae |
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10. dbfcUd oI Ugdl

3T 3R BT GG I & SGaed ¥, 3MMUD] HUAT dhfeud AT & olY el ArTfT ofiR 3= Hrai &1
AT g9 & i WISl R81 © | IR—IBRIAT dfe I9%d & AT Bl Ug=r 3R Terel Bl 78 & o7

ferferRad o1 enfaet farar T &:

IR CEI R

o TR faemr B &R famma
o Ukl &1 e

o Jiffcd BIZaR Haed B AT

o TR W SlINl R AT

e Uifd

FHo! fasmae, IfeTe® fadr iR fhRTe U= Tifdhr &fiR erar WRT & <fifiTT = o 31T B e R |

11. GAToIdhdl Ugel

STeR # yRae grar # 31fdres GuR o & fory s wuT g1 fafie=T v fag s vz €|
IRATSTT WP WA & Hae H, MID! HUN DI @A AR & oy IRIg & fafr=
HIETHT B UPHIHRT 3R TEANT DI AT g1 BT rereer ff foam 1 8 | 559 fase &l R
PR B o1, SMIBT BUT o HST ¥l B AT & IR IMh HEH SoT & AR TRATSH IR
P B 39b U HUN T TSI LIEI 9 3R dd U IR ifow Wi §uh b w_Y
ATEIER / IaTedd ® dR TR 3 R & a0 <) &, s9d o1 du=l 7 Aafi= JgT e i 9
JER IS ITAL BRI & oIy HEH Brg-ifcd FF Toll U8 UraR Hieger feifics &l
& UaT fhar € |

12. SR UYL & fafi= w8 & Agl uRArs=en &1 fsares

TR U9 WRPBR 7 UF ¥, 38 /8—7—8—18 HSI /2017 faHAH 11-1—2018 ERT YR WRBR 3R IR Y0
TRBR DI AIGGT 50:50 FIA WA DI HU o3, ALl ¥el BIIRH ferfics (LMRC) & Udhdl THUIdT &
TR OR Yo Bl 3rgHIa R T & 3R STR Uawl & fafi=1 Aecaqul wexl # fafi=1 Agr X aRIrsTeil &
BIATTIT g DU BT AT EeAd SR U ALT ¥l draed fefice (UPMRC) @+ @ RIwGIRe &1 2 |
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HYR, ITRT 3R RS R B! AR gRATS Rure (DPR) WRA WRBR & AFAGH BT UfhaT H 8 |

13. HRITAT—ERETT f$ul

IIR—GRIT HET BIRISR (BT 17) BT HU BT BIIAT—ERETd f$ur 3247 gerferad, dudl. dwow, giaard
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TATHIRAT & Iepe URIer s (COET) A
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UfRTERIT T UfRIEToT UaT R H HeTd A1 A FThad $ef ¢ |

IGE UTED HaT & oy FIER FHIAAT H GIR B D ol HISiSS] Harg iR FdgR FHEreral R YRS
ST ¥, TRaT); IoTTdl SRETeT ofvdel Siffthe U TRIT ok Tfcftad SRl iR o1 ufdftsd Wiy
gfteret | Fafid greasa darferd HRar e |

TE I B I AEdYU! BRI O BIYR, IRIVRT, #RG, 3TIRT, SATSIETE 3R TRGYR H T4 7SI & fofg Ua
It Hieet B |

15. TAUHIIRH gIRT feul ¥ waarfera sruflR¥rse daiReT w3iiq wenfud; SR y= 91 &1 3ifere
¥aeo 3R gRT 9910 X&H 3 AR 9¢d ded

Ig TAUHIRYT §RT IR U Dl 3ffddh W 3R
R 91U XGPSR ST 7T U 3R HeH 2 |
g 7T JURME B HERET HA IR [T

O8N O\

FIICT DI Sifdd dHRE IR B o fear 3 g &
g fdr, O ok gfRarel @1 gread aed o & forg PN
TR AT o1 A | '
39 YU WElerd HuReT #ei_ # f$ul &
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TIFEI R AT gRT Bap Y qardy, Icdra YANT
fPy SR | 9% 9ol H, w9 e A &
fEpUIvTe™ o @ 915 I qarferc! &1 wifdd

- (N o
HURCT IHT<dd DA |

16. <iOUIe TR R 4l. Iv0T g TaRUld Acl € d & 149 Avag dRe sae=

RIS, WGl Nol BN (LMRC) 7 SRIOIE TR 8RR @Y. =xoT Rig TIRUIC AgT I $d & §1d 25Bd]
AMARES ST ATMUT B & (1Y 5 3K, 2017 BT BRI Yo B (9T 7 | 39D o1, 391 Al & 419 Yelldes
IRISTE TR IRI—INT | 3R &S gelfdghde (OHE) ARE T ST £ |

NS ARE AR T H ISR BI WIYAT & A1 B BT ST 2T © | T8 UhAT DI ol B 3R FH Sfeal
RT 6 o forg forar ST 2|

A1y & AT Rt # ) RSTS sffavgs del Ried (ROCS) & Bk Xl Bl XTI Yo B &1 7S © |

17. &l
TATHIRHT 3THTH FRET R GRET AFG Sl & A1 YuI ORE H IR © AR 59 {77 HUT 7 31U ey,
TR, 3179 ST 3R AR 1T HRIG Shari & s1He! & foy fAfi= gRem SFTeeddT SRi%H I & |
TRITSTT GReM TRR1eror A1 SdhaRl & S1ed! 3R ATse HHeRAl & fog e fbar 11 € | yg@ gsi o
forforeTT SONFRRT, Fam= aTell, STeaRi 3R TR, fUd T BN B ATIRexl sl & v Ferwar fHerior
arerRa ufreror SrafTe forar T 2 |

—
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HET T DY 24 T AR & forg wrrfidar we & il e iR RS, feeaed, b=, Aed feaed
sTfe %efud fy v € | wfiear g @ ¥ AgT WIH &r A € iR JE&HI 9 B Se & forg
f&Sirg= fbu g 2 |

Il T€ & 8 T AR 1 Sl SMSUHRNT 14001 3R ATATAVTH 18001 B TFAR FHIOMT fhy Y &,
TGS ST BT 17 & g7 S & FoIU YHTOE YT R B UfhAT | © | HUT T=Ted=l & fol MSTHINT 9001,
JMETHAT 14001 3R ATATATTRH 18001 B foTy TAIOIG B BT M Ufhar # 2 |

> I gre feaw 9aRiE (4 91, 2018):

HUA IS IY 4 ATE DI R oGS Gl
R RIS & fTQ I G feasy a1
3R ol HHaATRAT 3R Al # arfdrs
SIS EAT UaT B & foly R AWl W
UAUHSIRE  SOifaxl @ik goisl
HHARAT @ U AR qo9 S8 3R
IEHT B G IR G BrihH
ImTfoTd, faaret 3R RT UfATRTdT, agR
AR FReT  BRIHA AR FA5S

ShaR R, BOHIUT YRR,

IR WAEE R e wa AT RN A8 B IR AU FARIE
ferg g |

>0 faea yatazoer feaw waRE (5 9, 2018):

fareq gataRvT fead IaRTaTS qataRoiiE BRars @ oy Favt 921 afiie 1RimH & iR Ul av 5 S &1
AT ST 2 | fave uieRer fRaw v & ol g, givuie R feul, yavHeiRdl # iR afed
TR0 Jq&l & IR H SIRTRedhdl UaT -1 & oIy uafaRer Riem &g & $RisA Fowed gRI
TAUAITRT HHaTRAl & 9 faasr ufcranfirar afed qaiaRer Siredar wiieror far 1, gafavor &
TARETOT H AEHTRTAT BT 9TdT - & fofy ART SR UReX g9 &I URAIATAT St &f 78 &R fafa=
TIRITRICTRIT & fSTaTail T YR¥BR 3R YHTOIS f3U Y |

>  JieiR Ugd &l SUfRI:

TATHIRR & SIRAUIE TR T Ul # 81+ SRImer |8 fA1eror § &R WedfelT arsy I & Bd U 1
HITATC YT &THT & ATeR Uel WU fdhy € SiT 14 7 2018 W 301, AT WIH! 3IR 37 AgT iawmai #
TANT & folq fAg]d ol IUTET PR IR ¢ | I8 WieR URATSHT UIUHSTR §RT ATdSi+d & & a9 &
=T XY Ated & il AT @1 T8 |

TIRAOE TR fUT # SIRUATH &1 JaTa- D [Aefd SToxd 981 dee & foft givae R RAifdT w9
T (RSS) @1 B WR 10 fdhalrare eTddr & Aok U=t WY wenfid fey e |

fafos ws, MHdl 9R ¥ d@=S AT & YIS Ya9 &1 Bd IR 12 fholidre e9dr & Irek d9d
T %erfia foy g € | 3 ) yare # £ iR g9at auTe ¥ Srafad & uge 8 fagd el o) gatd
IId BT & |

—




ST & Uoligd Fraferd o B0 W AR U

> S Aok UBdl © 3Tdl, TRads, Hel o
faf=T ol ReToT U 3T & o
Sl H gded i & WA &
IRUTRTRY S ol § 30 9 35
mﬁwﬁﬁéﬁﬂmﬁ?ﬁ

(ECS) 3R -1t dfeer yometl (TVS) & i [ -8
foTU Gootl Terd USRI BT TRINT ST | A T BT e g

18 @S Agl ¥ SIUIHE fafics &l (¥R SR 9=

> 51T, 2017 BT GG ALY Nel DIANT IS B HIST B THIGT Yder YOIedl B AIA & TR W
MRS AABIHRT HTed (ISO) 14001: 2004 AR ARG W@ReH 3R Grerl FeiRor sfRger

—
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(OHSAS) 18001:2007 Y&T T 73T |

> 2 Fde%, 2017 DI, BUAT 7 dF 9§ F A HH Rl qwg H
SIR-Gf0T PRISR (Bl 17) uRAeT & 85 fh#dl &
‘MBI WS BT QT AR AT IXA b forg Agr o F
gfafed S US SS¥EIT $3hT JREBR UTw fobhaT |

> 6 Fda, 2017 P, HUHI DI BEXIEIE SEIAITA B9 Hex
(HICC), gexrare (A=) ® 104} ard= Aifaferdt gfean afha
IR TaHfdeE &R dlerg XVII S19hE 3 o@Ts, gl Xd
RIS Bol 17 (STR—SIE BRISR) & v qdIs e
S aiRag" =iofl 3 37Ul Seeid+ Ugd & oy faviy qRepR
PEHERCDIRIEI TS FHAR REBR

> 1 BRAN], 2018 DI AWAS, Sl Bl SR USI Bl IOl H 88—
IRAET & U BRA ARIH & Hra=ad & forg o™ (gRarom)
H e 4t |fie’ | B8R ugel’ v & foy REPR U™
e T |

Tamrirmasl of s
Sy of Hassag & Urisis &Fsirs

> 18 BRAYI, 2018 BT AW, HSl Bl WRBR B qa W€ URIET | e
USRI HGT Bl YA 3R HIIadd 1 & oIy e
YRGBT, 2018 HT & fobaT |

> 23 BRAY), 2018 BT HUA T TR, HU YSY H SSUT TrRAU iy
T BT 237 eI TRBR & SR 3 TR Bre | " R b i ot P
qIS—BTS T3] BT Hdg DR ® o1y araRerd 2ol § ‘Caraiton e I i
| QRIBR, 2018" UK BT | HHH CIST—[elRATD oAl §RT N o T i ST e

ST oRa=Tg, FgT BT YT URASHT BT 01 STas), 2017 | ==
31 fa9aR, 2017 T &1 AT B ST Wk 3R JReT Y&+ & N
forg Iaat ArTsl BiR & fide &ifs TaRiiscd (RoSPA) §RT | it B et ery P

D YIS “IRATTAUIY IoTd REDR YT BT TAT 2 |
19. sfeas W= fafesT e (IGBC) gRI

TAUHARET & R A¢l ¥ YUIell &l . [

gaIvH; s96 gH) 36 I bl wifeqaq _ i
Indian Green Ballding Council (IGBC)

YHTOTH IS v

foedY gotet! r BRT’ YuTTell & wU # ST SR JH0H CRpns Moty £ o

é%f Il gRd & M ﬁ—cb—l—q—m 9 fafeeT 150 i i MR

PRIl (IGBC) & UTUHIIR &I "8Rd #gT o e e O R A T M

JOTTell” AT R gY, SIUIE TR W IR dh Phiises @

TG DRISR' TR $HS 4T 31T HET X! BT 31

3R, 2017 Y A ETH THIOT—T FeT fham & | ﬁ'—f i)

AT PSR & 8 WIFEl @ forv wifedq

—
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THTOT—07 3R Wi | Ig foedl O fufae Gx==m a1 yaq & forv datea gRa T 8 S Tauasmsd) &1 <&
TE 21 I8 U AR 991 ST & o ToTuaaRe = 81R1T fhar 2 | I8 e Soai@=y & fb e
AT BT 37U ATfOTRIes |aTg T S | Ugel BRA AGT Yo' FATOTT fHar Tam & |

TP AT & TAUHIRYT $fea= I fAfesT Seiaet &1 wife® YAToTI= Ured &+ dTell oiRg—s; & § Ugoll
IRBN ST 3R IR <9 & uRaeT &7 & gl WM WX 2 |

20. TR YAl

MY HU =1 T & SR WRA ARDHR 31X IR TS IR I AT & TR W 639.00 RIS TII U fhy |
31 |14 2018 P el UG TR Yoil 1581.65 RIS DU & | HRA TRBR §IRT AT adI9or Ye & R,
3502 1§ S TIaell faTaryor Uikl & A1e 9 S[eg O © | $efsel (R fFraer da) ¥ 450 fHferas 31
1 fATATYoT B Bl FEafd <1 € | 200 e IR & ¢ U & forg fa<itg argde uR 30.03.2016 3R 250 fAferg=
WD ¢a 9 B forg faxii 1gee R 31 A9 2017 BT SRER fbY 1T | 9RA TRBR - {77 a9 2017—2018 H
UTUHRIRR BT 981 HRIS BUY BT AfdaxoT fohar |

21. HI9d 9491

UATHARY! P Ygerd gHe I§ He9qd $RAl © b
URd, T« R AT BRI FISAHD Igavdl B
AHAAYAD U BT ol © | 59 Iqa Bl & 4
R B, DU AT FATE [IhTT 3R ST eeatl |
D UG P AIRH Fed <l &) 9 B AR
FRlET—®HaN] ey "igegel 99 B 3R |
UAUHSIRHAIUS el DI GRT & H prAareg gr| =
TG B AR ¢ |

31 AT 2018 I, HUAI DI HHAN FEIT 454
(@RETSTAT # 321 3R YT 4G I@RErd H 133) oY |
IR &feror HRISR 1 fHfor wfafafedt o1 g_1 a3
TR 2| VTR 30 HaTRal & afad faers & forg fafad uf¥eor ye™ oxar &1 ® ik fafis

BRI, BRI ST S AT HRATIET 2 |

T H 315 /1SS / ¥Nfa. /31.fua. / et / Afgetreii / qa Al & foly TRevl & Hae H WRd TRBR
TAT TR TSI WRBR GRT THI—THT TR STRT fhw 70 feenfa<en & grei= fear SIer e |

22. Higive AHEIfvTe SRS

TATHARYT HITHIANR T BT e Sig fafderar, Bt iR STel |xeror Afad el 3R $lere fdem, w@rey ok
HAT 3R qATaReg RRAT UR 37U BIhd & ATEgH A FHIMT DI @A HIAT © | $9 9SG ¥ Sila dl
UG H GUR PR & JGAR YT $HR U GHIGI & aferd a3 bl FednT w1 | (fed 8 | g @l T8
TRATSTTG HUT TATEH 2013 BT AT VII & SATIS S & HIaR 81 |

fere e B PIURS AMINTG SR (CSR) i 7 it fAfaq <#er Maol, yem= afa, smarst @ik
e TS fTT; 37 orera wid wwar), e (<), 57 728 HaR (e, 3TRYw U UH) enfia & |

TN a9 & SR s O facii auf § 91¢ & SR HU IR BT WHTR AT Te! 8 | TgIR, B
= =TT Ay | PIg ATHAR TicrfIferat T8l a1 2 |

—
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23. BRI W A9 IS B AHATH

RIS, HET AU AfeelT HHATRAT Bl T GRIET BRI ATeIdl SUTel BRI & oy ufiag © | 39 Gay ¥, 718
9l & Heg Sfer FaeR B1 APICT DI JeTdl ol & (o7Q FHIIRT HIIEToT Uradshd H fefiT HaadRor iR Uh
AR MfAe fpar Tam 2 |

HUAT B BRI TR A IS DI ABAH Haell T AT & | HUAT 7 BRRUA W AfRRN BT A4 it
(R, e 3R FaRT) SR, 2013 & AR ARARIT & A Icdled H FMSIT AFTA! DI GG BRI
IR I Sciis | Jad JRIET ST AEd U ax & forg fforRaa dewii &1 va sriaRe Rraerad

AfAfy &1 e fHar 2|
iaR® Rierad affifa &) wan:
o g YT I R ENISE I BN
o g A arrard - ey
(BTIRT HFT fera)
ARSI | - s
o gHTHY ofal - 9
FHIEAT 99 & SR A IS BT U AHAT AT BT T7 3R ATt BT FARTHRT o fear 1 2 |
24. uiRrEror
FHIETET 99 & IR AVSYH HHATRAT Bl I8 TS, FE IR f9RT & SgaR UfRreror wwere # fafs
TfRIEToT FeT By MY |

gf3reror e fafis ueee AT arRisH iR REfeit, o5 =0T yored, fh=mam Fusgor yomel iR vsud
TIh & foTU JaRe 3fed Sh IR uldieror erisH At Fanferd wrar © | Uf3reror Gvene SHivr, yare, eax@rd

IR UTEd AT & &3 | 31U+ dRE b URNT BRishH Harfold Hrdl Yedl g |

25. AT BT ATTDIR

AT 1 GAT BT AR AATIH, 2005 S UGG BT BRI fHAT & | a9 & SR Bel 91 ARCI3
3FTIEAT 3HIR YTl DT YA b 7T |

—
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26. Gdadl

HUAT & FADT [T BT 9 5 AADAT AN BT &, ST TGS ﬁ@iﬁ ydy fawre & gfd Sorard]
BIAT & | Fhdl SBIg B & DRIGR IR GRIGIER & R § duld Fdbdl AN & faenfrden, femm
JfaRe® feemeell &1 UTe &Rl 2 | AT Faedl STl BT 80 Iqad © (& GS[cHd diNalg Pl 3TUel
R Y8R ¥ | Sl & TR B @i 1 Bt B T sore G uRe  efiver fRpar o ¥ |

27. frardY ST

HIAT T HUT IMfAIH, 2013 DT IRT 2(31), 73 3R 74 B TG = &1 ST H DIg TG MHT T € IR 7 &
ST W BIS STV R AT I BT 2 |

28. HHATRAT T faavor
DU (YSTDTI BIHDI DI YT vd urRsifes) FrREEe, 2014 & 71799 5(1) & A1 UfST AT BT &R
197(12) & SfcTa T2 Srufera uTRs1fies SiR = faaRvr & Heifdd Udhed o] 8 ¥ |

29. fAcvr® ded

39 RUIE & TRRG DI, @S AT Vol HraRIA fofics @ feered dea # 13 e €, 598 9 5 feera
MR WRBR P AT 2, 5 IS9P TR U9 WRGR & A8 2 3R 3 BRIHSD Hed © | Afed, Ry 3R

) BRI HATY, TR ARBR STP 3eTeT & Sidih Jeel fFeih SR U TRBR b 1Al & | fFe9rh dso
R U fId e FeTfhd sifiermee Ruie @s & siavfa fear g |

30. d9IS &l 4GBl DI G&AT

e O 99 & SR, A1 & Fe9d Hed &l 98 4 9, 22 78, 2017, 1 IR, 2017, 6 STHaRI, 2018
3R 9 BRaY, 2018 BT AT BT TTE |

31. 9IS @ afafai
TS 9 3MUB! U & Yol d ABR R TP & JJAR Ao Afffoar 7fea &1 € | I € oraradien |fify
IR a9 Afafa, druRe amfe STRe¥a affa, aMies aRefde afafa, 39 Sced afafd | 595 9
TP Y- §RT W TR UR T Fe¥ A 9IS gRT (AT Srgaifad € | 39 Su—afifaal &7 96 !
HUA BT AULATHAT B FTAR FHI—FAI TR B 1 2 | 1S B ST\l o1 fdavor i sifremsa= Rare’
e o Sl fear B |

32. fAR9rdl &1 SReIIad fagwor
HUT ST, 2013 BT TR 134(5) B T H, <2 Ho F3d &

o P A IR & H, AT FeiRil & ol Sfed Wiaxvl |ied an] IR ol@id dTd] BT
e fopam TR ©;
o fIcwe 7 Ul St Aol &7 99 SR S I ®U 9§ o fhaT 3R U i @ik ergare fdhg i

fo<irg ¥ & g & Hu &) Refd iR S0 3@afd & forw wut & a7 3R 817 & e a7 3R foeer
TR TR PR D,

o fICwel 7 HU B UREURTIT B GRAT B SR IEEToll 3R =7 RIS a1 JHam™ iR gar
T @ fog Su=T AR, 2013 & UG & SR SUYdd odidh Raie! & IEREE & fog 3fa
IR g SR Bl

—
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o Ryl F e AW TomrHH UfdSH SR IR JIR fHU &

o fQwel 7 ¥l AR BT & UG BT STuTed gied &3 @ ol Sfera yonferai &1 wanT faar
3IR =Y goTferyi SUgE & SfR UMTdl AR IR B1H R IET & |

33. Wad fAeaal gRT =Ny
Iddq= F U b 2P dedl | Bis Wd AS9h 21 & Rifd ARPRI Bl Bl U1 & 2Ph Heol |

wds e o fFgfad | ge U 2 |

34. aiffe Re o ari
DU ST, 2013 BT URT 92 Bl IU—HRT (3) & UG & AR MY R BT AR HUAT Bl JaATSC

TR U &, fosaanT foia 1 o &
http://Imrcl.com/resource/downloads/

35. Foll, TRfeAr iR e &1 faavor
Raré & fdqiiad a9 & SRME, U= A
®. o afaa ar fosit e ferfaa Mg &1 318 o 761 R &;
g 5 e i e o =afaa & fonsl 07 & aier # BIg TR a7 gferyfar 781 <1 7; 8i)

T DU SARTIH, 2013 BT URT 186 B AT A iR, fHell oy AT freera @ gfenyferl @
A SEh@E, WRIE & HIEgH | T I-JAT TSN Tal fhar g |

36. <A4fera ugg o9
RUE @ arefie au & SRM, BU 7 HUAT ARATIH, 2013 BT TRT 188 BT IU—RT (1) H Hafid Faferd ueif |
BIS I AT Y El fHar B |

37. a2WId URad+ vd yfaagdig

FHU & g af & &fd &k g9 RUIC o IR & 19 T HIg deawa uRad+ a1 gfdegdrd =i g8 8, o
FHu @l focfra Rerfay a1 wvfad o=l &F |

®) U yde:

TAUHRT 3ATST & FURIE Pl el Bl dreall Al FHSIN © | SHDBI IGa IUNE IeUTE DT YATH BRAT
3TR ST A FHYT HRAT ¥ | IR Y Yga iR Iqd GA-ashvT & forg fFrferRad Sure sm=mg 7o &

F.  |ATgCl IR AR BT 100: JUFHROT GHARET fHar SITam 2 |
Q. IR HATST BT Ud I Yol & e | START SR I & w0 H GA-ah 0T fda SITm 2 |
T I TR BT YRS IUTEH Pl HH B UR FRIET0T 3R STHTmddT |

o) Sl gee:
A, HgI T 3R g=Ted Ud IEReEmd ARl # Siet |3e0r & N H 984 S7erd Hol ¢ |
ST B WU BH B B (1Y GATs DI IOl UIST I B UTATe-g FHfdhd I fhy SR 7 |
TfIRad ugel df TS &
P, IEI, Ul AR BT, arIedel ga1e IR 8] Sl Ford= g wefid fhy v g |
9. IR SUAR W37 /Il SUAR W33 I IR STdf &l : TART

T AT aTeR &R Raw &iieRis Rorae gy &l G f98T1 3R 71741 yaTs @i T &1 9anT

—
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o e QIER Yoldl Srrerdl &7 WA SR WErerd g <IAdR &HdT TR S & JIRT, STelkfed
CRIGRIEARCIRUIES

B, YA TS & [olU TS DI goII UrST ST DI YICATS

) Sl BT GRET:

TGS HET 1 fA o1l HRETT UM SO & i ¢Al § JA9carad ST & YN & IROMAwISY
TR SHoll H 30 ¥ 35 Flawd & g9d 8 ¥ WA ST T (GHG) & SAoiE § I, ICeE! &
AT e ol | ETd Tl & ol 1 Ul & AGs & SuART, |41 fovel iR ey &
forg aRuae arecst aRTae Wigddr (VVVF) S18d & TN, TIHEl R Uass! dATSel BT YA, AT
s & forv gaiaRer 5307 omrefl (ECS) iR ee dfcere™ el (TVS) & for Suil \erd Suasol
BT YANT ST |

qAE H, TS HEl §IRT XRh! Hisel & i o wedfelT s 3R fARleror arg+ 2ret # werfud 1
HAIC &AdT & ©% ATScS Wicdiecd Hell Bl dre] fhar a1 8| 37 941 1fa Uil & Ferdd,
GRATST BT 19.46: I AME SMaARS URThd < (EIUK) i, r 5 qul § RIS &f g1 fraer
AR el B | e gl |

) faqeh ga1 37l il afzafs
gy & QIR fael GaT &l Big 3177 el gs | faah afgaie &1 fdavvr 5= UoR &:

MINRUE
#.9.| faazor 2017—18 (ARG #) | 2016—17 (T #)
1 SEELRSURIE 22190 16618
2 EUENIRESINENENERIN 3468 1535
3 TR, $a9 3R 3 15 32
4 ESIRSENY 27100 Nl

: . p
P ¥ "-;;"‘ .

Wwﬁﬁwmqﬁmmé%g@mwao%%%mﬁﬁmﬁmﬁ
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feers vd g ydgaa ifie
Y & SR FAFGRT R TGN / FaTgiT aTet el &1 faaror = fam T &:
CLEANEECIEDIEST a9 & SR dRiGd A / dartgiRy
$4. | Frgad | ue™ ffed |99, |[wc@M aRA [UgaH EES I
IRERED DI AR CICRECNED SRR INEC]
BT A
1. |SILoFU PRI AfE,  27.03.2018 (1. ANIHHT YW Al 12.04.2017
qoey | i AT TR ST TRBR
T, TR Ua e
ARBHR
2. | SN HAIST |STR A, Sids, 24.0B.2017 2 % IR CRNICUIE
A, T[E@TSH  [12.04.2017
FAR | 3Tar UG e
DI TA
3. | =0 ffee v e, p7.032018 | 3. |BN gohol TSl JUR Ju AfTd, 16.03.2018
79T AT Ud I8 BT U 9T
Mol | PRSI faTT, [BREISEACSIRN
IR Fa3 AXBR BTR yQeT
AIBTR
4. | A a1y |vdy e, p7.03.2018 | 4. |87 3Telle RivgT JUR g Afed, 16.03.2018
FIR | I IS SERRCEIRC IR
¥ &3 uRag s SIIRCACEIR
SRR
NAGUA
5. | 3N &.&. HaRaTe [Aew® (<), 6.03.2018
SITHIRN
6. |30 &.&. arared BRIGN 30.01.2018
RENEACISED)
\GEEIS]
7. | 2l oIoid g [Fewe 31.10.2017
(Sg Ta),
TTUHITN]
8. |shgawfima [adwfmE, 8.02.2018
IR U™
TRDIR
9. |sN~roiamer  [feE, srar 1.06.2017
TG ITER) B

—
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HRT XD
38. fIeere vd yqge ysaa iy Sifife

BT D T GAGDHII B 1+ THR -

1. # AR B, YaY Q9T

2. #l HEvE HAR, YoibIeld Mo (el widh Ud yorel)

3. #71 3oTg Bid R, Yofepriere faere (<) vd q fa<ii aifereary

4. 3 o7 81, YuidTierd Mesre (Brf Ua iaasa)

5. ST GoAT ST, il Aierd

31 A1, 2018 BT A i 99 & oIy UiRg YaeTag HIffel o1 qiksiie e o= faavor aiffe Red &
e # afofq fear war 2 |

ENEHEIRICH

eere Hed T 9y & SR BRibTe GATK 81 alel Faerdi $1 Iroiig wmer, o gaer e, 57 seid
Jaratf 3R faerys Ietre & foTv 19T SR S HRaT 2 |

39. HE@YUl IR T AT

U BI3 Fe@yul iR qeaTa e faframe! a1 fhdt =marera serar arfdraver g1 urka =12 fhg 717 o
U B g gferss Rerfd iR 396 yarer= yarfad g & |

40. SRgH yae= i

YT HY-T FITIIT SIRIHT & Tfed 819 I Ugdl UgarH o)1 & oIV Ui & dife SIRkad vee Tfafdfer
DI AT I18 O T AR RIS & SR ATTAD Bl TR AR TSI SYATRRAT DI U o 7 Ufcrezel TTa
BT HH B B T TN b o1 9 |

39 & ¥ Y@d g ! Hul A frifaRaa fafdre sq@eat &t faftea faar 2

1. I8 GAREa &A1 {6 duel & F11 HispaT &k vfas & «ifds SiRkgal &1 fafea, FuiRa, aemeg, sfad
Y T HH, I TR HH AR ydu fhar mar g

2. I QAR AT {5 Iod WAfHadT SIREH SMhME WU A Hafd 3R FH1< fhy 9 €
3. I8 G &A1 6 |l SIRgH! T STa 9Tl w0 | QR RIS H e fham ST &;

4. YRS & Fheral & ol #Feeaqul Jgal WR Grerd Mo o & oy gde & a4l wRl OR gaT AT
PR DI FSIAT T,

5. STel 1 Y &, 3o el a1 srguTer gHfRad & |
6. JATTDI HUAT  [ARTE IR B UM R I7H GIR & Ty FR=1feTRad IuT 37U-Tg &:
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IS & TSl BT BT B AT AT TR T FTH BN 2 | 1T &, A1 B 50 A AE—1 B
TR HATferd ot T £ |
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dodl B AT
1 Y AT Pid 2 2
2 ) geber fAcTel 4 3
3 Y 35T i T 2 2
4 B IERIENIRPLIE] 2 0
5 7 988 AR 2 2
6 51 geol Rferet 2 2
. faer afafar:
=9 I BT SUl @1 e FAfT o1 AR R 5
. | U BT M qeAE
1 % AR B, Yaef e e
2 i 7EE HAR, Feeed (JIRTATSTH) A
3 it 31T Pid AT e (fax) RS

—



qrfyep fa~or 2017-18

gy & QIR fF1aer AT BT S I TR AT DI TS |

B, | 9 BT AM 2017—18 § S9d AaHd do@dl # suferfa
dRIbT d g CARIECI |
do@l P AT
1. 1 HHAR BTG 7 7
2. 3 Ao HAR 7 7
3. Y 15T id X 7 7

T HIYIRe TS SR R—Ica afifa:

PHUAT BT BIART ATHSTG SRS AT 9.2.2018 BT ST BT 7T 3R TS BT TR Bl TR B
AT A TR &

a4, | Ry 1M qe-TH

1 Y ffere T Mot UHRg A, AT SR e o fammT
IR I e, SR US9 IRBR

2 s 78 % {AR e (]It Wid s RIRTR), TeTgHAR!
3 ST 3TSTT i AT BENER(ENREISINS]

TR 99 & SR WIUHIR TR BT Bl d3d AT Tl Bl TS |

) AT 3R TR afafa:
JTTST Bl ARG Dl DU Bl ATHIR AR ITRIHS AT BT a1 59 TR &
®.4. | e &1 9™ ETH
1 3N gt Riee 3TUR & WA, 3MTaTT 31R 2T FrIrsT famT

3TN UGRT AXDIX

2 7Y ffos e Mot TR A2, AT SR AR FRreT T
IR I e, SR U9 IRBR

3 7 FAR B el e 9Teh, TeTuHarRe

4 Y 3TOT it R e (fasT), TereaaR
*27.3.2018 B 311 Yool RITd & UM WR 411 (A 1er Mot o1 Fgfaa iy 9 4, 06.06.2018 &I
I8 TR AR o1 s1edet fFgad fhar a2 |

TR a¥ & SR UTHIRYT AT BT 06.02.2018 BT Hdcd Udb IR 96 AT T T IR FfAfy
& A1 e 5 SUReIT gU |

2. YUdcHd

B) PIS TATHS FU ¥ ASEAYU] UIST ola- AT U Tacie], el a7 Yaed, Herid Ui a1
Jeferat ofe & <A1 U BT BIg HIfTd oiFied Tal § Sl YD AR TR Bl & & F B! DI &HaT
B I BR FhdT 2 |

—



&?ﬁﬁ?} @IS WSl Nl Branee fafiics

Q)  BHU g G Aifdfd FaH & IR—guTa S Sig A AT fhdl Aifafeie aTfereRer gIRT Su=
UR SRIY 91U &S IT SJA $I PIg geT A8l g8 |
M) HUA & & Tl H T T STell Ul Dig A 81 ol Sl U & FGARI & YIS A S 7 8 |

3. ®WHl P dd9IscT

HUT DI qgATSE www.Imrcl.com & | IERIT Td Harsii & | 91901 & IR H FHIGE SIBRI UG B B
o uRaTeTT, srgee, Sifa Wil Afshar Afed Hul A FafSd T TR SITHHIRAT JGAI8T TR TBIRIT DI STl
2 | q9dTge # 9T AEayel GrIeHl, HTAGATAT 3R HET Nt URATSIHT BT JRTRy 31R 317 Agcayol fawra &t
B STHBHRI AT &Y ST & |

YATIR $T 9dT :
q'(;-‘“?a BHTIATA:
fafoq wvs, M TR
I3 —226010

BT 0522-2304011
e cslmrcl@gmail.com

JedTse : www.Imrcl.com

IS ASl ¥ Uiy fafies
& e desd & fou vd S9a) X 4

g0/- g0/-
FAR HE ST ST &
I g faeel! yay e g freee
fadTe: 23.07.2018 SIMETF-02908695 SIMSTH-07228424




qrfyep fa~or 2017-18

feefig Afara Q'_@' HA $—9d : cs.dilipdixit@gmail.com
H- gfra J[9P . : +91 8354980010

BId 9. THIR—3
gadia dEmafias Ruid
31 4, 2018 &I T 3G & forv gadia dwmdags Ruid

[GUT fIfIT 2013 Y oRT 204(1) 3R HU (gD Hiffd BY
frgfea va ailRsfie) Frawmach 2014 @ Fraw 4. 9 & srgaRoTr 4]

Har ¥

NESRLN

AEGTS Al el HraRyH fafies
HIBMSTH: Y60300JUT2013THTIRI1060836
ERIEGEIRIEPACNINIBCR CEACIRERCS]
AT TR, e S, srsdy AMHIfT®
IRAd T, TRITSH—226010 TR YT

9 3MEST: cslmrcl@gmail.com

T @S, Agl ¥d Sy fafics (9@ 98 aul’ @ dR W Hefid) gRT Wier Aifdfde graem &
3T Tl 213 fTfAd ugfert & Ut &1 Wi SrarRier W= @l | AR oRaTuRIen 39 UHR &I T8
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(1) R g SiR faf aTs (Gof @1 1 iR Uae e1derg) fafrm, 2009; (AR) 181 FIIfH S
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—
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FHUA B Yol Y§EE & Seed 9, Yol § O Yol 3R SNded ifdd YR e I enfiet € | For ®
rearfore For 3R SaRar Wi 2 |

7. ARANE W9l qEP (S YQH) —17 “WllSll” & He" d Yebed

P, DI A BHATRAT B AU TiIoT / fH17 iR aRER 17 € | 3 ofioT 2ramel o dR IR IRWR WY I AgHd
Tdl IR TG Bl 8, a9 & SR HU F 206.87 ARG $UY (U4, 184.23 TG TUY) B TiIol [HR1Q BT
YA T B 3IR & 1 HHar mard & forg offet fasrg & ¥ & dea wnfie & |

(eTE Bud)
PEICE G| TP a8 | Ueh a4 9 e gig 9§ &
afere T8} IR uig o q 9 | Aftw
re] a¥ (2017—18) = 227.28 84.34
fusel a¥ (2016—17) Nl 260.21 87.33

@, HUET o 3o fafi aRuferat wiféat @1 yerer et SR WR ofioT R AT € | IR—Riavei
AT ool & d8d UIdid ST <A ool fhvrar i feam i &

(e oud)
PEICE RGN TP a8 | Ueh a4 9 e gig 9 |
e 2l IR g oo 4 o9 | Aft®
1] a9 (2017—18) 0.09 259.31 2605.93
fUwel ay (2016—17) Nl Nl 18.76

T HY BT RIS BRITAT TSl AT, STHUT dI0IR, BRI, dg-$ d R ow@+s faard
TTErRRoT (LDA) & IRER # ReId 2 | SIRIRh UR¥R @ faviy | Hafdra ggar onfl Tareiv g1 faamRmedi=
2 | 39 uRReIf 7, ®rs forvrar yaRa =21 fham Tam & @R S9d gRT 39 Al WR <ifaw Aoty forg o=
TR 39 oIgifed fhar ST |

. B A URIASHT & BRI g Rl uee / fhRiy iR 4 &1 2 3R 59 oidhd d¥ & SR,
oISt / FOh_TT TR 113.92 SR SUY BT 77T fhaT T 2 |

7 ARAN @AM ($ UUH) —19 "HHAN] A9 B " A Ybed
7.1 A= aRfia SHam &1 o™ Aol &1 JE faaver Fegar @

®) wfesy fafer:

BUH DI AiqS (e 1 gag e v (Y sy g1 a1 ST & | U ga—+eiiRd a) uR 9
ffr 7 YT sfera™ HRc B | ST BT UIgHd MR TR A {57 S 2 |

—
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@) T

FHUA DI TH IRATNT ™ I=ET A1 © | TS HHARI 9T Ui ATl a7 S99 e 31 FRaR
HaT UG _dl ©, g8 fafiar, N, e iR serar a1 9o 8 R |al & qdd o
99 & forg 15 39 & a9 (15,/26 71 i MERd ol 9d iR A& da 3R FEs well) @l
=gl U R BT BhaR © | 39 Iga% A T HIfd a1 TS © |

39 T BT YdeT IR Sig= 91 9 (LIC) gIRT fohar i v81 & s folv Ul 9 dReR
giferely <ff 21

S IS BT fATTUITOT BT GIRT AT ST © | $8 YT —19 B T& TUFETT ST bl Fehe i
A & SR 51 131 © IR i Hodlh & AR TR I Bl A1 fHaT AT |

dHIfhe T & TR I=YS! F1¥ 3ferar™ & fofq fad a9 2017—2018 H HU §RT 210.20 TRI T
T ST ITT TT7 ¥ |

TNy, BT ARATRI Sia 7 T gIRT @1 75 AT & TR 1S # sfera™ #r 2T 2 |

IR aTel HaRAl & AIRTT TATHARI BHATRAT & Fdg H, HU -1 TRl & ARIH A
J=gEY AT ot ® T udss wHar) a1 & e ot 99 & forg dag faet & <ifom emefRd aaw &
AAJ] BRIGT BT 8haR © | I8 HaT I 9@k 89 A7 TRy St ) Ugel 8 IR 4FTa 97 & | I8 o
are gy @1 FRAR WaT & are 9T Bl © | 39 e 1 yee gersg™t gR7 fban Siren © | fasy v
2017—18 & SRT G Pl 188.92 ARG BUYY & YT AN AT & AR WR 1Y Bl TS Bl Tl

T fagRor i fe=r T &

(e vud)
faa=or f¥ (e $ud)
=TS AT NI — fad a9y 17—18 185.16
TSl WifH 3.77
o 188.93

‘T) UREE

HHARY T Y ATSTHT BT TGe T [halfes T DA A% §fSAT gRT fhaT SIIdT 8 | ATSTAT dbfeud
2 3R HUN BT I AT FHAR & Hol IqT B 2.5% BT YA I6 AT © | 37afd 3g Ao 3§
3T DI YT MMUR TR HHAR AR & dad Feidd (a1 Sidl 8 | afafrgfad arer swanial &
de ¥, Y ST Bl MU Hel WIS /AR ARBR & AT & MTAR DI STl 2 3R A@idT Uy
3TEIR TR T ST 2 |

o) gk

BT 7T HHATRAT BT ARTT Gee! o™ (IR srguRefc af2d) &R eed—ad+ ggl ua™ &l g, i
Ty H A 30 faAT 31R 20 &1 H AT Bl & | Hact THTBRN IR Gee! VI H Gee! Bl HaRd I8+
TR U dbeisk ay ¥ eb IR 3R Aferafier uR ffdeped 300 =T &1 gfeedl (IR—Tdhaldror I iR fa=r

TTOTT & 3T I &1 GfeAl AfRd) BT AH<IHR0T BT ¢ |

—




qrfyep fa~or 2017-18

S W B <IAT DI (b JTH & SR TR A1 AT S 2 |

IR aTel HHATRAT & Hag ¥, B! I AT SD ol [dHRTT DI ATERT Il (FETg I AR
eIy I A2 Je1 99) & 11% B X W T & IR FABT oI Gidh UG SR TR T Srar 2 |

Al @ srfaRad TauwmRl S ianRal & e ¥ Geel FhaIaRvT Bl dHifthd Hedid Ydb diHife
ERT 5T 37 3R TaaR i@ iz 3R iy faavor # /=1 g 9 I araem {6y 1y &: —

Gl AHAIHRYT BI TVHT & RO 7 I$KR -

frae uRwfya e <l
(eI vud)
faavor G=gd (feauifya) |ged (R—fa<uifya)
(aTE Bu) (T Ju)
RIS & 1R & aaae Jed | =@, 265.98 624.26
fa. 48.38 181.71
AT URHFARRI &1 Sfad Jou 1.4, 286.01
fa. 94.93
ST H STfEreTy A7 (57e) g, 20.03 -624.26
fa. 46.54 -181.71
GISTHT TS TR AT HHTITSTH ELCE 76.63 139.91
fa. -2.53 139.91
&l el uRuING oW <ifaca | = 210.19 442.56
fa. 34.09 181.71
IioHr yREaRl #§ Saad
faa=or G2 (faauifta )  [gedl (AR—fa<uifya)
(e Tud) (o vu)
Y B ARA H IRAURTT BT I Je| A1 94.93
fug.
o1 aREURR & MRS Sfad gt -1.63
I H AR fag.
TS 31T (+) 4. 6.17
fua.
IrorT aRAURT R Ui, &1t | =1, 1.23
IRt BrEdR (+ /) fag.

—
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Ry ST H oRdaw, et g | @A
ITTfHeT IR BIeaR (+ /) faa.
UHYE &% o™ (+) 3R 716 () 14,
fua
[RRIESIFINECNCIE IS 4. 185.32
fug. 94.93
AT ARIERT §IRT 372 (+) ra.
fua
I fbU T A () 1.
fug.
FIATT IO (+) IR fFue= () | =14,
fua.
HAE (5) 1.
fug.
a9 & 3id A uRTufmal &1 1. 286.01
Stad qea fOa. 94.93
gRTfda @ <1t § Saae
faazor =g (faauifya) | ged @AR—fa<uifya)
(AT BUA) GIECE D))
Y & AR H GRFINT a4 qfeaa [, 48.38 181.71
fua. 14.29 30.26
T aT AT (+) 13, 136.59 290.84
fuq. 3.55 290.84
TS ARTT (+) 1. 3.15 11.81
fug. 1.07 2.28
ST STTATT H gRad & =13, 60.87 129.83
o (=) /=1 (+) i 11.82 26.38
forirg argaml & uRed= 4 o™ EICH 108.41 177.31
™ (=) /BT (+) fua. 15.92 36.56

—



qrfyep fa~or 2017-18

gHT FHEIH (+/ ) a1d. -91.41 -167.23

fua. -30.27 -13.57
THURT &R AT (—) 3R 81 (+) g, - -

fua. § _
TS TR §RT 3= (+) 1.

fuq. . .
SICICAKURIETS 1. -

fua. . _
AT FATH (+) 3R e () 1. - -

fuq. i
AT () a1q. - -

fug. . _
99 & 3id H aRWI¥a o sl e 265.98 624.26

fua. 48.38 181.71
AT AT BT | AT ArH
faavor F=gd (fauifda) | ged @r—fa<uifta)

(GIECRD)) (AT SUA)

=T el AT (+) 1. 136.59 290.84

fua. 35.55 99.80
TSl 1T (+) 13 3.15 11.81

fua. 1.07 2.28
ST 31 (+) 1. 6.17 -

fua. - -
et gRIfT o <Iar R e &t fira. -3.03 11.81

fua. 1.07 20.28
el AT ofTe (+) 1. i

fug. . .
T T (+) AT BT(-) 1. -

fug. - -
S T B | 71 el Y Bk} 133.56 302.65

fua. 36.62 102.08

—




Q{iﬁ\f} TGS Hel o BIRyH fafies
IS ACT
o1 wpraReTe
I ATID AT | H1=T DY T8 ARAT
faazor B (faauifya) [ged @(R—faauifya)
(T BU) (T BU)
3= TS AT H AT Fol 1A 1. 76.63 139.91
fua. 49.36
Jrerr uREufar § fder 31 siof
fraer &1 Aot R aREuRMT & SRid g &1 %
3= U 1Y H /= el Ry 100%
dHifrs srgar
faawor F=gdl (faauifma) gedl (IR—fa<urfya)
T fafer 4. AT SIS wise A AT gepTs hise fafer
faa AT gdTS isc fafer ST TS i fafer
B 1. 7.50% Ui a9 7.50% Tfcr a9
. 6.50% Tfc a9 6.50% Jfcl ay
CRE I F-ACN =1, 10% 9fer a9 10% 9fcr &y
. 5% 9fel ay 5% Jfcl ay
PHIHANT ATEYT/ 1. 0% ufcr a9 0% ufcr a9
CIENIEN
faa. 3% gfer ay 3% gfer a9
G X 1.9, {i$YUTH 2006-08 JUeAST BT 100%  STRTYATH 2006-08 UAS! BT 100%
U9, JIETTeryd 2006-08 IUTS! BT 100% SHTETTATH 2006-08 JTAET BT 100%

HagTeiierdar fageyor 3R gl a9 Jran:

1. Gdgaefedar fageryor

AT ITAA A 31 |19 2018 BT WA 31 AT 2017 Bl AT
gRad= fa<fra ot (g vud) | fa<ha o (arg vud)
ge X 0.50% (78.97) (34.61)
-0.50% 91.93 40.41
EOREIEACN 1.00% 191.82 77.50
-1.00% (145.16) (62.86)
oI ETEpIfd &% 1.00%
-1.00%
fefher garwifa a) 1.00%
-1.00%
Y R +3ad (2.99) (1.26)
39y 2.20 0.92

—
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2. YATRIE oM YIrdrE

$. 9. I BT ad Gl ThaldRIT Fgd
1 31-419-19 0.64 0.26
2 31-419-20 0.74 0.29
3 31-A14-21 0.68 6.01

4 31-414-22 0.79 0.31
5 31-414-23 0.84 4.51
6 31-19-2024 9 31-A14-2028 5.15 9.43

8 URANE dWi® IS (3 UUH 21) “faceh ga1 fafma <=1 A uRada & y9a” & G99 H ddhe:

B, AT 3R B faavor § 51 97 12 fafea &R Il (Fradt) 0.0128735 g v (U9, 0.3314678 ARG
) B |

@ YIS /SISyl FHRIGHI H AlfGd Jal & WUIARYT & HRUT 824 o $U (fU.d. 93 TRG TU) &l
fafrre sfar wifdr wfmfora 21

9 3 VU 24 G ferd uel bl & d4e § Ybed

() THE YETHI BHIHD:

1. & BAR H9(d, Ja¢ a3

2. & o Rig, qoiifors Meerd (@@ s ShRgaR) (31,/10,/2017 )
3. 3 9% AR, Pidlerd e (ifel T wih s Rew)
4. =M1 ST HId IR, QUidbTierd e ()
5. STl g7 AT, BUT A
(@) |3fea val (W= udga S1@1) § SN & A1 ST Udhe:

faaor 2017-18 (1@ YY) 2016-17 (TR W)
T R W= 123.16 114.55
sy Y &fik s e, I=get @ik 18.11 15.64
NLEEIRIRENEE
3T ™ 16.32 27.56
Fl (FHEN darrd A wnfie) 157.58 157.75
SR uiRsfAE & sifafRed,
i.  guidTield Merdl &I HU & Al & IR IGell & Sl HUHl & WA B HR & ITIRT (Froh
RIEIINIEVE R EUIRICIRIEES

i. fad 2017—18 & SR BN 310 UeT & 1T 1T Blg o el fhar 7T |

—
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10 RGN Gl 99D (3 UUN)—33: 3ot Ufd TRR B GaeT § Ybe:

1. 9ol 375l UfT IR BT 0T fFaC] IRRYRST DI AR AT & et o a1 g1 # 2/@f & SR
JHTIT SIS AART BT AT HIRT AT | WA THR BT STl & | Ify AR rafAfSie 3roiq &1 To+1 &
ST T BT AT ST & SR Gh T IRRT BT F&AT B HIRT A BT FHARINTT fohar ST ey |

faazor 2017-18 (AT ¥UA) | 2016-17 (ATE SUA)
S Td B fIaR0T & STTAR BRI, Yd Fafer (2538.29) (1897.45)
TR Ud fUwel a8l & B FAro @ 9%

A (g BU)

JHIAT SIFaCT YART DI FRAT ATRT FET:

kS 997.45 743.94
KEIEIER] 1586.62 861.11
T 3TST Ui IR (F3) (2.54) (2.55)
(3ifera e 100 / —BUT Ufel TRR)

a3 ot Ul IR (TUR) (1.60) (2.20)
(3ifera e 100 / —BUT Ufe TRR)

1. ARG dGiHT HI-D YT, ATHRAD SIdreN AR ATHRTS IRGURTAT & A4 ¥ Ube:

(e A H)
faa=or 01.04.2017 DI a9 & IR ast & <IN 31.03.2018 DI
RINE G gfg / 3iavor SLDIR RIGEEIL
SEIRCINESIC] 231.31 514.39 48.72 696.97
Expenses 4245.60 1147.80 4134.19 1259.20
Total 4476.90 662.18 4182.92 1956.17
faazor 01.04.2017 B1 a8 & GIRI= gt & IR 31.03.2018 B
SINR AL gf& / saror YA sifoH 2y
Hargfy e Nl 231.31 N 231.31
Y Nyl 424 5.60 N 4245.60
Pl = 4476.90 = 4476.90

—
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12 ARG d€iH 9 (3 TUH)—101 “HRARI d@TH D © Ugal JMNHI0T" D Gae o Ybe:
3 U0 © Ugd e & deg 7 fewfor
I 31 AT 2018 BT FHTG I8 B HUY P Ugel faig fAavor & |

e 29 ¥ iR e Al T 31 1<, 2018 BT HAIG aY & fA<ig faRoT; 31 HT<, 2017 BT HAG Y B
34 O faaroll # wRqd JoTcoAd TSR 3R 1 31U, 2016 (HUHI B FHATT BT TRIE) Bl RS S
TUH WY TAR B H AL fhar T g |

S QU H HehAY & [o1Y BT 7 $S TUH 101 & IR [FAITRId SI-aR] / debfeues Bl BT M 3T &

®) HURT, TAF AR SUBRT B FRfHd ARTG: FUH A § TUH 101 B GRRTE S B W1 SI700 & d'd
STQUYT & STFAR ATYA fhy T 370+ YIS & 981 Hod Bl SIRI I@ &1 AT A TS © |

@) JRFS Ar=rar wR o< uReufar an fa<ia qaare &1 affevor ik Sfua gea | foxfa
UREURTAT 3R TR BT §8 UTH H HHHUT Bl TRIG DI Aol Tl & R IR qffed fhar 11 ¢ |
D 3TATdT, TRT 8T IR URT S120 & T8 B W WHAY Bl ARG Pl AT IHD 918 [HY MY ol el IR
$S UUH 109 DT U&TRIT & FHTFAT STIIART BT AT ST & |

fowel SIUTd & g V0T H GhaT I Hul &) o<y Rerfa, o< freores ik T3] varg R us y91d &1
TETHoT fereforfRad diferarant sk fewforat # fReiRa fhar a2 |

ool SHUTd &R §8 vy & i qH1em:
$S U 101 H SfA9d], qd 3@ &1 gl ATUD A & He—He & o7 U ALeI uferd sl & | =
TIferaT fUBel SHUUY W S U 6T AR YEid HRdl &

dEgAS Al ¥d HigiveE fafids
g9 R y9d @ fag e siigedl ik g€ vow & i gaeE

(ATE BUA)
faawor Arefs1 wrd 2017 | GurSE Bt Ard 2017 31 Ard 2016 RIS 1 319
. v 3ot vudy E2 ISR ICIE T 016 B
D P IATUR [ IR SETTE D
(e (e ITER
Tifara) Tdifera)
gRiufrar
Ax—are uRwufat
(@) Uy, |3 3R SUBRT 1 9,682.51 9,682.51 | 6,448.66 6,448.66
(g) BRI goi 2 | 1,84,972.46 1,84,972.46 | 65,540.29 65,540.29
(M) srgd uRwufrat 3 3,723.09 3,723.09 | 3,768.85 3,768.85
(@) o aREufRr faera 4 293.82 293.82
P I
@) foxira uReufuat 5
(i) o 3,748.22| (3,748.22) 2.68 (2.68)
(i) a1 156.31 156.31 2.68 2.68

—
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(@) 31 TR—=1ey uReufr 6 - | 3,591.92 3,591.92 -
EICRINGRINDI
() AT 7 - - - -
(@) faxfra aReufrat
() THFAEIRITAGE g 1,00,718.45 1]00,718.45  3¢,303.65 36,303.65
(i) o 37,918.80((37,918.80) - | 25,584.87 |(25,584.87) -
(i) 3= 9 - 230.18 230.18 176.51 176.51
(M) =re] B gREufRrat 10 - .
(8) 3= =Te] uRfafR 11 253.33 |37,688.61 | 37,941.94 197.35 [25,408.36 |25,605.71
Hol IRGURTAT 3,41,310.68 - B,41,310.68 137,846.35 -1,3,846.35
gfaad i Saarg
RO
(SIERRINCIEEREIY 12 | 94,265.00 - 194,265.00 38,005.00 38,005.00
(M) vTaET 13| 84,750.87 84,750.87 |72,554.54 72,554.54
IRARTT B IATY
9Tl *FdTg
() foxfra <y
(i) serRat 14 |1,46,432.00 -11,46,432.00 [21,332.00 21,332.00
(i) o fa<irg 15 - 293.88 293.88 79.16 79.16
ST
@) mﬁ?m 293.88 | (293.88) -
(M) vTaeT 16 117.97 - 117.97 12.53 12.53
IR HR TS 17 355.33 355.33 116.10 116.10
el IIATY
CORERIPAREIN
(i) <aTUR urftet 18 6,763.98 [ (105.96) 6,658.02 | 4,531.29 (59.30) | 4,471.99
(ii) ey fa<frg 19 - | 3,044.43 3,044.43 640.68 640.68
e
(iii) 31 =Te] <Y 20 | 3,972.72 [2,938.47) | 1,034.24 |1,277.15 | (660.54) | 616.62
(%) vTaeT 21 4,358.94 -|  4,358.94 17.73 17.73
F o gfaad) iR qaang 3,41,310.68 - 3,41,310.68 1,87,846.35 -1,37,846.35

—
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dEgAE ATl ¥d HraiReE fafids

goua W y91E & forg fisa Shiggdl @ik g wuw @ = gareme

ClicRER)!
faazor dle Bt 9, 2017 | GEE@ISA | 31 W, 2017
. B e 9y P IAT g
CISEING) Es qua)
3
) | T | RToTd 22 - 0.43 0.43
i) | 3 3y 23 1,850.66 (0.43) 1,850.22
iii) | od emafdy sma 2.48 (2.48)
1,853.14 (2.48) 1,850.65
T A
()
i) | TETeH @ 24 - 62.73 62.73
i) | e o e 25 1,844.91 (42.70) 1,802.21
iii) | foT omTa 26 1.00 1.00
iv) | JoIBT IR FURIEA 27 303.48 303.48
v) | o= = 28 1,359.51 (69.41) 1,290.10
vi) | 9d eafd = 50.24 (50.24) -
Hd A 3,559.13 (99.62) 3,459.52
X yd o4/ (1) (1,706.00) 97.14 (1,608.87)
DY Y
Te] PR
AR PR 17 (239.22) (239.22)
a8 @ g / (&1f9) (1,945.22) 97.14 (1,848.09)
IR AYD 3
i) | 7S S Ar A w1 A g T8 @
SIRIT
- ORI @ ATt &1 ga-afiad - (49.36)
B SR
i) | A< S o™ AT eI § gaaiiad @
9y @I I ATID 7 / (BT1) (49.36) (49.36)
A B Gl AUD A (1,945.22) 47.77 (1,897.45)

—
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g oy 107 “fa<iig forga: e @ ddg & yded
14.1 fa<ha faReaa

0]

Aofiar fa<ha feraa

gofaR fa<i foradl &1 989 4og 9 9aR &

feravor 31 9T 2018 & ITAR 31 9 2017 & ITAR 1 39 2016 & ATAR
Forenferd | vhdidl |Forenfed Fromifea [vedid Feerenfea |orenfia [vedid |vwdish
NI Hue KRG AT qIue GG KING fge | Wag
(ara %) | (ar@ ¥) | (ar" ®/) | (arE ¥/) |(ar" /)| (@ A) | (@@ ?) (@ ®/) | (@ #H)
fa<ha aRgufrar
T
=g foia 650.38 386.49 179.19
aRaRm ([ie
599G
AR IT
dHal 3R APhar| 119127.86 100718.45 36303.65
TAG
Fre 8 <)
E|
fa<ia Qgag
IRt 275405.00 146432.00 21332.00
FHre 14 W)
= facig 7504.30| 7500.82* 3338.31 720.02
AT (AT 15
g 19 T)
AR < 18768.13 6658.02 4471.99
(Fre 19 W)
e

* 3= facfiar 3 SavaRY SR Ires! | ufngfar it wfiafera € |
(i) Sfad qeu yaTrgHu:

fa<ig Rerfd & fJaxor 9 Ifd gou wR #1049 &1 73 fo<ia Fufrar ik <adg Sfaa qed
URTIHH & I WRI A qA(Hd B TS & | A9 & foIT Fgcaye STl & fraRaradr & MR W)
I R gRyTfyd fey 71v 8

¥R 1: ipa IRl 4 99 o forad] W) Sgd Jod (@rHmraifrd) arfe dd= arie fHeifRa
BT D |

R 2: Wihy ORI H PRIAR T&1 fby S aret [ foreal o1 Sfd e FeiRa &=+ H qeaiea
qPBAID] BT SUATIT ST & Il AT IR ISR ST T SUANT gl AR SFaedd T BT
SYIRT Tl & |

TR 3: I T 7 318 Aecdqul ST =Rl TeTR ST UR AR 78l &, Al forad ol 3o qod
U b W 3 H qiffepd fdar S g |

—
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(i) TG arTa wR A4 &1 1E o< aREuRaat /aag e fag sfaa qea uyeeq

fopar T 2:
(ar@ sud o)
faazor R 31 9T, 2018 HI 31 9T, 2017 HI $1 91, 2016 BI
eI | SfUdqed |deaYd |SRAqd qeaqed  phRa I

fa<ha uRafrad
T (A1 3 T 10 ) TR 2
3= iy uRegufrr wR 2 [650.38 650.38 386.49 386.49 79.19 179.19
(e 5 9 9 <)
E|
[ESIRECE G
3 foirg g Level2 |7504.3 7500.82 3338.31 3338.31  [20.02 720.02
(e 15 9 19 <)

v Sfaa e FeaiRa a3 @ fag ugaa geaied aa-ia iR afepan
®) 12 HEH A ¥ URYFId arell [ IRTURET 3R STl BT 98 Hod IdT Ifod Jod T2
ITAT AT AT 2 |

Q) FORNET dRTd W Faret 77 o faxiia uR\URRl ok Saamsil & S g o1 FaiRer oraied
AT AT 20 & JFFAR IRATRIT BT &R BT SUANT BRI 8T FAbal Y8 DI B §RT (AT ST © |
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AP, Fexe IR FaR T 88.36 55.75
qR<Teh, JMTafdres, FHERTS 1R uf¥arell i) @/ 0.71 2.02
RITOIETh} BT UTRe A 3.79 2.07
st ik yaR & 123.18 114.04
HIATETd HATH 3R STRET0T 2 95.08 56.52
I1H R PINIR T 0.81 1.86
fafey <ga 50.93 2.73
I 3R aT8 g 130.36
139.37
gfreror 3R el g 11.16 186.47
arfaey iR R e g 74.10 88.52
3McaRiT 3R g 96 g 142.52 103.81
wifafdres arg 0.05 0.88
TR, THRTE, TR IR 2 233.55 146.39
EXINERCINEICa| 0.14 1.59
e, faftre iR o =g 9.11 6.20
YHIF SR 31T HaTy 107.19 278.77
fopvmam, a8 &R BR 43.63
39.41
SRA e RIS 25.29 -
fadT g81 SAR—dgral &1 g 0.01 -
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TR ETIRIET 3R oraT T
FTITTT FAETTEHR

(amffd Te ST SRgTINIE), S
"3fee Wae" SA—35-V-I, favffar @oe,
AT TR, TGI8 —226010

Indian Audit & Accounts Department
Office of the Accountant General
(Economic & Revenue Sector Audit), U.P.,
"Audit Bhawan" TC-35-V-1,Vibhuti Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow - 226010

T ;- 3.99—-1 / dAl @1/ LMRC /2017—18 /1062 fedi®: 27 fuawR, 2018

Jqar o,
g9e e,
TGS Al ¥ dRURIH fafics
yemafe wad, fafts gvs, Mudl TR,
TS — 226 010

HEIey,

TAAE HUT SIfATH 2013 @1 ORT 143(6)(b) & NI @S Hgl Yol dRURTA feifics &
31 A7, 2018 B AT qY & @RI R YRd & 4% Ud ATe@uRIeld &I Sl feufOrt s
AR, 2013 BT 91RT 143(6)(b) & FE==l & FTERVT H HHIAI DI AP HHAI 966 & FHET UK B
2q T &1 51 B & | FUAT I ATH 93P & FAeT 37 SIhI— SR & TRd b S &1 I fda
fafr o g < |

The Report has been prepared on the basis of information furnished and made
available by the auditee. The Office of the Accountant General (Economic and Revenue
Sector Audit), Uttar Pradesh, disclaims any responsibility for any misinformation and/or
non-information on the part of auditee.

HUAT IF BT YT Ao |
JEUT— J2ATUR |
TIL
f_,-"’
(1§ $9R)
geg fAQere

“



éﬁﬁ?} TGS Wl X ARy fafies

31 9Td, 2018 &I WA a¥ =g AW Hgl ¥al HIUNeA fafics & fa<ia
faa=on’ ux S U sferfe, 2013 &Y gRT 143(6) (W) @ AT ARA & A7
U4 HETaETIeTs &) fewfory

31 | 2018 Pl FHIG dY G oIS Wl el HIARA ferfice & faxiig faavor sueit arfdfaE, 2013 &
sfaeta FReiRa faxig RUIfET @9 & SR TR &HRAT BUAl & Jaed &1 ITRGIIE & | IH BI aRT
139(5) AT 139(7) & I RA & FRIFH Yd AeToE@TIRIeTd gRT Fgad Aifdfed crarierd Afef = o
HRT 143(10) & SicTa METRT SRATIRIET TR ATDI & STTAR STAIH DI €RT 143 B AT TS IATIRIET
R ITTRT faxig faaxol W 30 &ad w3 & oy STRERN © | S9a! {10 23 JATg 2018 @ olRATIRIeT
Rar & Arenm | AT fohar ST Ui BT € |

Y, IRA & 5@ SR ATIRATINIETd &f 3MR ¥, 31 AT 2018 BT TATK IY & foU RG-S AT Nl BIARIH
fofice @ faxiia faaror @1 A &1 aRT 143(6)(@) & AT b IGTINIET B & | TE YR I@TaNIe
FHU BTG F YBATS 3R FB @i Raprel o gafid STia g6 Hid 2 |

3TN SIATORIETT @ MR WR, H ST &1 aRT 143 (6)(W) & Sfaa M=feIRad Seete g a2l & Sceld
PRAT AT &, Sl AR & H ATV € 3R S 3 o H {7 fJaRvl iR Fefe oRaraRien Ruie &l d8av
FHE IR B B foTY MM 2 |

&.  fa<ha Rerfa gx fewforn:
g U3
ERGILY

1. =T A A UATY: 19.51 HI's B (AIc—20)
IR ST (TAR) 7 28 HRARI 2018 & (Y UH & HIEIH H 04 WIHl UR Xd A IR B DI STFART
& fOIg BT A 34.30 BRIS TUY & HINTT Yob Dbl AT DI | IEH A, BUAI 7 2015—16 B QR
TSR & U1 33.06 PHRIS BT ST [T | FHTIT SAfdd TR 1.24 BRIS T © | Ffh, DU TR Pl
S IR BT I B & oY I 2 3iR 59 yaed gRT Reprs # 11 Wiagfa &1 718 7, o afeai |

Y AMHRAD AT T ST T8I 7 | SHD IRVMAESY a7 <Idl & A1 & SRS goil
(Freecy3syl) UE H 1.24 RIS TUY BT HH A fHaT TIAT T |

2. UTGET: 13.42 BRI v (Aic—21)

$S QUH 37 (IRT 10) & SITHR: "ATaeT ARE THI AT AR BT AT &7 STdih “INMBRAD ST ()
el TRl ¥ I~ FHIfad TR & 3R FSTFaT 3R wiasy § qR) R | HU=l & =01 |

“
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qER U A7 31 IHR=d "eAg gfed 8 a1 7 8 ¥ I 8, A7 (9) Ire], 1 o fuwell
geIs ¥ I © fobg A el © difd (i) I§ F9d el © b 3Mid ™l BT ATHR HRA dTel
FATAT BT gfedig TR & FARTE & forv mufard g a1 (i) <1iic o 1f¥T &1 yaie favesa=iraar
A A9 & T ST T |

HUAT RIS, H STANTO—dTGLTETR Vold I & §ra vord 1 W fAfor afafafern =em & 7 |
9 HaY H Vold qrs Bl A1 & AR Al A b Yeld A B IRATIT SUIRT & A1 ¥eTd Y UR
HRA DI AT B oI HUN BT Yo BT YA BRAT & | BT A $H9 W 8.95 BRIS SUY BT IFAA
TR 8 3R 39 G Yefd TfSrhxon &l Sf¥d (Fdsx 2017) fhar 8 | U= 5 39 I3 Br =N
oI afel H SATHRAS ST & AR IR SLRTE |

[, PHUI NeTd a1 DI It 3R 9 T2F B HaH H ¥eAd bl 9 Yol & YA & o] 917 & b
BUT F 2015—16 B QR YTd YA IR PR D Tob AT A1l H 39 Yol BT YA fhar & | g€
U0 37 & SURIGT UTGEHT & Ge¥ H, 39 hRAP Il & diR UR HH- BT doid 9P [V ol
AT H WA fham ST STUfErd © | I8 U9 71 819 & URUFRG®Y 3TeqdhTeld I & Tel &l
FTfefier goft (freeregd) U # 8.95 HRIS TUA BT B i far M7 2 |

3. SURIH H SHERI H FfRIROT T & AR OR (AT YaaThd TAU: 18.06 R T, HA 3ffeiferde
SHUHTTE: 60.04 I SU, HAH DT BISSIeld SITHITE: 13.53 o S0, 49 fdSah: 17.82
T TUY) W 7Y 1,09 FRIS SU A © | Ffh, I§ I R T9I ShaR| & [l § Bkl &
TREIRTT B THf B €; ST S WA B I8 d S B Soiy 3 fa<iig <uanatt (Ale—19) &
SESENIRIRSIEIRCIRYIE

4. 3= AT URFURTT — 212.97 FRIS U

SIRIh H WA 8 () BUAT §RT NRT AL, SAREIR HGl, TREYR HEI, HAYR HGI, RS g,
IRV AT & folU &1 fhar T 8.20 HRIS $UY, S TAIUHRIRAT §RT 1 GeIell | S°d A+
TR I T SITQT 31R () T IRER A U 57 BRI B oY 11.54 HRIS U |

<, 31 A T IR b AT fbell 31 gebrs W gl foxiier aReuiRy # gevie ool a1 €,
ST, 3 IR AT IRFURTT (AIe—11) & Ioid 31 =i URAURMN (Ale—9) & dgd <2
ST @Ry ST o6 3 U 32 §IRT 31Uferd 2 |

9 URVITHERY 19.74 BIS BUY TD (8.20 BRIG+11.54 HRIS) BT 31T ATe] URFURTIT H 31fddh
3 @R o= fa<ia aReufRR # o 3fep fbar T 2 |

(@) D) yarg faaver ux fewfor

5. e yaTs fAaReT H, BYI 7 64.50 BRIS SUY fATaIor AT I Tha] Yarg’ H ThSRIR I UTed
N & IR TR ST &, R 58 Tu 7 gRT ruferg foaer wfafafdray & 9ol varg’ & dgd giam

“




&?ﬁﬁ?} @IS WSl Nl Branee fafiics

ST =fay o | 39 IRUTHRE®Y fa<aryer Tfafafl & Jed) uare # oifdfe 3fdh iR faer
Tffafert & Fa<) varg | s 88 ddb BH IFh fhar TAT R |

(@M = fewforar
6. gfer sfeadt TR sr6i: (1) Ja— (2.54). (2) SI3CS— (1.60)

T 3R BT faaRoT 3 3R . 9. 10 " VU 33 & g H Ul WYAR (54 & Fae H Udhed” o A1
gfed e 4. 30 fa<ig fqaxon wR fewforn # uf gfdad! erR 4o &R SRegcs ool (2.54)
3R (1.60) SATIT AT € | HU = SAD! Terd TUFT BT 2 | U sfaad) IR |l 7 iR SR
35T SHHET: (1.70) 3R (1.59) & |

39 UBR i faaren # ufcr 3fdac! AR & ot 3R SRS 375l &I Tad ool (AT AT T |

ARA & 9P Ud AeTaEraRigT s
& forv SRk 9@ 3k 4
\./'D"/Pif
A2 IEHICICERY (RTST BHR)
fesio: 27 fRadaR, 2018 g fAeere

“
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S 3rfSfr 2013 B aRT 143(6)(A) & d8d U G&AT § TH —1 / HUHI
|ET / TATHIARHT /2017—18 /1062 fadid 27—9—2018 @& TR Hush Ruid & HaH
H ydgd & STR

diesll &1 fewforar

4. 8

TATHRIREl & IR/ STl

1. | (@) fa<ia Refa ux fewforn:
ERIRE]

QgAY

I 9dur 2IAIY: 1951 dS
¥4 (Aic—20)

SR AT (TRR) 7 28 WA 2018 B
U U B HIEH ¥ 04 [ IR ¥eId
A IR FHRA B IFART & forg wu
H 34.30 BRIS U & DIRTT Yoob D
AT BT | SFH 9, AT 7 2015—16 B
TR UFRIR & UTH 33.06 HRIS ST
ST fhT | I SAfad 1T 1.24 TRIS
S 7 | Ffch, U TSR BT 34 1A
BT YA B o forg aregy € ik g9
gde gRT Rafe # 1 Wi &1 18
g, ofEr 921 # 39 MHRAB AT
T a8 § | 398 URUFREaHY
9] <TA B AT B BN Ygon
(Frescgansdl) Udd H 124 RIS
ST BT Y b fhar AT |

1.24 PS IID

$S YUY 37 ¥ Joold & AJAR IATHRAD QAR Bl
TR¥TYT T e (T ST | SATeh e Sare:

(@) fUoell TearRl I SO~ IWfdd T iR
S sida 9fw § Q@I @R 9 dUHl b
fRIF0T | 91eR Ud a1 s 1f\if¥ad geAr
afed e AT T 9 A I & A7

1] TR ST el gerell | Scq~  fobg A1
T8l § Hifh:

(i) o= dwa 921 2 & d ST BT ATHR B dTel
HAEHT ® dfedls @ @GR & fofg
aryfera g, T

(i) <R @ IR &1 g feaa=adT | A 78
o ST AT |

TATHIRYT T faaR & b 59 Tl &7 emalRas

AT DT TRHATST & d&d AfTHdT I M fbar 17 8

R T8 T MBRHD UPplal ST B, $H =ROT H 724

BEESEEIERIGIENRIRDIES

IR NAd F UATHIRAT gRT SIgH &l A & gl H
THIRIT SR WR YA & UUHNRYT §RT UdTeT 3Gl
(@rforiae ITART & fory =181) & forg i &1 ITINT e
& fom, fafe ol W Yt 4fA BT IR B BT AR
2 UTUHRIRAT TR UHR ST & UTUHSIRYT & 3TRI™
WR IR B & 918, YeTd BT A DI R B & JARI
DI TCTHR ST GUR AfST 34.30 PRI BUY PR (T |
TATHIRT 7 2015—16 @ GRTH YoId A IR HRT Dl
AT & oY TR I 33.06 HRI€ BUY BT A
foar @@ 15 W1 WX AL AT 9 dr=, AR
01—07—2017 ¥ SIGHC! YATAT B3I 37cT: 1.24 BRIS T
DI AR BT TR SUAST A FaAT 2 1 TAvHIRAT &
IR XeTd Pl < el AT ifs Y 2015—16 H &
R f&ar T o7 | VATHIARAl © gdg BT fIER © b
AT BT FHIET BT Y | AT 31 ) AR 2 |
TR §RT A U THRI Bl TATHARYAT - 39 b

(@)

“




TGS Hel o BIRyH fafies

WeR a1 fhar § | 39fery, SR Yad gIRT J190 7T 1.24
RIS BT BT VM3, SifeH foig Sfed 819 & BROT 31.03.
2018 B 3MHRHAH AT ® TR W S2Tg 75 3 9 P ATe]
TIAT & AR WX | HHS Bl JfoH w7 T 91 )R 89

T B gfte R &1 AT |

2. | UTGETE: 13.42 HRIs $U (Ac—21)

S UUH 37 (IRT 10) & SIAR: "AIae=
¥ S T If3 BT SIAT R

STafdh "B RAG Il (6) el
geARl | S IHIfad iR ©
IR o sikd@ wfesy # ¢ @=e
A AT B FEFT ¥ qER UH AT
31t SrfFf¥ad Ted afed 89 a1 =
B 9 g 8L 97 (@) 9re] <1 St
el gemsll 9 U © fdhg A
fdrs ATl BT ATHR BRI AT
AR @ 9fedie SR & AAR
% foru emufera grm; 1 Uug <TiRiE
P I BT g faeasa=iraar & #19+
el fhar ST b |

HUH RIS H ST ST—aTG BTN
X WeH & 91 Yerd A W) i
Tfafaferat @er 38T & | $9 e H Nerd
s @ AT & AR Al 7EH qB
AT A & SRAUTRAT START & A1
T A UR &R BT AT b oy
HYAT BT Yodb BT AT BRAT 2 |
PU T TH W 8.95 BRIS BUY Pl
3IFAT TR & 3R g9 Hafdd Nerd
UdRoN ®I Ufd  (AdeaR 2017)
frar 81 ®ue ¥ 39 I3 BT SO
orgT 92l # SeREd <Idr @ dR
TR GIMATR |

IR Nd §RT 3MBHRAD IAT & AR IR AR 7Y DIRTAT
TIRI BT I B & Gae H FTeTRad gaa & o=
gy &

SR YAl Vold §RT QeAUHSTIRE! ST STAfT < BT ATl
I M T | I§ FH Il © [ AW Hseld Xel
U§edh, SR Yd Xeld & BRI U J& SR,
IR Y4 Yo, TREAR & Hraferd # o1 741 7| fhg
SR Jd NAd P A B DI Dlg WIdid / AAE
TATHARR! Pl 374 T U T8 83 © |

TATHIIRHT §RT f&=1d 07—11—2017 BT IR Yd Ye1d Bl
1128.54 ¥ 1. YA UR PR BT AR < AR IR q4
NSd BT 287.35 A I YA B IRARIT IUANT BT Wpfel

< T IR IR foham 1T |

HET el URATSHT 31TH ST Bq, o URde+ Gfaem J&
B B Iqaed A [P FAIAG URATSTAT B & BROT,
YATfAd 1SS R B I fAbr ATy, IRT ARBR
@ 99 G, D—14011 /50 /2014— THIREITE—||]
fasTids 27 STaNT 2015 & Ha # I fhar T & | I &
ST ¥ e ferd grifires IR

3.1 BT =19 Y: IR fdham 3T &

—"HfITe §RT HLT XeT URATSHT BT ARG Bl O R,
I HATe / foqIT |Efed #areral @ dre uRmet |
B IRAAD FWARYT dfdd 89 R H yifia
(forya uRaTSTT RUTE & STFAR HET X DUl gIRT 7l
T3) TR QR aTer BN T B, TATfeh TRASHT b
ST JATII 7 BT IR AN BT SR 7 87 |”

IR Yd XeTd Pl TATHIARI! §RT I BT ST dTed]
<TRT 311 I SR U4 Yerd §RT el 9dTs 75 & | SR g4
T D Y BT IR B B AR & forw IR g Yt
DI T FATAT Yoob BT JTA TTUHINRYT BraTerd |
ST AT 371R 31.03.2018 DI 8.95 BRIS U DI MR
TIUAITRT B dfal # MeRAd <l & iR IR TS
TS ol |

“
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T, BUA YA IS BT AT AR 3A| ISWYH RN H 59 W W <aar a1 3ffo| o
e & e § X BT 9 Yol | G B b BRT 3T gfte I S B | gfes AT Bl 319
WA & e arem ¥ fp e | T I TE 91 T R | QT ol ® b I8 gord U H
201516 B R Yo i TR B AT @ oY o8 8T 2 3R galely sMeee oI
T 31 Al H S Yoebl BT YT e 177 8 |

for 21 S TOE 37 & SWIA
IaETH1 & Ay H, S MHRAD I
P AR W JHT BT IOl 59D 10
orgr gfeal | ourau fear S
uferd g UE WeME d BE &
IRUITRGRY TPl Uae™ &
AT BRI Yol (Hresgansd))
TS H 8.95 BIS TU BT HH 3+
fearmar g |

3. | SIRIP H SHaRl A TR A & | [ H 39 =7 o< <Idm &) 97 Yraen=i | enfie
AR R (H99 T TaUe: 18.06 | T AT €, BToAifh QM1 A AT <IdT & W & | I8
A B9, HHA JfTeiferre SIUHETE: | 3eardd feam S © b are] a9 # 8! AUt fha
6004 @ TR, HAE FHN| ST

BISSIfoldh SITTHAATTH: 13.53 TR U3,
i fd<gl: 17.82 IR $UY) I Y
109 IS TUY oA & | dfds, I8
YA R FHI ShaRl & [l 49
$feTT 3 ‘UI9UTE’ & dgd S bl
oI ‘3= faxi <amstl (Aie—19)’
& TEd ST ST =Ry o |

9P URUTARGRT 1.09 BRIS DU BT
TR § 31 3 3R = A<y
gl (Are—19) # ®H 3w foHar
TATE |

4. |37 dre UREURTT — 212.97| O A 39 Y ATe] URHURKET & dgd enfier far
IS U T &, BTlifh QM1 WY =1e] aRFuRml & 91T & | I8
B I [ R R T AT a1 7T 2 b =are] av # gahT Srurerd fhan
MR HZI, SATEMEE HEl, TREYR ST |

¥ & oy g b AT 8.20 RIS
T, ST TATHRIRRT §IRT §+1 ATl

“




TGS Wl X ARy fafies

A 3D AT R gt fhar sirgm
IR (&) T TRBR A U T BRI
P foTT 11.54 BRI BT |

4fp, T4 A aFI IRET s a1 fhe
IR 3PS A O oI gy #
e aREuREAl (Ae—11) & o™

3=y fa<iry uR<uRidm (Aie—9) & T8
SRIRIT ST =R ST T S U0 32
SR IUfAT & |

3G URUMAREGHT 820 HRIS STU
@ &fiM) 3R 1154 FRIs T
RTT TRI B folT I IRBR A W)
UAE BT I Al UREuREl H
affrs 3fpd IR o=y foRima
ORI # 6 3fhe fhar T g |

5. | &<l ydre faavor ux fewferm

J6dl yarg faavor §, HUT 7 64.50
THE TaTE H THSIRIR 4§ U &1
P IR IR TV 2, T2 38 U 7 g
uferg faer wfafaferl & |
gqre’ & ded QAT ST ATy o |
s gfRumAvgwu  faTrgryer
Tfafafe | Aeal wae § e
I 3R fder wfafaferat | Fwd
Uqre § s 8¢ db ®H b fhar

HUAl §RT 39 e fhar 7 8 8iR I8 WEA § fo
UREEAT IR SUANTHRAT B ddb SR F HU-T gIRT
T =TT IR ey SehTer & e 99 & oty faxii
faeRor & TR I TR THSIRIR R &Sl &l 3fd
®Y | Udhed fhar 7 g, IR §F IMeard <d ' b
SIRTTHT fariir oy + Iuger afienvor fhar QT |

6. | (1) 3= fewforar

afar sfdad) 2R sr6i=: (1) a— (2.
54), (2) STSegcs— (1.60)

A SR B faavvr # 8fk @. 9. 10
"3S TUH 33 B e H UfT IR 36iA
@ Ay H Uhed” & AT ufed Al 4.
30 o< faarorf R fewforn & ufa
S IR A IR SERCE 3N
(2.54) 3R (1.60) ST AT & | HUAT =

T UART BT AR ST T & T BT BIS B H
cr8y @ Ffe 7, R i ufd 3§ 63900000 &1 I
3T # 6390000 STSY BT 1T 2T |

g eI g1 S & b are] a9 H 9T Jrgurer
febarm ST |

“
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D! TAd AT D 7 | ufa gfaadh
WR FE oI 3R SlEgcs Aol
HHI: (1.70) MR (1.59) B | 3 UPR
fo<ir faa=oit & ufy gfead oR &
Il 3R TR/RCE 3ol B ITad
Seord fhar TR |










)

TGS ATl Yol BraReH fafies
PRIRIECARCE]

e Sf. WIRIT srsdHx AMMITG aRad <erd
faftq @s, M TR, dw@H%—226 010
BT : 0522- 2304014, 2304015; BT : 0522-2304012
J9T3e © www.Imrcl.com

www.paromita.org
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